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Corporate Identity No. (CIN): U99999MH1917PTC000478
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Notice is hereby given that the One Hundred and Fifth Annual General Meeting of Tata Sons Private Limited will be held
on Tuesday, August 29, 2023 at 02:30 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Toreceive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b.  the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,2023,
together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. Todeclare dividend on Preference Shares and Ordinary Shares of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.

3.  Tore-appoint Mr. Saurabh Agrawal (DIN: 02144558) as a Director of the Company, who is liable to retire by rotation
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4.  To re-appoint Dr. Ralf Speth (DIN: 03318908) as a Director of the Company, who is liable to retire by rotation
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment up to and
inclusive of September 9, 2025.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5. Tore-appoint Mr. Saurabh Agrawal (DIN: 02144558) as the Executive Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association, the Company hereby approves the re-appointment of
Mr. Saurabh Agrawal (DIN: 02144558) as the Executive Director of the Company, for a further period of 5 (five)
years from November 16, 2022 to November 15, 2027 (both days inclusive), upon the terms and conditions set
out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting, including the remuneration to
be paid in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of his re-appointment,
with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment in
such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Saurabh Agrawal.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall be deemed to include any
Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this Resolution),
be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this
Resolution””
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NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

12.

In terms of General Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13,2020, May 5, 2020, January 13,2021, December 14, 2021,
May 5,2022 and December 28, 2022 (collectively referred to as‘MCA Circulars’) issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (‘MCA), the 105" Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company is held through Video Conferencing
or Other Audio Visual Means (“VC / OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue.
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC/OAVM on Tuesday, August 29, 2023 at 02.30 p.m. (IST). The deemed venue for
the AGM would be Bombay House, 24, Homi Mody Street, Mumbai — 400 001.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the AGM through the link: https://www.tata.com/ TataSonsAGM

Members who need assistance in connection with using the technology before or during the AGM, may reach out
to the Company officials at +91 8976 000 960 /+91 9820 989 422.

Since the Company is not required to conduct e-voting, the voting at the meeting shall be conducted through
show of hands, unless demand for a poll is made by any Member in accordance with Section 109 of the Act.
In case of a poll on any resolution at the AGM, Members are requested to convey their vote by e-mail to
csteam@tata.com

As per the provisions of Clause 3.B.IV. of the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, the matter of
Special Business as appearing at Item No. 5 of the Notice is considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence
forms part of this Notice.

The Explanatory Statement setting out material facts concerning the business under Item No. 5 of the Notice is
annexed hereto. The relevant details as per the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India with respect to the Directors seeking re-appointment at this AGM are annexed
hereto.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the company.
Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of
members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members
will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to the
Notice.

Trusts and Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representative to attend the AGM are required
to send a duly certified scanned copy of their resolution authorizing them to attend and vote through VC/OAVM
on their behalf at the AGM by e-mail to csteam@tata.com

In compliance with the MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for the financial year
2022-23 is being sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are available with the
Company.

Members may note that the Notice along with the Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the Company’s
website at http://www.tata.com/tatasons/documents

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice.

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may raise the same at
the meeting or send them (mentioning their name and folio no.) at least 3 days prior to the date of the AGM by
e-mail to csteam@tata.com
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13. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained
under Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspection by the Members during the AGM.
The same can be accessed by writing an e-mail to csteam@tata.com

14. Dividend income is taxable in the hands of Members and the Company is required to deduct tax at source @10%
from dividend paid to Members. Valid Permanent Account Number (“PAN") of Members is mandatorily required.
If the PAN is not updated or is invalid or becomes inoperative on account of non-linking with Aadhaar then a
higher rate of 20% would apply. Further, for Members who are identified as “Specified Persons” under Section
206AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 by the Income-tax Department, based on non-filing of their tax returns for past
year, the higher rate of 20% would apply.

Resident Members are requested to submit a declaration in Form No. 15G / 15H (if applicable) duly signed and
verified as prescribed by the Income Tax Act, 1961. Other resident Members having income-tax exemptions /
concessions are requested to submit specific exemption / lower deduction certificate as issued by the Income Tax
Department authorizing the Company to deduct Nil / lower tax on dividend.

The Members are requested to submit the requisite documents as enunciated above to csteam@tata.com
at least 3 days prior to the date of the AGM from their e-mail ID, failing which tax shall be deducted at the rates
in force.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Suprakash Mukhopadhyay
Company Secretary
ACS 10596

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023

Registered Office:

Bombay House

24, Homi Mody Street

Mumbai 400 001

CIN: U99999MH1917PTC000478
Website: www.tata.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) the following explanatory statement sets out all
material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item No. 5 of the Notice:

Item No. 5

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on November 16, 2017, had appointed Mr. Saurabh Agrawal (DIN: 02144558)
as the Executive Director of the Company for a term of five years w.e.f. November 16, 2017 up to November 15, 2022
(both days inclusive). The Shareholders approved the said appointment at the Annual General Meeting held on
September 20, 2018.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on November 8, 2022, unanimously re-appointed Mr. Saurabh Agrawal
as the Executive Director for a further period of five years from November 16, 2022 up to November 15, 2027 (both days
inclusive), subject to the approval of Members. Considering his knowledge, experience and performance, the Board
was of the opinion that his re-appointment as the Executive Director would immensely benefit the Company.

A brief profile of Mr. Saurabh Agrawal is as follows:

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal is the Executive Director and Group Chief Financial Officer (“Group CFO") of the Company.
Mr. Agrawal joined Tata Sons in June 2017.

In a career spanning over 30 years, Mr. Agrawal has been the Head of Investment Banking in India for Bank of America
Merrill Lynch, Head of Corporate Finance business in India and South Asia for Standard Chartered Bank and the
Head of Strategy, Aditya Birla Group.

Mr. Agrawal is on the Board of Tata Steel Limited, The Tata Power Company Limited and Voltas Limited. He also Chairs the Boards
of Tata Capital Limited, Tata Play Limited (Formerly known as Tata Sky Limited), Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited,
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited, Tata TMG Technologies Private Limited and Supermarket Grocery Supplies
Private Limited.

In his role as Group CFO, Mr. Agrawal is focused on driving financial performance and strategy of the group including capital
allocation, investment management decisions and portfolio optimization.

Additional details of Mr. Saurabh Agrawal, as per the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are provided in the Annexure to the Notice.

The main terms and conditions for re-appointment of Mr. Saurabh Agrawal (hereinafter referred to as
“Executive Director” or “Mr. Saurabh Agrawal”) are as follows:

1. Tenure of re-appointment:

The re-appointment of the Executive Director is for a further period of 5 (five) years i.e. from November 16, 2022
up to November 15, 2027 (both days inclusive).

2.  Nature of Duties:

2.1 The Executive Director shall devote his whole time and attention to the business of the Company and perform
such duties as may be entrusted to him by the Executive Chairman, from time to time, and shall exercise such
other powers as may be specifically assigned to him, subject to the superintendence, control and directions of
the Board in connection with and in the best interests of the business of the Company and the businesses of its
Subsidiaries, Associates and Affiliates, including by serving on the Board of such companies, as long as he holds the
position of Executive Director of the Company. Serving on the Board of the Affiliates will also be part of duties of the
Executive Director.
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3.1

3.2

33

The Executive Director shall not exceed the powers delegated to him by the Executive Chairman. The Executive
Director shall employ the best of his skills and ability and make his utmost endeavours to promote the interests
and welfare of the Company and its Subsidiaries, Associates and Affiliates and to conform to and comply with the
policies and regulations adopted by the Company and all such orders and directions as may be given to him from
time to time by the Board.

The Executive Director shall perform his duties from such location as may be directed by the Executive Chairman.
Remuneration:
Basic Salary: ¥ 17.225 lakh per month; upto a maximum of ¥ 24 lakh per month.

The annual increment in the Basic Salary which is to be effective from 15 April in each year will be decided by the
Board based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) or by the NRC on
authority of the Board and will be performance-based and take into account the Company’s performance as well.

Benefits, Perquisites, Allowances and Retirals:
Mr. Saurabh Agrawal will also be entitled to benefits, perquisites, allowances and retirals as set out below:

° Accommodation (furnished or otherwise) owned or leased by the Company, together with reimbursement
of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity, water, furnishings and repairs aggregating
85% of Basic Salary;

OR
House Rent and House Maintenance Allowance aggregating 85% of Basic Salary;

e  Medical allowance, leave travel allowance, other perquisites and allowances in accordance with the Rules of
the Company or as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Saurabh Agrawal, subject to a maximum
of 55% of his Basic Salary.

For the purposes of calculating the above ceiling, perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated as per the current
Income Tax Rules wherever applicable. In the absence of such Rules, perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated
at actual cost.

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal will also be provided one car and driver for official duties and telecommunication facilities at
residence, actual cost of medical expense for major illness & hospitalization expenses for self, spouse and dependent
children, personal accident insurance and club fees, which shall not be included in the computation of perquisites.

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal will be entitled to housing loan as per Company Policy and income tax valuation of
housing loan perquisite shall not be included in the computation of perquisites for calculating the aforesaid
ceiling of 55%.

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal will be entitled to Company’s contributions to the Provident Fund and Superannuation or
Annuity Fund and/or Allowance in lieu thereof, Gratuity and encashment of leave payable as per the Rules of
the Company, which shall not be included in the computation of the limits for remuneration or perquisites and
allowances as aforesaid.

Commission:

In addition to Basic Salary, Benefits, Perquisites, Allowances and Retirals, the Executive Director will be paid such
remuneration by way of Commission, calculated with reference to the net profit of the Company in each financial
year, as may be determined by the Board. The specific amount payable to the Executive Director will be based on his
performance evaluation and will be payable annually after the annual accounts have been approved by the Board.
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3.4 Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year during the tenure of the
Executive Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration
to the Executive Director by way of Basic Salary, Benefits, Perquisites, Allowances and Retirals.

4,  Termination:

The Agreement between the Company and Mr. Saurabh Agrawal may be terminated earlier, without any cause,
by either party by giving to the other party six months' notice of such termination or the Company paying six
months remuneration which shall be limited to Salary, Benefits, Perquisites, Allowances and at the discretion of
the Board, any pro-rated Commission, as may be applicable, in lieu of such notice.

5. Other terms:

The terms and conditions of the re-appointment of the Executive Director may be altered and varied from time
to time by the Board as it may, in its discretion deem fit, in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board
and the Executive Director, subject to such approvals as may be required.

The terms and conditions of the re-appointment of Mr. Saurabh Agrawal shall be open for inspection electronically
by Members up to the date of the AGM and during the AGM. The same can be accessed by writing an e-mail
to csteam@tata.com

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal and his relatives are deemed to be concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 5.
None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested in the aforesaid Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Suprakash Mukhopadhyay
Company Secretary
ACS 10596

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023

Registered Office:

Bombay House

24, Homi Mody Street

Mumbai 400 001

CIN: U99999MH1917PTC000478
Website: www.tata.com
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Annexure to the Notice

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment as required in terms of Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on

General Meetings

Name Mr. Saurabh Agrawal Dr. Ralf Speth
Designation Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Age 53 years 67 years

(Date of Birth) (August 13,1969) (September 9, 1955)

Qualifications

B.Tech, PGDBM (IIM-Calcutta)

Doctorate of Engineering in Mechanical
Engineering and Business Administration

Experience

Over three decades of rich experience in
strategy and capital markets

Wide experience in areas of production, quality
and product planning

Terms and conditions of re-appointment

Re-appointment as a Director, liable to retire
by rotation and as the Executive Director for a
further period of 5 years w.e.f. November 16,
2022

Re-appointment as a Director, liable to retire
by rotation, up to and inclusive of September
9,2025

Details of Remuneration sought to be
paid

As mentioned in the explanatory statement to
Item No. 5

Commission

Remuneration last drawn

As mentioned in the Board's Report

As mentioned in the Board's Report

Date of first appointment on the Board

November 16,2017

October 25,2016

attended during FY 2022-23

Shareholding in the Company Nil Nil
Relationship with other Directors, | Nil Nil
Manager and other Key Managerial

Personnel of the Company

Number of Meetings of the Board |6 6

Other Directorships

Tata Steel Limited

Voltas Limited

The Tata Power Company Limited

Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited

Tata Capital Limited

Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited

Tata Play Limited
(Formerly Tata Sky Limited)

Talace Private Limited
Supermarket Grocery Supplies Private Limited
Tata 1MG Technologies Private Limited

Gradis Trading Private Limited

Jaguar Land Rover Automotive PLC
TVS Motor Company Limited
Pegasus Digital Mobility

Swiss E-Mobility Group (Holding) AG
Swiss E-Mobility Group (Schweiz) AG
TVS Electric Mobility Limited

The Norton Motorcycle Co. Limited




TATA SONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Name

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal

Dr. Ralf Speth

Membership / Chairmanship of
Committees of other Boards

Audit Committee
Tata Steel Limited
The Tata Power Company Limited

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Tata Capital Limited

Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
Tata Play Limited (Formerly Tata Sky Limited)
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Tata Capital Limited — Chairman

Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited -
Chairman

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited

Tata Play Limited (Formerly Tata Sky Limited)
- Chairman

Talace Private Limited — Chairman

Risk Management Committee
Tata Capital Limited - Chairman
Tata Steel Limited

Investment Committee
Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited

Executive Committee of the Board
Tata Steel Limited

NIL
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To the Members,

The Directors present herewith the One Hundred and Fifth Annual Report of Tata Sons Private Limited
(“the Company”or “Tata Sons”) along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company are also presented.

1. OPERATING RESULTS:

R in crore)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Total Revenue / Income 35,058.47 2413297 | 4,15,734.41 3,10,257.16
Total Expenses 3,794.70 3,481.67| 3,67,462.06 2,64,562.85
Profits before Exceptional Items and Taxes 31,263.77 20,651.30 48,272.35 45,694.31
Exceptional Items (1,240.03) (1,104.28) (1,427.59) 912.07
Share of Profit of Associates (Net) - - 7,402.34 10,497.83
Profit before taxes 30,023.74 19,547.02 54,247.10 57,104.21
Profit after taxes 22,132.38 17,171.21 28,211.04 40,437.75
Profit for the year attributable to:
— Shareholders of the Company 22,132.38 17,171.21 16,847.79 30,390.31
- Non-controlling interests - - 11,363.25 10,047.44
Opening Balance of retained earnings 47,765.97 34,424.58| 1,09,154.33 91,699.46
Profit for the year 22,132.38 17,171.21 16,847.79 30,390.31
Other comprehensive income/(losses) (9.19) 2.21 (3,290.98) 2,438.38
Dividend? (404.15) (404.15) (402.35) (402.35)
Other adjustments (4,428.19) (3,427.88) (10,284.66) (14,971.47)
Closing Balance of retained earnings 65,056.82 47,765.97| 1,12,024.13 1,09,154.33

* Dividend for the financial year 2022-23 will be accounted in the financial year 2023-24 upon approval of the Shareholders

DIVIDENDS:

Based on the Company'’s performance, the Directors have recommended a dividend of ¥ 17,500 (Previous Year:
¥ 10,000) per Ordinary Share at the rate of 1,750% (Previous Year: 1000%). The dividend, if approved by the
Shareholders, would involve a cash outflow of ¥ 707.26 crore (Previous Year: ¥ 404.15 crore) on 4,04,146 Ordinary

Shares.

The Directors have recommended dividend on the Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares amounting to
% 20.22 crore (Previous year: ¥ 20.22 crore). As required under the Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS), dividend
on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares is grouped within finance costs.
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PERFORMANCE:

The Company continues to be a Core Investment Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI").

Financial Performance:

Total revenue of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 was ¥ 35,058.47 crore compared to X 24,132.97 crore in
the previous year, an increase of 45%.

Total expenses for the financial year 2022-23 were ¥ 3,794.70 crore compared to ¥ 3,481.67 crore in the previous year,
an increase of 9%.

The performance of the Company witnessed a significant improvement in the financial year 2022-23 with Profit
Before Tax of ¥ 30,023.74 crore as against ¥ 19,547.02 crore in the previous year, an increase of 54%. The details
pertaining to the Exceptional Items are provided in Note No. 46 of the Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Profit After Tax was ¥ 22,132.38 crore, an increase of ¥ 4,961.17 crore or 29% over the previous year. Strong
cashflows during the year under review reduced net debt by ¥ 6,873.90 crore or 25% over the previous year.

Net debt as on March 31, 2023 was ¥ 20,642.47 crore compared to 3 27,516.37 crore as on March 31, 2022.

The net debt to market value of investments held by the Company reduced further during the year under review to
1.84% as on March 31, 2023 compared to 2.13% as on March 31, 2022. The return on equity, pre-exceptional items,
was 39.19% for the financial year 2022-23 compared to 34.21% for the previous year.

The carrying cost of investments of the Company as on March 31, 2023 was ¥ 1,30,286.35 crore compared to
¥ 1,16,604.01 crore in the previous year. During the year under review, the Company has invested in its new and
existing businesses based on their requirement for capital, for growth and for deleveraging their balance sheets.

The market value of Tata Sons’ listed investments was ¥ 11,20,545.24 crore as on March 31, 2023 compared to
%12,91,657.69 crore in the previous year.

The Tata group’s combined market capitalization as on March 31, 2023 was ¥ 20,71,467 crore compared to
% 23,60,140 crore in the previous year.

Business Highlights:

The macro-economic volatility and geo-political factors have dominated the global business environment during
the financial year 2022-23. Looking ahead, global growth is poised to slow down to 2.6% in 2023 (from 3.1% in
2022), led by a pronounced slowdown in developed markets. In contrast, emerging markets will provide some
cushion, led by India.

India’s growth continues to be resilient, underpinned by government’s capital outlay and buoyant private
consumption. India’s GDP has grown by 7.2% in the financial year 2022-23 and is expected to continue to be the
fastest growing large economy.

The Company is investing to leverage the India growth opportunity and in industries which have large potential
driven by:

(i) global energy transition trend across sectors,
(i) imperative for global manufacturers to create a more diversified and resilient supply chain and
(i) Al/Data led transformation of businesses.

The Company continues to make investments in existing businesses to enable them to capitalize on above
growth opportunities and to support deleveraging of balance sheets.

The Company has also identified and incubated select new businesses.
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SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES:

As on March 31, 2023, the Company had 289 subsidiaries and the Company together with its subsidiaries had
38 associates and 37 joint ventures.

A statement in Form No. AOC-1 containing details relating to the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of
the Company (including addition/deletion thereof during the financial year 2022-23) is annexed to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Based on the framework of compliance systems established by the Company, the review performed by
the internal and statutory auditors and review performed by the Management and the Audit Committee,
the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s compliance systems were adequate and effective during the
financial year 2022-23.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

(i)  inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that
there are no material departures;

(i) they have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the statutory auditors and have applied
them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that year;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) they have devised proper systems, to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws, which are
adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of ten Directors. Among all the Directors,
eight are Non-Executive Directors out of which four are Independent Directors.

Mr. N. Chandrasekaran is the Executive Chairman and Mr. Saurabh Agrawal is the Executive Director of the
Company. Mr.Venu Srinivasan, Mr.Vijay Singh, Dr. Ralf Speth and Mr. Bhaskar Bhat are the Non-Executive Directors.
Mr. Ajay Piramal, Mr. Harish Manwani, Mr. Leo Puri and Ms. Anita Marangoly George are the Independent Directors
of the Company. Necessary declaration of independence has been received from them by the Company.

Ms. Anita Marangoly George was appointed as an Independent Director by the Board for a period of 3 years
with effect from July 12, 2022 up to July 11, 2025 (both days inclusive), not liable to retire by rotation, which was
approved by the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on August 30, 2022.

Mr. Ajay Piramal was re-appointed as an Independent Director by the Board for a period of 3 years with effect from
August 25, 2022 up to August 24, 2025 (both days inclusive), not liable to retire by rotation, which was approved
by the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on August 30, 2022.

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal was re-appointed as the Executive Director by the Board at its Meeting held on
November 8, 2022 for a further period of five years with effect from November 16, 2022 up to November 15, 2027
(both days inclusive), subject to the approval of the Members.
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Mr. Saurabh Agrawal and Dr. Ralf Speth are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. Further, keeping in view the retirement age policy
for Directors adopted by the Company, re-appointment of Dr. Ralf Speth would be up to and inclusive of
September 9, 2025.

Considering the skills, experience and knowledge of the above mentioned Directors, the Board was of the opinion
that their appointment / re-appointment would immensely benefit the Company.

Necessary items pertaining to their re-appointment forms a part of the Notice convening this
Annual General Meeting. The Board commends the said re-appointments.

Mr. N. Chandrasekaran - Executive Chairman, Mr. Saurabh Agrawal - Executive Director,
Mr. Suprakash Mukhopadhyay - Company Secretary and Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia - Chief Financial Officer are the
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Details of remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel for the financial year 2022-23 are as under:

i. Remuneration to Executive Chairman - Mr. N. Chandrasekaran

R in crore)
Sr. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Amount
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained under Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 11.52
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.94
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -
2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4, Commission* 100.00
5. Others: Bonus, Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, etc. 0.54
Total 113.00
* Commission will be paid after the Annual General Meeting
ii. Remuneration to Executive Director — Mr. Saurabh Agrawal
R in crore)
Sr. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Amount
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained under Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 5.08
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.48
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -
2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4. Commission* 22.00
5. Others: Bonus, Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, etc. 0.26
Total 27.82

* Commission will be paid after the Annual General Meeting
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iii. Remuneration to Company Secretary - Mr. Suprakash Mukhopadhyay
R in crore)
Sr. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Amount
1. Gross salary
(@) Salary as per provisions contained under Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2.83
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.06
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -
2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4, Others: Bonus, Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, etc. 7.12
Total 10.01
iv. Remuneration to Chief Financial Officer — Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia
R in crore)
Sr. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Amount
1. Gross salary
(@) Salary as per provisions contained under Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 1.49
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 -
2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
4, Others: Bonus, Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, etc. 1.26
Total 2.75
v. Remuneration to Other Directors
R in crore)
Sr. No. | Particulars of Name of Directors Total
Remuneration Amount
1. Independent Directors Mr. Ajay | Mr. Harish | Mr. Leo Puri| Ms. Anita
Piramal Manwani Marangoly
George
- Fee for attending Board - - - - -
/ Committee Meetings
- Commission* 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.10 10.50
Total (1) 2.80 2.80 2.80 2.10 10.50
2. Other Non-Executive Mr. Venu Mr. Vijay Dr.Ralf | Mr.Bhaskar
Directors Srinivasan” Singh Speth Bhat
- Fee for attending Board - - - - -
/ Committee Meetings
- Commission* - 2.80 2.80 2.80 8.40
Total (2) - 2.80 2.80 2.80 8.40
Total (1) + (2) 18.90

* Commission will be paid after the Annual General Meeting
" Mr.Venu Srinivasan has been abstaining from receiving commission from the Company since his appointment
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8. BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE THEREAT:
i Board Meetings:

Six Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. on May 2, 2022, June 2, 2022,
August 12,2022, November 8, 2022, November 25, 2022 and March 21, 2023.

The number of Meetings attended by the Directors during the financial year 2022-23 is given below:

Name No. of Meetings
Attended

o)}

Mr. N. Chandrasekaran, Executive Chairman

Mr. Venu Srinivasan
Mr. Vijay Singh
Mr. Ajay Piramal

Mr. Harish Manwani

Mr. Leo Puri

Ms. Anita Marangoly George (Appointed w.ef. July 12, 2022)
Dr. Ralf Speth

Mr. Bhaskar Bhat

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal

a0 VOO O

ii. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee, inter alia, reviewed the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, prepared under IndAS and the report of the
Auditors thereon, before they were submitted to the Board.

The Audit Committee had no adverse observations/comments to make on the said financial statements.

Four Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 1, 2022,
August 12,2022, November 25, 2022 and March 21, 2023.

The number of Meetings attended by the Members of the Audit Committee during the financial year
2022-23 is given below:

Name No. of Meetings
Attended
Mr. Ajay Piramal, Chairman 4

Mr. Venu Srinivasan

4
Mr. Vijay Singh (Appointed as a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022) 2
Mr. Leo Puri (Appointed as a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022) 2
2
2

Ms. Anita Marangoly George (Appointed as a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022)
Mr. Harish Manwani (Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022)

14
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

One Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) was held during the

financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 2, 2022.

The number of Meeting attended by the Members of the NRC during the financial year 2022-23 is given below:

Name

No. of Meeting
Attended

Mr. Harish Manwani, Chairman

1

Mr. N. Chandrasekaran

Mr. Venu Srinivasan

Mr. Ajay Piramal

1
1
1

CSR & ESG Commiittee:

Two Meetings of the CSR & ESG Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 1, 2022

and February 27, 2023.

The number of Meetings attended by the Members of the CSR & ESG Committee during the financial year

2022-23 is given below:

Name No. of Meetings
Attended

Mr. N. Chandrasekaran, Chairman 2

Mr. Vijay Singh (Appointed as a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022) 1

Mr. Ajay Piramal 2

Mr. Harish Manwani (Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022) 1

The Company had adopted a CSR & ESG Policy, as approved by the Board. A report on Corporate Social
Responsibility ("CSR") activities of the Company and the details of the amount spent on CSR are enclosed
as Annexure |, in the prescribed format, as stipulated under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility

Policy) Rules, 2014 and amendments made thereunder.

Group Risk Management Committee:

Four Meetings of the Group Risk Management Committee (“GRMC”) were held during the
financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 29, 2022, September 20, 2022, November 25, 2022 and February 27, 2023.

The number of Meetings attended by the Members of the GRMC during the financial year 2022-23 is

given below:
Name No. of Meetings
Attended

Ms. Anita Marangoly George, Chairperson (Appointed as the Chairperson and 2
Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022)

Mr. Venu Srinivasan 4

Mr. Harish Manwani 4

Mr. Leo Puri (Appointed as a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022) 2

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal 4

Mr. Ajay Piramal (Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022) 2

Mr. Bhaskar Bhat (Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022) 2
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9.

vi.

Asset Liability Management Committee:

Four Meetings of the Asset Liability Management Committee ("ALCO”) were held during the financial year
2022-23 i.e. on June 29, 2022, August 29, 2022, November 28, 2022 and February 27, 2023.

The number of Meetings attended by the Members of the ALCO during the financial year 2022-23 is
given below:

Name No. of Meetings
Attended

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal, Chairman 4

Mr. Suprakash Mukhopadhyay 4

Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia 4

Further, the Risk Management Committee and IT Strategy Committee were constituted effective
January 31, 2023 and there were no meetings held.

Details of the constitution of the Committees are given below:

i. Risk Management Committee:
° Mr. N. Chandrasekaran, Chairman
e  Mr. Saurabh Agrawal
e  Mr. Suprakash Mukhopadhyay
e  Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia
ii.  IT Strategy Committee:
e  Ms. Anita Marangoly George, Chairperson
e  Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia

e  Mr.Royen Fernandes

OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES:

The Company is registered as a Core Investment Company with the RBI under Chapter IlIB of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and has been granted a Certificate of Registration permitting the Company
to make investments in its promoted companies and other Tata enterprises, which are held as long-
term investments. The Company has transferred a sum of ¥ 4,426.50 crore for the financial year 2022-23
(Previous Year: ¥ 3,434.50 crore) to the Special Reserve created under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

The provisions of Section 186 of the Act pertaining to investment and lending activities are not applicable
to the Company. Details of guarantees and/or securities provided in connection with loans to other bodies
corporate are provided in the financial statements.

In compliance with the RBI requirements, the Annual Report and Management Discussion & Analysis would
be uploaded on the website of the Company.

The Board of Directors had adopted a Policy on Board Diversity, Director Attributes, ‘Fit & Proper’ Criteria of
Directors and a Remuneration Policy.
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iii. Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Act and Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, relevant
information and details for the financial year 2022-23 are given hereunder:

(a) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Company’s activities involve low energy consumption. However, efforts are continuously made to
conserve energy and improve energy efficiency and generate/use renewable energy at the Company’s
workplaces and properties.

(b) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

The Company being a Core Investment Company, there is no material information on technology
absorption to be furnished. The Company continues to adopt and use latest technologies to improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of its business operations.

(c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The earnings in foreign exchange of the Company amounted to ¥ 425.26 crore for the financial year
2022-23 (Previous Year: ¥ 303.95 crore) and the expenditure incurred in foreign currency amounted to
¥ 1,221.25 crore (Previous Year: ¥ 1,204.29 crore).

iv.  Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the Company as on
March 31, 2023 is available on the Company’s website on http://www.tata.com/tatasons/documents

v.  All contracts entered by the Company with its related parties are in the ordinary course of business and at
arm'’s length. Further, the Company did not enter into any material contracts or arrangements with any of its
related party. Accordingly, Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for the financial year 2022-23
and hence does not form part of this Report.

vi. The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

vii. The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy covering the possible risks that
may be faced by the Company.

viii. The Company has an adequate system of internal financial control with reference to the financial statements
presented by the Company, commensurate with its size and the nature of operations.

ix. Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

X.  The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to address their genuine
concerns or grievances. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

xi.  The NRC makes recommendations, as and when required, for any change in the constitution of the Board.
NRC also formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Directors. It also ensures that the new Directors are familiarized with the business of the Company.

xii. The NRC reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole, its committees and individual directors and the
same was also discussed at the subsequent Board Meeting.
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10.

11.

xiii. The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has
complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Committee under the aforesaid Act. The
Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment during the financial year 2022-23 and that
there were no complaints pending at the beginning of the financial year 2022-23.

xiv. The Secretarial Audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is enclosed as Annexure Il and forms
part of this Report. There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer in the said report.

AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and
Circular No. RBI/2021-22/25 - Ref. No. DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021 issued by
RBI and Frequently Asked Questions dated June 11, 2021, M/s. PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 0039905/5200018) and M/s. T. P. Ostwal & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 124444W/W100150) were appointed as Joint Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on August 30, 2022, to hold office for a period of
two years from the conclusion of the 104 Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 106" Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer in the Auditors’ Report on the financial
statements for the financial year 2022-23 pertaining to their audit opinion on the financial statements and
internal financial controls.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Directors place on record their appreciation of the continuing support of the stakeholders of the Company.
The Board also records its appreciation of the services rendered by the lenders, management and employees of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

N. Chandrasekaran
Executive Chairman
DIN: 00121863

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023
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Annexure |

Annual Report on CSR Activities

Brief outline on CSR & ESG Policy of the Company

The CSR programs of the Company are synergized by having a “One Tata” approach amongst Tata Trusts,
Tata Sons Private Limited and Tata Operating Companies. While identifying the CSR projects, priority is given to
the areas where there is a strong need and the Company’s position stands relevant.

The projects/ activities undertaken are within the broad framework of Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013.
The focus of CSR activities is on four thrust areas — Health, Environment, Education & Skill Development and
Women Empowerment. The Company also undertakes initiatives in the areas of sports, improving livelihood of
the underprivileged community, etc.

Composition of the CSR & ESG Committee:

SI. | Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of Meetings of CSR | Number of Meetings of

No. Directorship & ESG Committee CSR & ESG Commiittee
held during the year attended during the tenure

1 Mr. N. Chandrasekaran” Executive Chairman 2 2

2 Mr. Vijay Singh* Non-Executive Director 2 1

3 Mr. Ajay Piramal Independent Director 2 2

4 Mr. Harish Manwani* Independent Director 2 1

" Chairman of the Committee
* Appointed as a Member of CSR & ESG Committee w.e.f. November 8, 2022

* Ceased to be a Member of CSR & ESG Committee w.e.f. November 8, 2022

Web-link where Composition of CSR & ESG Committee, CSR & ESG Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board
are disclosed on the website of the Company: - http://www.tata.com/tatasons/documents

Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of Rule 8, if applicable:

Executive Summary:

The Company had spent towards CSR activities, I 142.92 crore, I 545.83 crore and I 129 crore in FY 2019-20,
2020-21 and 2021-22, respectively. The Company had identified 34 CSR projects qualifying the requirements of
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 for conducting Impact Assessment. Impact Assessment study
carried out by an independent agency (IA) covered projects from areas such as Health (including Cancer Care),
Education & Sports, Innovation, Rural Upliftment, Urban Poverty Alleviation, etc.

The Company had spent around I 335.94 crore cumulatively in the 34 projects that were part of Impact
Assessment. Basis the reported figures, IA concluded that more than 10 million lives were touched because of
these projects. Tata Education and Development Trust (TEDT) was the principal implementing agency for the
projects. Out of these 34 projects, 8 has impact at pan India level. These projects were related to National Cancer
Grid, Non Communicable Disease Program (in collaboration with the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, India),
India Health Fund, 10 to 19 Adolescents Collaborative, Rail Wi-Fi, DIGIT platform (National Urban Stack), Food
Fortification Resource Centre (FFRC), and Aspirational District Fellowship. From the remaining 26 projects, 7 were
dedicated for the development of North East India. These were namely, WASH Project (Tata Water Mission) in
Nagaland, Grassroots Football Development in Mizoram and Manipur, and Assam Cancer Care.

At an overall level, Cancer Care was a great focus as 62% of ¥ 335.94 crore was spent on it. Some of the projects
under Cancer Care were Ranchi Cancer Hospital & Research Centre (RCHRC), Yenepoya Cancer Centre in Karnataka,
Cachar Cancer Hospital in Assam, Cancer Control Program in Catchment Areas, National Cancer Grid (NCG), and
Tirupati Comprehensive Cancer Care Program. Around X 27.46 crore was spent on building green field or brown
field Covid-19 hospitals or health facilities in 5 States i.e. Maharashtra, Gujarat, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, and
Madhya Pradesh.
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IA used the widely accepted OECD DAC Framework for assessing the identified project. It can be found in the
consolidated project wise Impact Assessment report.

Web-link of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects: http://www.tata.com/tatasons/documents

5. (@) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:% 4,172 crore
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:% 83.44 crore
(c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: ¥ 25.09 crore
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: T 58.35 crore
6. (@) Amountspenton CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): ¥ 58.35 crore
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
() Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: -
(d) Total amount spent for the financial year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: ¥ 58.35 crore
(e) CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (T in crore)
u Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the .
financial year Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
in crore) sub-section (6) of section 135 sub-section (5) of section 135
Amount Date of transfer | Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
58.35 Nil - - Nil -

(f)  Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. Particulars Amount
No. (X in crore)
m 2 3

(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 83.44
(i) | Total amount spent for the financial year 58.35*

(ii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous -
financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] -

*Excludes % 25.09 crore which has been set off from the excess amount spent on CSR activities in the previous years. Details of
amount available for set off and amount required for set off for the financial year are as under:

Sl. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off
No. preceding financial years for the financial year, if any
(Zin crore) (Zin crore)
1 2020-21 398.39 25.09
2 2021-22 53.02 Nil

7.  Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred to a Amount Deficiency,
No. financial transferred | Amountin | Spentinthe | Fund as specified under |remaining to if any
year(s) to Unspent Unspent financial Schedule VIl as per second | be spentin
CSR Account | CSR Account year proviso to sub-section (5) | succeeding
under sub- | undersub- | (Zincrore) of section 135, if any financial
section (6) of | section (6) of Amount Date of years
section 135 | section 135 R in crore) Transfer R in crore)
(Zin crore) (Zin crore)
Not applicable

20



W

TATA

in the financial year:

@ Yes

O No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount
spent in the financial year:

SI. | Short particulars of the | Pincode | Dateof |AmountofCSR| Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of the
No. property or asset(s) of the creation | amount spent registered owner
lincluding complete | property Rincrore) | CSRRegistration | Name Registered
address and location of | orasset Number, if address
the property] (s) applicable
(1 (2) (3) 4) (5) (6)
1 |Phase Il of restoration of 605012 | 23-Mar-23 1.57
Franco-Tamil Heritage
Building 'Matriniketan'
(a.k.a as Academy House)
2 | Construction of Boundary 605111 | 30-Mar-23 0.31
Wall of 'Sharanam), a Green
Building Sri Aurobindo
3 | Office Equipment - Led TV, 110017 | 28-Feb-23 0.04 Sri . Society . .
Mobile, Wireless Camera, CSR00000200 Aurgbmdo No.11,Saint Martln
Video Door Phone, Society Street, Pondicherry,
VR Device, accessories, etc. Py - 605001
4 | Laptops 110017 | 15-Mar-23 0.60
5 |[Furniture & Fixture - Brishi 110017 | 31-Mar-23 0.06
Garden Patio Seating Chair
And Table, Work Stations
6 | Purchase of Vehicle 110017 | 19-Jan-23 0.19
TOTAL 2.77

9.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-section
(5) of section 135: Not applicable

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023

N. Chandrasekaran
Executive Chairman and
Chairman of the CSR & ESG Committee

DIN: 00121863
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Annexure Il

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
TATA SONS PRIVATE LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Tata Sons Private Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company, the information to the extent provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and
the representations made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us
and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to
the Company during the audit period)

(v)  The Company being an unlisted Private Limited Company, the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company except
(a) and (b) hereunder:

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018 and amendments from time to time;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021;
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(vi)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

1. Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and amendments from time
to time

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and
general meetings.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. The agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance other than the meetings held at shorter notice, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes, the decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We furtherreport that there are systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company had no events which had bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

P. N. Parikh

Partner

FCS No: 327 CP No: 1228

Place: Mumbai UDIN: FO00327E000428722
Date :30.05.2023 PR No.: 1129/2021

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’

To,
The Members
Tata Sons Private Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

4.  Where-ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

P. N. Parikh

Partner

FCS No: 327 CP No: 1228

Place: Mumbai UDIN: FO00327E000428722
Date :30.05.2023 PR No.: 1129/2021
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Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Our Governance Philosophy is to ensure fair, transparent, accountable and ethical management in order to
protect the interests of all stakeholders including shareholders, employees, customers, vendors, regulators and
community. As a responsible corporate citizen, Tata Sons Private Limited (“Tata Sons” or “Company”) follows
the applicable laws in letter as well as in spirit. Further, the Governance Philosophy of the Company is based
on resilience. Globally, organisations are becoming vulnerable as businesses become complex, virtual and
interdependent. The Company believes that it is imperative to build a sustainable and resilient enterprise.

The Tata Code of Conduct provides an ethical road map and guidelines for the Tata companies. All the
employees, directors and partners of the Tata group are obliged to follow the tenets of the Tata Code of Conduct.
It encapsulates our values of integrity, responsibility, excellence, pioneering and unity. It lays down the principles
of the moral and ethical standards; standards of corporate governance; respect for human rights and dignity;
professionalism, honesty, fairness and integrity in all interactions with employees, customers, communities & the
environment, partners, financial stakeholders, government and regulators.

The Company being a private limited company, certain provisions as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)
are not applicable. However, to provide additional safeguards, transparency and high standards of corporate
governance, the Articles of Association of the Company include certain provisions that are applicable to a public
company i.e. Independent Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Related Party
Transactions and Retirement of Directors by rotation.

The Company'’s corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened through its Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading.

Board of Directors

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of ten Directors. Among all the Directors,
two are Executive Directors and eight are Non-Executive Directors out of which four are Independent Directors.
The profiles of Directors are available at https://www.tata.com/management-team

Based on the information received from the Directors, none of them is debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies. Further, none of the Directors is related to each other. None
of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel hold any share in the Company. The Directors have also affirmed that
they meet the ‘Fit & Proper’ criteria on a continuous basis to continue as Directors of the Company as prescribed
by the Reserve Bank of India.
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Composition of the Board

Sr. | Name of Director Capacity DIN No. of Board No. of Remuneration Number
No. | Director since Meetings other (X in crore) of shares
Held | Attended Dire.ctor- Salary | Sitting | Commi- .held
ships® | & Other | Fees | ssion in the
Compen- Company
sation
1 Mr. N. 25/10/2016 | Executive 00121863 6 12 13.00 100.00
Chandrasekaran Chairman
w.ef.
February 21,
2017
2 |[Mr.Venu 25/08/2016 | Non - 00051523 | 6 21 -
Srinivasan” Executive
3 Mr. Vijay Singh 11/02/2022 | Non - 06610802 6 6 2.80
Executive
4 Mr. Ajay Piramal | 25/08/2016 |Independent [ 00028116 6 10 2.80
Director
5 Mr. Harish 18/05/2018 | Independent | 00045160 6 5 . 2.80 .
Manwani Director Nil il
6 Mr. Leo Puri 24/03/2022 |Independent | 01764813 6 3 2.80
Director
7 Ms. Anita 12/07/2022 |Independent [ 00441131 6 5 2.10
Marangoly Director
George
8 |Dr.RalfSpeth  |25/10/2016 | Non - 03318908 | 6 7 2.80
Executive
9 Mr. Bhaskar Bhat | 16/11/2017 | Non — 00148778 | 6 9 2.80
Executive
10 | Mr. Saurabh 16/11/2017 | Executive 02144558 6 12 5.82 22.00
Agrawal Director

*Includes Directorships in private companies, foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the Act
" Mr. Venu Srinivasan has been abstaining from receiving commission from the Company since his appointment

Details of change in the Composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year:

Sr. No. | Name of Director

| Capacity

| Nature of change

| Effective Date

For FY 2022 - 23

1

Mr. Ajay Piramal

Independent Director

Re-appointment

August 25,2022

2

Ms. Anita Marangoly George

Independent Director

Appointment

July 12,2022

3

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal

Executive Director

Re-appointment

November 16, 2022

For FY 2021 - 22

1

Mr. N. Chandrasekaran

Executive Chairman

Re-appointment

February 21, 2022

Mr. Vijay Singh

Non-Executive Director

Appointment

February 11,2022

Mr. Harish Manwani

Independent Director

Re-appointment

May 18, 2021

2
3
4

Mr. Leo Puri

Independent Director

Appointment

March 24, 2022
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Committees of the Board and their Composition

The Company has constituted seven Committees of the Board as on March 31, 2023. The details of the Committee
along with the extract of terms of reference, category and composition are as follows:

A. Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:

the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with Related Parties;
scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Four Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 1, 2022,
August 12,2022, November 25, 2022 and March 21, 2023.

Details of the meetings attended by the Members of the Audit Committee during the financial year 2022-23
are given below:

Sr. Name of Member Member of Capacity No. of Meetings of | No. of shares

No. Committee since the Committee held in the
Held |Attended| Company

1 Mr. Ajay Piramal” April 10,2019 Independent Director 4 4

2 Mr. Venu Srinivasan April 10,2019 Non-Executive Director 4 4

3 Mr. Vijay Singh November 8,2022 | Non-Executive Director 4 2 NIL

4 Mr. Leo Puri November 8,2022 | Independent Director 4 2

5 Ms. Anita Marangoly George | November 8,2022 |Independent Director 4 2

6 Mr. Harish Manwani * May 25, 2021 Independent Director 4 2

" Chairman of the Committee
* Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The terms of reference of the NRC are as follows:

identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors of the Company, and recommending to the
Board the terms of their appointment and re-appointment;

identifying persons who are qualified to be appointed to senior management positions in the
Company, and recommending to the Board the terms of their appointment;

formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of the Directors of the Company;
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- formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director;

- recommending to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

One Meeting of the NRC was held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 2, 2022.

Details of the meeting attended by the Members of the NRC during the financial year 2022-23 are given

below:
Sr. Name of Member Member of Capacity No. of Meeting No. of shares
No. Committee since of the Committee held in the
Held |Attended | Company

1 Mr. Harish Manwani” April 10,2019 Independent Director 1 1

2 Mr. N. Chandrasekaran March 29, 2017 Executive Chairman 1 1 NIL

3 Mr. Venu Srinivasan November 17,2016 Non-Executive Director 1 1

4 Mr. Ajay Piramal November 17,2016 Independent Director 1 1

"Chairman of the Committee
C. CSR &ESG Committee
The terms of reference for the CSR & ESG Committee are as follows:

- formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR & ESG Policy, which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company in areas or subject, specified in Schedule VI to the Act;

- recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities;
- monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

Two Meetings of the CSR & ESG Committee were held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 1, 2022
and February 27, 2023.

Details of the meetings attended by the Members of the CSR & ESG Committee during the financial year
2022-23 are given below:

Sr. Name of Member Member of Capacity No. of Meetings of | No. of shares

No. Committee since the Committee held in the
Held |Attended| Company

1 Mr. N. Chandrasekaran” November 16,2018 Executive Chairman 2 2

2 Mr. Vijay Singh November 8, 2022 Non-Executive Director 2 1 NIL

3 Mr. Ajay Piramal November 16,2018 Independent Director 2 2

4 Mr. Harish Manwani * November 16, 2018 Independent Director 2 1

"Chairman of the Committee
*Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022
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Group Risk Management Committee (GRMC)

The terms of reference of the GRMC are as follows:

analyse the material risks to which the group, its businesses and subsidiaries are exposed. It must
discuss all risk strategies both at an aggregated level and by type of risk and make recommendations
to the Board in accordance with the Group’s overall risk appetite;

identify potential intra-group conflicts of interest;

assess whether there are effective systems in place to facilitate exchange of information for effective
risk oversight of the group;

assess whether the corporate governance framework addresses risk management across the group;
carry out periodic independent formal review of the group structure and internal controls;

articulate the leverage of the Group and monitor the same.

Four Meetings of the GRMC were held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. June 29, 2022,
September 20, 2022, November 25, 2022 and February 27, 2023.

Details of the meetings attended by the Members of the GRMC during the financial year 2022-23 are given

below:
Sr. Name of Member Member of Capacity No. of Meetings of | No. of shares
No. Committee since the Committee held in the
Held |Attended| Company

1 Ms. Anita Marangoly George" | November 8,2022 | Independent Director 4 2

2 Mr. Harish Manwani March 1,2021 Independent Director 4 4

3 Mr. Venu Srinivasan March 1,2021 Non-Executive Director 4 4

4 |Mr.Leo Puri November 8,2022 |Independent Director 4 2 NIL

5 Mr. Saurabh Agrawal March 1, 2021 Executive Director 4 4

6 Mr. Ajay Piramal* March 1,2021 Independent Director 4 2

7 Mr. Bhaskar Bhat* March 1, 2021 Non-Executive Director 4 2

"Chairperson of the Committee
*Ceased to be a Member w.e.f. November 8, 2022

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

The terms of reference of the ALCO are as follows:

the ALCO shall formulate and recommend to the Board, an Asset Liability Management Policy in order
to manage risks within a framework that includes self-imposed tolerance limits;

the ALCO shall be responsible for ensuring adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the Board as
well as implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the Company;

the ALCO shall delegate the responsibility of liquidity management and interest risk management to
Treasury, Finance departments to measure, monitor and report the risk.
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Four Meetings of the ALCO were held during the financial year 2022-23 i.e. on June 29, 2022,
August 29, 2022, November 28, 2022 and February 27, 2023.

Details of the meetings attended by the Members of the ALCO Committee during the financial year 2022-23
are given below:

Sr. Name of Member Member of Capacity No. of Meetings of | No. of shares
No. Committee since the Committee held in the
Held | Attended | Company
1 Mr. Saurabh Agrawal” March 1, 2021 Executive Director 4 4
2 Mr. Suprakash March 1, 2021 Company Secretary 4 4
NIL
Mukhopadhyay
3 Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia March 1,2021 Chief Financial Officer 4 4

"Chairman of the Committee

Further, the Risk Management Committee and IT Strategy Committee were constituted w.e.f. January 31,
2023 and there were no Meetings held.

Details of the constitution of the Committees are given below:

Risk Management Committee:

° Mr. N. Chandrasekaran, Chairman
e  Mr. Saurabh Agrawal

e  Mr. Suprakash Mukhopadhyay

e  Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia

IT Strategy Committee:

e  Ms. Anita Marangoly George, Chairperson
e  Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia

e  Mr.Royen Fernandes

IV. General Body Meetings

a.  Details of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) held in the
last 3 years:

Sr. | Type of Meeting |Date and Place Special Resolutions Passed
No. | (Annual /
Extra-Ordinary)

1 AGM August 30, 2022 - Re-appointment of Mr. Ajay Piramal as an Independent Director

(Through Video Conference) |- Amendment of Article 118 of the Articles of Association of the
Company

2 EGM April 25,2022 No Special Resolution was passed at this Meeting
(Through Video Conference)

3 EGM January 7, 2022 No Special Resolution was passed at this Meeting
(Through Video Conference)

4 AGM September 14, 2021 - Re-appointment of Mr. Harish Manwani as an Independent
(Through Video Conference) Director

- Approval for issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private
Placement basis

5 AGM August 27,2020 No Special Resolution was passed at this Meeting

(Through Video Conference)
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VI.

VII.

General Shareholder Information

Details of 105" AGM along with other details are given below:

Corporate Identity Number: U99999MH1917PTC000478
Day, Date and Time: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 at 02.30 p.m. (IST)
Venue: Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means

As per the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,
particulars of Directors seeking re-appointment at the ensuing AGM are given in the Notice of the forthcoming
AGM.

Financial Year: April 1 to March 31

Dividend Payment: The dividend, if approved by the Shareholders, shall be paid to the
Shareholders in accordance with the provisions of the Act

Details of Debenture Trustees: Centbank Financial Services Limited
3rd Floor (East Wing), Central Bank of India MMO Building, 55 M G Road,
Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Address for correspondence: Bombay House, 24, Homi Mody Street, Mumbai 400 001
Tel: 91 22 6665 8282
E-mail: csteam@tata.com
Website: www.tata.com

Details of non-compliance with requirements of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, there were no instances where the Company has failed to comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to compliance with applicable Accounting and
Secretarial Standards.

Details of Penalties and Strictures

No penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company during the year under review by the Reserve Bank of
India or any other statutory authority (other than those settled under the Maharashtra Settlement of Arrears of
Tax, Interest, Penalty or Late Fee Act, 2022).
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To the Members of Tata Sons Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tata Sons Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the standalone statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by Management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".
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(g9) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

Vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 49 to the standalone financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts- Refer Note 21
to the standalone financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

(@) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief otherthan as disclosed
in the Note 44e to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 44f to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

As stated in Note 23 to the standalone financial statements,

a. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies to
payment of dividend.

b. The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding maintenance of audit trail is
applicable to the company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable for the
year.
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3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act:

Since the Company is a private limited company, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act, are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting on the compliance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP ForT. P. Ostwal & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration: 0039905/5200018 Firm Registration: 124444W/W100150
R. Suriyanarayanan T. P. Ostwal

Partner Partner

Membership No. 201402 Membership No. 030848

UDIN: - 23201402BGYBUH3516 UDIN: 23030848BGZXJP1000

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date :30 May, 2023 Date :30 May, 2023
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Referred to in paragraph 1 on‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date
to the members of Tata Sons Private Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone financial statements as of and
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

(i) a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which
all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by
the management during the year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings and investment properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee except as mentioned
in below paragraph) disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company as
at Balance Sheet date.

In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as
leasehold lands in the standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company
except the lease agreement for 99 years, in respect of a leasehold Land and Building (Gross block - Rs. 0.08
crore and Net Block - Rs. 0.01 crore) had expired and the Company is in process of renewal. The Municipal
Corporation of Greater Mumbai had unilaterally revised the lease rentals which has been challenged by the
Company before the Bombay High Court and the matter is pending adjudication.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets during the year and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

b) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not been sanctioned loan in excess of five crore rupees from banks or financial institution on the basis of
security of current assets and hence the question of filing quarterly returns or statements by the Company
with such banks or financial institutions does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(iii)

a)

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
is Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence whether the Company has made investments in, provided
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties reporting is not required to be
commented upon and hence clause 3 (iii) (a) is not applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances
in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of
loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and repayments / receipts are regular.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days as at
the balance sheet date.

Since the Company is CIC whether any loans granted by the Company has fallen due during the current
year, has been renewed or extended of fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to
the same parties is not required to be commented upon and hence reporting under clause 3 {iii) (e) is not
applicable.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment and hence the question of aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the
total loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause 76
of section 2 of the Act does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees, and securities.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of the Act and
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under sub section (1)
of section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(vii) (a) To avoid protracted litigations, the Company has during the year paid Rs. 93.05 crores, GST on Subscription

fees, not applicable to certain related parties as per the contracted terms, valued as per the GST rules for the
period from 1st July 2017 to 31st December 2022, along with the applicable interest. Except for this payment
and minor delays in few cases of GST paid under reverse charge mechanism, the Company has been regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, and any other material statutory dues
as applicable with the appropriate authorities. The provision of duty of excise, value added tax and cess are
not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except
as stated below.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at 31 March 2023, which have not
been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as stated below:

Name of the Nature of the Amount not| Amount paid | Period to which amount | Forum where dispute is
Statute Dues deposited | (Rs In crores) | relates pending
(Rs. In crores)

Service tax Tax, 214.94 6.08 | 2008-09 to June 17 Appellate Tribunal

Interest

and Penalty
Income Tax and interest 0.55 -| AY 2018-19 to 2020-21 Commissioner of income
Tax tax Appeals

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, no
amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)

a)

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a declared willful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there were no funds raised on short term basis applied for long term purpose by the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken funds from any entities and persons
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that
the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies.
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(xi)

<)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence the question of
whether money raised were applied for the purposes for which those are raised does not arise. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year and hence the question of whether the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for
which the funds were raised does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
report that no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
report that no whistle blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a) to (c)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the transactions
entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the
Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by
the Indian accounting standard Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS 24)

a)

b)

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit, , issued to the Company
during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a)

b)

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is registered under Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and it
continues to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group has five CICs which
are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two CICs which are not required to be registered with the
Reserve Bank of India.

(xvii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
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(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is not
applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
other than ongoing projects, the Company has spent the required amount, there is no amount pending to
be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to transfer unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act,
pursuant to ongoing project to special account in compliance with provision of sub-section (6) of section
135. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP ForT. P. Ostwal & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration: 0039905/5200018 Firm Registration: 124444W/W100150
R. Suriyanarayanan T. P. Ostwal

Partner Partner

Membership No. 201402 Membership No. 030848

UDIN: - 23201402BGYBUH3516 UDIN: 23030848BGZXJP1000

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date :30 May, 2023 Date :30 May, 2023
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Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even
date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Tata Sons Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.



W

TATA

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control
with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP ForT. P. Ostwal & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration: 0039905/5200018 Firm Registration: 124444W/W100150
R. Suriyanarayanan T. P. Ostwal

Partner Partner

Membership No. 201402 Membership No. 030848

UDIN: - 23201402BGYBUH3516 UDIN: 23030848BGZXJP1000

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date :30 May, 2023 Date :30 May, 2023
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(1)  Financial Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(b)  Bank Balances other than (a) above
() Derivative Financial Instruments

(d)  Receivables

(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Other Receivables

(e) Loans
(f) Investments

(@) Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

(2)  Non-Financial Assets

(a) Current Tax Assets (Net)
(b)  Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

(c) Investment Property

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment
(e) Capital Work-in-Progress

(f) Other Intangible Assets

(g)  Other Non-Financial Assets

Total Non Financial Assets

(3) Assets Held for Sale

LIABILITIES
(1)  Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative Financial Instruments

(b) Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(c) Debt Securities

(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

(e) Subordinated Liabilities
(f)  Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

(2)  Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(d) Other-Non Financial Liabilities
Total Non Financial Liabilities

(3) Equity

(@) Ordinary Share Capital

(b) Other Equity
Total Equity

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Zin Crores

As at As at
Notes 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
3 15.36 16.45
4 435.65 435.59
7 1,298.53 573.79
5 70.80 2.20
6 1.85 0.18
8 39.08 1,911.60
9 1,30,286.35 1,16,604.01
10 2,572.16 1,132.07
1,34,719.78 1,20,675.89
440.74 47317
1 - =
12 58.88 59.12
13 (a) 182.77 102.90
13 () 0.16 0.24
13 (b) 3.15 9.04
14 267.50 508.10
953.20 1,152.56
15 3.35 189.90
1,35,676.33 1,22,018.35
7 - 64.14
16 0.13 0.31
327.94 285.59
17 1,635.00 3,290.40
18 20,273.59 27,670.78
19 267.68 270.68
20 471.30 687.62
22,975.64 32,269.52
654.65 683.31
21 21,029.85 20,038.59
11 319.87 95.41
22 44.85 29.41
22,049.22 20,846.72
23 40.41 4041
24 90,611.06 68,861.70
90,651.47 68,902.11
1,35,676.33 1,22,018.35
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In terms of our report of even date attached
For P K F Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 0039905/5200018

R. Suriyanarayanan
Partner
Membership No.: 201402

Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

ForT. P. Ostwal & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 124444W/W100150

T. P. Ostwal
Partner
Membership No.: 030848

Suprakash Mukhopadhyay
Company Secretary

Eruch N. Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board
Executive Chairman N. Chandrasekaran

Venu Srinivasan
Vijay Singh

Ralf Speth
Bhaskar Bhat
Saurabh Agrawal

Directors

Executive Director

Harish Manwani

Ajay Piramal

Leo Puri

Anita Marangoly George



I.  Revenue from Operations
Interest Income
Dividend Income
Rental Income
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
Sale of Services
Total Revenue from Operations
Il. OtherIncome

Finance Costs

Employee Benefits Expense
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses

Impairment of Investments
Impairment in Value of Investments Written Back
Liability/Provision of a Subsidiary Company

Tax Expense

(@) CurrentTax

(b) Current Tax pertaining to earlier years
(c) Deferred Tax

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSSES)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit and Loss
Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plans
Change in fair value of investment in equity shares carried at fair value through OCI
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Profit and Loss
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

Effective portion of Gains / (Losses) on Hedging Instruments in Cash Flow hedges

Notes

25
26

28
29

30

31
32
12-13
33

46
46
46

1

11

Effective portion of Gains / (Losses) on Hedging Instruments in Cash Flow hedges reclassified

to Profit and Loss

Income tax relating to Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Profit and Loss
Cost of Hedge Reserve

Cost of Hedging - changes in Fair Value

Cost of Hedging - changes in Fair Value reclassified to Profit and Loss

Earnings per Ordinary Share (in %) Basic and Diluted
(Face Value ¥ 1000 per Ordinary Share )

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Year ended
31-Mar-2023

238.87
33,251.65
20.18
360.76
1,015.59
34,887.05
171.42

35,058.47

2,116.10
430.51
49.21
1,198.88

3,794.70
31,263.77

(0.03)

(1,240.00)
(1,240.03)
30,023.74

(7,865.44)

(25.92)
22,132.38

(9.19)
(15.32)

723.40

(511.22)
(198.54)

63.90
(31.90)
21.13
22,153.51
5,47,633

TinCrores

Year ended
31-Mar-2022

226.89
11,498.98
19.33
1.80
826.13
12,573.13

11,559.84
24,132.97

2,346.67
420.00
42.21
672.79
3,481.67
20,651.30

(0.05)
43.87
(1,148.10)
(1,104.28)
19,547.02

(2,390.79)
34.84
(19.86)

17,171.21

221
(35.67)

513.33

(87.88)
(135.51)

20.67
37.84
314.99

17,486.20
4,24,876

In terms of our report of even date attached

For P KF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP For T. P. Ostwal & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 0039905/5200018 Firm’s Registration No.: 124444W/W100150

R. Suriyanarayanan T.P. Ostwal Suprakash Mukhopadhyay
Partner Partner Company Secretary
Membership No.: 201402 Membership No.: 030848

Eruch N. Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai, 30th May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Executive Chairman

Directors

Executive Director

N. Chandrasekaran

Venu Srinivasan
Vijay Singh

Ralf Speth
Bhaskar Bhat
Saurabh Agrawal

Harish Manwani

Ajay Piramal

Leo Puri

Anita Marangoly George
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. . As at 31-Mar-2023 As at 31-Mar-2022
Ordinary Share Capital
No. I Crores No. % Crores
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,04,146 40.41 4,04,146 40.41
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,04,146 40.41 4,04,146 40.41
Tin Crores
Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income Total Other
Capital Special |Securities| General | Retained Equity |Cash Flow| Cost of Equity
Redemption | Reserve u/s | Premium | Reserve | Earnings* |Instruments| Hedge |Hedging
R - th h OCl
Particulars eserve | 45-|C of the roug Reserve | Reserve
Reserve
Bank of
India Act,
1934
Balance as at 1-Apr-2021 4,607.36| 6,812.50 36.67| 6,524.36| 34,424.58 55.92| (685.23) 3.49| 51,779.65
Profit for the year 17,171.21 17,171.21
Other Comprehensive
Income for the year 2.21 (35.67) 289.94 58.51 314.99
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year 17,173.42 (35.67) 289.94 58.51 17,486.20
Transfer of OCl on disposal
of Equity Instruments 6.62 (6.62)
Transferred to Special
Reserve - 3,434.50 - - (3,434.50) - - - -
Dividends - Ordinary - - - - (404.15) - - - (404.15)
Balance as at 31-Mar-2022 4,607.36| 10,247.00 36.67| 6,524.36| 47,765.97 13.63| (395.29) 62.00| 68,861.70
Balance as at 1-Apr-2022 4,607.36| 10,247.00 36.67| 6,524.36| 47,765.97 13.63| (395.29) 62.00| 68,861.70
Profit for the year 22,132.38 22,132.38
Other Comprehensive
Income for the year (9.19) (15.32) 13.64 32.00 21.13
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year 22,123.19 (15.32) 13.64 32.00| 22,153.51
Transfer of OCl on disposal
of Equity Instruments - - - - (1.69) 1.69 - - -
Transferred to Special
Reserve - 4,426.50 - - (4,426.50) - - - -
Dividends - Ordinary - - - - (404.15) - - - (404.15)
Balance as at 31-Mar-2023 4,607.36| 14,673.50 36.67| 6,524.36 65,056.82 -| (381.65) 94.00| 90,611.06
* Including remeasurement of net Defined Benefit Plans
In terms of our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For P K F Sridhar & Santhanam LLP ForT. P. Ostwal & Associates LLP Executive Chairman N. Chandrasekaran
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0039905/5200018 Firm’s Registration No.: 124444W/W100150 Directors Venu Srinivasan Harish Manwani
Vijay Singh Ajay Piramal
Ralf Speth Leo Puri
Bhaskar Bhat Anita Marangoly George
R. Suriyanarayanan T. P. Ostwal Suprakash Mukhopadhyay Executive Director Saurabh Agrawal
Partner Partner Company Secretary
Membership No.: 201402 Membership No.: 030848

Eruch N. Kapadia
Chief Financial Officer
Mumbai, 30th May, 2023
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Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Profit before Taxes 30,023.74 19,547.02
Adjustments for:
Dividend Income (33,251.65) (11,498.98)
Interest Income (238.87) (226.89)
Interest on Debt Securities 197.57 376.82
Interest on Borrowings 1,795.28 1,853.94
Interest on Subordinated Liabilities 20.22 20.22
Interest on Lease Liabilities 6.51 1.60
Reclassification of amount recognised in Cost of Hedging Reserve 40.64 76.54
Net Loss / (Gain) on ineffective portion of Hedges 1.56 (3.63)
Other Finance Costs 54.32 21.18
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 49.21 42.21
Net Loss / (Profit) on sale of Investments / buyback of Securities / premium on redemption of 239.96 (11,357.32)
debentures
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes (360.76) (1.80)
Impairment of Investments [Refer Note 46] 0.03 0.05
Impairment in Value of Investments Written Back [Refer Note 46] - (43.87)
Liability/Provision of a Subsidiary Company [Refer Note 46] 1,240.00 1,148.10
Net (Gain) / Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.29) (0.02)
Impairment Loss Allowance (2.58) (8.68)
Donation 191.34 =
Net Unrealised (Gain) / Loss on Foreign Exchange (4.92) (0.01)
(30,022.43) (19,600.54)
Operating (Loss) / Profit before Dividend, Interest and Working Capital Changes 1.30 (53.52)
Adjustments for:
Trade and Other Receivables 52.07 (400.33)
Liabilities and Provisions (198.22) 80.03
(146.15) (320.31)
(144.85) (373.82)
Dividend Income 33,251.65 11,498.98
Interest Income 366.39 123.20
33,473.20 11,248.36
Less: Income Taxes (Net) (7,861.67) (2,019.05)
A 25,611.53 9,229.31
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital Advances) (13.61) (5.92)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.41 0.16
Loan to Subsidiaries (1,250.00) (3,617.00)
Loan repaid by Subsidiaries 3,102.00 5,425.00
Purchase of Investments in Subsidiaries (19,505.84) (19,553.33)
Purchase of Investments in Associates (1,500.00) (1,226.36)
Purchase of Mutual Funds & Government Securities (82,022.81) (42,525.39)
Proceeds from Redemption of Mutual Funds & Government Securities 84,559.34 41,075.21
Bank Deposits with original maturity greater than three months (net) (0.06) 459.04
Sale / Buyback / Redemption Proceeds of Investments in Subsidiaries 3,215.95 12,444.33
Sale Proceeds of Investments in Others 166.79 221.38
B (13,247.83) (7,302.88)
Repayment of Subordinated Liabilities (3.00) -
Proceeds from Debt Securities and Borrowings 2,296.04 3,000.00
Repayments of Debt Securities and Borrowings (12,655.40) (2,560.00)
Finance Costs Paid (1,573.33) (1,945.58)
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (including interest) (25.03) (17.80)
Dividend paid on Ordinary shares (404.15) (404.15)
C (12,364.88) (1,927.53)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C (1.18) (1.10)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 16.45 17.55
Unrealised foreign exchange (loss) / gain on cash and cash equivalents 0.09 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15.36 16.45
Restricted Bank Balances 0.55 0.49
Bank Deposits with original maturity greater than three months 435.10 435.10

Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year 451.01 452.04
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Notes to Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

1.

Since the Company is an Investment Holding Company, purchase and sale of investments have been considered as part of ‘Cash Flows
from Investing Activities’and interest and dividend earned have been considered as part of ‘Cash Flows from Operating Activities.

2. Taxes are treated as arising from Operating Activities and not bifurcated between Investing and Financing Activities.
3. Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
Zin Crores
Changes Non cash changes
from Foreign Fair value Other
Particulars 31-Mar-22 . 9 31-Mar-23
financing | exchange adjustments
cash flow | movement
Debt Securities 3,290.40 | (1,655.40) - - - 1,635.00
4,350.40| (1,060.00) - - - 3,290.40
Borrowings 27,670.78 | (8,703.97) 1,275.50 - 31.28 20,273.59
25,713.22 1,500.00 457.56 - - 27,670.78
Subordinated Liabilities 270.68 (3.00) - - - 267.68
270.68 - - - - 270.68
Total Liabilities from financing activities 31,231.86 |(10,362.37) 1,275.50 - 31.28 22,176.27
30,334.30 440.00 457.56 - - 31,231.86
Figures in italics are in respect of the previous year.
4.  Figures in brackets represent outflow.
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Tata Sons Private Limited (“The Company”) is registered as a Core Investment Company (CIC) with the Reserve
Bank of India and classified as a “Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-
SI)”and owns the TATA Brand and TATA Trademarks.

a) Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act and the
directions issued by Reserve Bank of India to a Core Investment Company.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
30th May, 2023.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the standalone financial statements.

b) Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores, unless otherwise indicated.

c) Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

items:
Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including Fair value
derivative instruments)
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the
standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost / deemed cost annually, or
more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is accounted for.
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e)

f)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation because of past eventand it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can
be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the standalone financial statements.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Classification of investment in subsidiaries, joint venture and associates

Identification of whether the Company has significant influence, joint control or control over an investee
based on the relevant agreements and regulations. The Company also evaluates its control on its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures based on De-facto control.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are
either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Recent accounting pronouncements
i. Amended standards adopted by the Company:

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Onerous contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract:

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’ Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts.

The above amendment is essentially a clarification and did not have any significant impact in the financial
statements of the Company.
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ii. New accounting standards / amendments notified but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2015, by issuing the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as
below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

Thisamendment requires companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’and included amendments to Ind AS 8
to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.

The effective date for adoption of the above amendments is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023. The Company does not expect the above amendments to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Income and expensesin foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on
the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not
retranslated.

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus / minus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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ii.

Classification and subsequent measurement

a.

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortised cost;

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment;

- Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except prospectively if and in
the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— theasset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debtinvestment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

— theasset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCl (designated as FVOCI - equity
investment). This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCl as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or
at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are

not reclassified to profit or loss.
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b. Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities are not reclassified. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms
is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the
host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates and certain derivatives.
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At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged
item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of change in the
fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCl and accumulated in the other equity under ‘effective portion
of cash flow hedges. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is recognised
in OCl is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value
basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts as
the hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships. The change in fair value of the forward element of
forward exchange contracts (‘forward points’) is separately accounted for as a cost of hedging and recognised
separately within equity.

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item such as
inventory, the amount accumulated in other equity is included directly in the initial cost of the non-financial
item when it is recognised. For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount accumulated in other
equity is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged expected future
cash flows affect profit or loss.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is
terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting for
cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in other equity remains there until,
for a hedge of a transaction resulting in recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in the non-financial
item’s cost on its initial recognition or, for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to profit or loss in the same
period or periods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated
in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost less any
provision for impairment.

Investments are reviewed forimpairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

i.

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
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If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property plant and equipment.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation and amortisation

i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method as per the useful
life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except for Buildings which are depreciated
considering their estimated useful life, ranging between 40 to 75 years in the future based on technical
evaluation carried out by the Company. Furniture and Fittings and assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are
depreciated at 100% in the year of acquisition.

ii. Intangible assets comprising software and content are amortised on the straight line basis over the
estimated useful life of the software and content commencing from the year in which such software and
content is first utilized. The estimated useful life is 3 to 5 years.

iii. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

The company depreciates the investment properties over a period of 60 years on a straight line basis which is in
line with the indicative useful life of relevant type of building mentioned in Part C of Schedule Il to the Act.

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Any resultant loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to remaining assets and
liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets and
employee benefit assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Company’s other accounting
policies. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are
no longer amortised or depreciated.
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i.

ii.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

ii. Financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:
i. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
ii. abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

iii. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

iv. itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
v. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

i. debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

ii. other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward- looking information.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating
units (CGU) fair value less costs of the disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in
respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGU’s) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the company reviews at each
reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as an increase in revaluation.

i. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
ii. Interestincome is recognised with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.

iii. Revenue comprises revenue from brand subscription and consultancy service. Revenue is recognised over a
period of time, as and when the performance obligation is satisfied with an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the statement of
profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company'’s
net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to
the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCl). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately
in the statement profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

Other Long- term employment benefits

The Company'’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The
obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months
or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with
banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are recognized at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of
resources is remote. Contingent assets are disclosed in the standalone financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefit is probable. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset
is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
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The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise
an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease.
The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for
a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Currenttax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any,
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.
Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable, respectively, that the related tax benefit will be
realised.
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Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated
as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
requires a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended when the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset are deferred / interrupted for significant period of time.

Basic EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares
outstanding during the year except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary
activities of the company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, are disclosed in the notes
accompanying to the standalone financial statements.

Final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends
are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which
operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Executive Directors and Chief Financial Officer
(who are the Company’s chief operating decision maker) in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to
segments on basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities which related to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have
been included under unallocable revenue/expenses/assets/liabilities.
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(@) CashonHand
(b) Balances with Banks

(i)  In Current Accounts
Total

(@ In Deposit Accounts
(b)  Fixed Deposits with Banks provided as security and other Restricted Deposits
Total

Considered Good
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance [Refer Note 36]
Total

Considered Good
Other Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Less: Impairment Loss Allowance [Refer Note 36]
Total

Note for Trade and Other Receivables:

Tin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
0.01 0.01
15.35 16.44
15.36 16.45
435.10 435.10
0.55 0.49
435.65 435.59
70.74 2.08
1.18 1.22
71.92 3.30
1.12 1.10
70.80 2.20
1.85 0.17
2.46 2.54
4.31 2.71
2.46 2.53
1.85 0.18

(@) NoTrade or other receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a

partner, a director or a member.
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(b) Ageing of Trade and Other Receivables:

Undisputed and Considered Good
Outstanding for:
Less than 6 months

Undisputed Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Outstanding for:

Less than 6 months

6 months - 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Zin Crores

As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
72.58 2.23
72.58 2.23
0.06 0.01
0.01 0.17
0.02 0.02
0.05 1.09
3.52 2.49
3.66 3.78
76.24 6.01

The Company enters into Derivative Contracts for the purpose of risk mitigation and management.

The table below discloses the fair value of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their

notional amounts.

Zin Crores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Particulars Notional FairValue- FairValue- Notional FairValue- FairValue-
Amount Asset Liabilities Amount Asset  Liabilities
(i) Currency Derivatives:

Principal only Swaps 3,478.54 26.11 - 481282 79.30 -
Subtotal (i) 3,478.54 26.11 - 4812382 79.30 =

(i) Interest Rate Derivatives
Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps 12,955.46 1,191.33 - 10,345.68 494.49 -
Interest Rate Swaps 3,478.54 81.08 - 481282 - 64.14
Subtotal (ii) 16,434.00 1,272.41 - 15,158.50 494.49 64.14
Total Derivative Financial Instruments (i) + (ii) 19,912.54 1,298.52 - 1997132 573.79 64.14

Note:

All derivative financial instruments included above are designated as held for cash flow hedging purpose.
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TinCrores
31-Mar-2023
At At Fair Value Total
Amortised  Through Other  Through Designated Subtotal
Particulars Cost Comprehensive  Profitor at Fair Value
Income Loss through Profit
or Loss

A.
Loans
(@)  Security Deposits 35.66 - - - 35.66
(b) Loan to Subsidiaries - - - - -
(c) Other Loans and Advances 3.43 - - - 3.43
Total (Gross) (A) 39.08 - - - 39.08
B.
Unsecured 39.08 - - - 39.08
Total (Gross) (B) 39.08 - - - 39.08
C.
Loans in India (1) 38.33 - - - 38.33
Others 38.33 - - - 38.33
Loans outside India (I1) 0.75 - - - 0.75
Total (Gross) (C) (I) + (11) 39.08 - - - 39.08

Zin Crores

31-Mar-2022
At Amortised At Fair Value Total
Cost Through Other Through Designated Subtotal
Particulars Comprehensive ProfitorLoss  at Fair Value
Income through Profit
or Loss

A.
Loans
(@) Security Deposits 38.09 - - - 38.09
(b) Loan to Subsidiaries 1,852.00 - - - 1,852.00
(c) Other Loans and Advances 21.51 - - - 21.51
Total (Gross) (A) 1,911.60 - - - 1,911.60
B.
Unsecured 1,911.60 - - - 1,911.60
Total (Gross) (B) 1,911.60 - - - 1,911.60
C.
Loans in India (1) 1,910.85 - - - 1,910.85
Others 1,910.85 - - - 1,910.85
Loans outside India (I1) 0.75 - - - 0.75
Total (Gross) (C) (1) + (II) 1,911.60 - - - 1,911.60

The Company has not given loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined
under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:

(@) repayable on demand or

(b)  without specifying any terms or period of repayment
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Particulars

Mutual Funds - Quoted
Government Securities - Quoted
Equity Shares
Subsidiaries - Quoted
Subsidiaries - Unquoted**
Associates - Quoted
Associates - Unquoted**
Joint Ventures - Unquoted
Others
Preference Shares
Subsidiaries - Unquoted
Debentures
Subsidiaries - Unquoted
Total (A)

Investments outside India
Investments in India
Total (B)

Less: Allowance for Impairment
Total Net

Particulars

Mutual Funds - Quoted
Government Securities - Quoted
Equity Shares
Subsidiaries - Quoted
Subsidiaries - Unquoted**
Associates - Quoted
Associates - Unquoted**
Joint Ventures - Unquoted
Others
Preference Shares
Subsidiaries - Unquoted
Debentures
Subsidiaries - Unquoted
Total (A)

Investments outside India
Investments in India
Total (B)

Less: Allowance for Impairment
Total Net

At
Amortised
Cost

At
Amortised
Cost

Tin Crores
31-Mar-2023
At Fair Value Others * Total
Through Other  Through Designated Subtotal
Comprehensive  Profit or at Fair Value
Income Loss through Profit
or Loss
- 1,082.79 - 1,082.79 - 1,082.79
- - - - 2,951.37 2,951.37
- - - - 58,175.98 58,175.98
- - - - 59,173.20 59,173.20
- - - - 460.09 460.09
- - - - 3,854.03 3,854.03
0.09 - - 0.09 - 0.09
- 6,700.00 - 6,700.00 - 6,700.00
0.09 7,782.79 - 7,782.88 1,24,614.67 1,32,397.55
- - - - 947.66 947.66
0.09 7,782.79 - 7,782.88 1,23,667.01 1,31,449.89
0.09 7,782.79 - 7,782.88 1,24,614.67 1,32,397.55
- - - - 2,111.20 2,111.20
0.09  7,782.79 - 7,782.88 1,22,503.47 1,30,286.35
Zin Crores
31-Mar-2022
At Fair Value Others * Total
Through Other Through Designated Subtotal
Comprehensive Profit or at Fair Value
Income Loss through Profit
or Loss
- 860.42 - 860.42 - 860.42
- 2,403.03 - 2,403.03 - 2,403.03
- - - - 2,951.37 2,951.37
- - - - 43,929.35 43,929.35
- - - - 59,173.20 59,173.20
- - - B 460.09 460.09
- - - - 3,854.03 3,854.03
0.09 - - 0.09 - 0.09
- 3,721.00 - 3,721.00 - 3,721.00
- 1,362.60 - 1,362.60 - 1,362.60
0.09 8,347.05 - 8,347.14 1,10,368.04 1,18,715.18
- - - - 947.66 947.66
0.09 8,347.05 - 8,347.14 1,09,420.38 1,17,767.52
0.09 8,347.05 - 8,347.14 1,10,368.04 1,18,715.18
- - - - 2,111.17 2,111.17
0.09 8,347.05 = 8,347.14 1,08,256.87 1,16,604.01

* Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint ventures are measured at cost.

** Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) include investment in Non Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
aggregating T 50 crores (31 March 2022: ¥ 50 crores) which were classified as equity by the issuer.
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* During the year, face value of share has been split from 210 to 1.

TATA
ZinCrores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Value Holding Amount Holding Amount
3 No. No.
Equity Shares (Fully Paid)
(i) Subsidiaries
Tata Consultancy Services Limited 1 2,64,43,17,117 133.76  2,64/43,17,117 133.76
Tata Communications Limited 10 4,00,87,639 987.83 4,00,87,639 987.83
Tata Elxsi Limited 10 2,62,95,264 136.06 2,62,95,264 136.06
Tata Investment Corporation Limited 10 3,46,64,663 1,013.44 3,46,64,663 1,013.44
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited 10 38,27,59,467 680.28 38,27,59,467 680.28
2,951.37 2,951.37
Less: Allowance for Impairment 581.53 581.53
Total 2,369.84 2,369.84
(ii) Associates
Tata Chemicals Limited 10 8,12,60,095 3,148.97 8,12,60,095 3,148.97
Tata Consumer Products Limited 1 27,05,57,128 3,359.97 27,05,57,128 3,359.97
Tata Steel Limited* 1 3,96,50,81,080 15,310.77 39,65,08,108 15,310.77
Tata Motors Limited 2 1,45,21,13,801 22,466.52  1,45,21,13,801 22,466.52
Tata Motors Limited - 'A' Ordinary Shares 2 3,85,11,281 191.08 3,85,11,281 191.08
The Indian Hotels Company Limited 1 50,76,55,313 4,501.76 50,76,55,313 4,501.76
The Tata Power Company Limited 1 1,44,45,13,021 5,628.13 1,44,45,13,021 5,628.13
Titan Company Limited 1 18,50,58,900 2,898.09 18,50,58,900 2,898.09
Trent Limited 1 11,53,40,341 1,468.58 11,53,40,341 1,468.58
Voltas Limited 1 8,81,31,780 199.33 8,81,31,780 199.33
Total 59,173.20 59,173.20
Total Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 61,543.04 61,543.04
Market Value of Quoted Investments 11,20,545.24 12,91,657.69
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(@) Equity Shares (Fully Paid)

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

AIX Connect Private Limited [formerly
AirAsia (India) Private Limited]

Ewart Investments Limited

Impetis Biosciences Limited

Indian Rotorcraft Limited

Niskalp Infrastructure Services Limited
Panatone Finvest Limited

Ranata Hospitality Private Limited
Talace Private Limited

Tata Advanced Systems Limited

Tata AIG General Insurance Company
Limited

Taj Air Limited

Tata Asset Management Limited

Tata Autocomp Systems Limited

Tata Business Hub Limited

Tata Capital Limited

Tata Consulting Engineers Limited

Tata Digital Private Limited [formerly Tata

Digital Limited]

Tata Electronics Private Limited

Tata Housing Development Company
Limited

Tata Incorporated

Tata International AG, Zug.

Tata International Limited

Tata Limited, London

Tata Medical and Diagnostics Limited
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Tata SIA Airlines Limited

Tata Teleservices Limited

Tata Trustee Company Limited

TS Investments Limited

Less: Allowance for Impairment
Total

Associates

Ferbine Private Limited
Tata Projects Limited
Total

Face
Value

10

1000
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10

10
10
10
10
10
10
10

10
10

UsD 1000
CHF 1000

1000

GBP 1
10
10
10
10
10
1

Holding
No.

11,291
16,59,375
6,19,13,783
3,98,51,100
3,59,33,03,142
1,15,00,000
3,78,32,00,000
2,11,03,94,465
73,58,97,440

27,22,00,000
1,78,25,269
4,16,06,632
45,00,00,000
3,36,86,83,388
1,00,00,000
18,94,26,60,000

1,82,00,01,000
72,98,67,398

1,520

4,350

3,23,866
5,98,91,730
40,00,00,000
2,11,73,07,698
5,11,02,00,000
46,77,99,94,619
2,75,000
5,22,85,73,436

20,000
2,31,12,496

As at
31-Mar-2023
Amount

442.44
9.86
53.50
39.85
5,576.22
11.50
3,783.20
2,349.55
1,084.10

272.20
51.80
974.08
450.00
7,497.26
10.00
18,942.66

1,820.00
2,921.99

0.20

0.48
535.15
946.98
400.00
3,375.00
5,110.20
994.87
0.03
522.86
58,175.98
1,529.67
56,646.31

0.02
410.07
410.09

Holding
No.

1,25,50,00,000

9,950
16,59,375
6,18,83,783
3,98,51,100
3,52,24,50,568
1,05,02,00,000
2,11,03,94,465
73,58,97,440

27,22,00,000
1,78,25,269
2,86,75,598
20,00,00,000
3,32,45,83,520
1,00,00,000
12,47,20,00,000

58,00,01,000
72,98,67,398

1,520

4,350

3,23,866
5,98,91,730
30,00,00,000
1,61,73,07,692
4,77,87,00,000
31,08,37,19,119
2,75,000
5,22,85,73,436

20,000
2,31,12,496

Zin Crores
As at
31-Mar-2022
Amount

1,062.74

60.63
9.86
5347
39.85
5,276.01
1,050.20
2,349.55
1,084.10

272.20
51.80
74.08

200.00

6,901.47
10.00
12,472.00

580.00
2,921.99

0.20
0.48
535.15
946.98
300.00
2,375.00
4,778.70

0.03
522.86
43,929.35
1,529.64
42,399.71

0.02
410.07
410.09
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(b)

(c)

(i) Joint Ventures

Strategic Energy Technology Systems
Private Limited

Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited
Tata Industries Limited

Tata Play Limited [Formerly Tata Sky

Limited]
Total

(iv) Others

Tata Services Limited

Total

Total Investment in Unquoted Equity

Shares

Preference Shares (Fully Paid)

Subsidiary

Air India Limited
7.4% Optionally Convertible Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference

Shares

AIX Connect Private Limited [formerly
AirAsia (India) Private Limited]

5% Optionally Convertible Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference

Shares

Talace Private Limited
5% Optionally Convertible Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference

Shares
Total

Investment in Preference Shares
considered Equity as per terms

Subsidiary

Tata Teleservices Limited
0.10% Non Cumulative Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares

Associate

Ferbine Private Limited

0.0001% Non Cumulative Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares

Total

Total Investment in Preference Shares

Face
Value

10
100
10

1000

10

100

10

100

10

Holding
No.

2,56,14,500

99,62,85,000
5,35,21,229
58,40,17,778

9213

5,00,00,00,000

1,70,00,00,000

5,00,00,000

As at
31-Mar-2023
Amount

996.29
1,598.52
1,259.22

3,854.03

0.09

0.09
60,910.52

5,000.00

1,700.00

6,700.00

50.00
50.00

6,750.00

ZinCrores

As at

31-Mar-2022

Holding Amount

No.
2,56,14,500 -
99,62,85,000 996.29
5,35,21,229 1,598.52

58,40,17,778 1,259.22

3,854.03

913 0.09
0.09
46,663.92

20,21,00,000 2,021.00

1,70,00,00,000 1,700.00

3,721.00

1,36,96,27,524 =

5,00,00,000 50.00
50.00

3,771.00
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(d) Debentures
Subsidiary
AIX Connect Private Limited [formerly AirAsia
(India) Private Limited]
Unsecured Optionally Convertible
Debentures
Tata Teleservices Limited
0.10% Unsecured Optionally Convertible
Debentures
Total Investment in Unquoted Debentures

Units of Liquid Schemes of Mutual Funds
TATA Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth
Total

Government Securities [Face value - % Nil
(31-Mar-22: ¥ 2,505.00 Crores)]

Considered Good:
(@) Application Money pending allotment

Face
Value

100

100

1,000

(b) Interest Accrued on Loans, Investments and Bank Deposits
(c)  Brand Subscription Income Accrued [Refer Note below]
(d) Asset corresponding to Land Obligation [Refer Note 47]

Considered Sub-standard/Doubtful:

Recoverable under Contractual Obligation [Refer Note 48]

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses
Total

Brand Subscription Income Accrued

Opening Balance

Income Accrued reclassified to Trade Receivables
Income Accrued during the year

Closing Balance

Holding
No.

30,48,886

Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Amount Holding Amount
No.
- 3,00,00,000 367.73
- 20,00,00,026 994.87
- 1,362.60
1,082.79 25,60,426.97 860.42
1,082.79 860.42
- 2,403.03
Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
1,500.00 -
4.19 131.72
872.19 728.50
195.78 271.85
2,572.16 1,132.07
699.43 699.43
699.43 699.43
2,572.16 1,132.07
728.50 511.41
(728.50) (511.41)
872.19 728.50
872.19 728.50
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Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Tax Expense
(@) Amountsrecognised in Profit and Loss
Current Income Tax 7,865.44 2,390.79
Income Tax pertaining to earlier years - (34.84)
7,865.44 2,355.95
Deferred Income Tax Liability / (Asset) (Net)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 25.92 19.86
Deferred Tax Expense 25.92 19.86
Tax Expense for the year 7,891.36 2,375.81
(b) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Profit before Tax 30,023.74 19,547.02
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate * 25.168% 25.168%
7,556.37 4,919.59
Tax effect of:
Non deductible expenses 317.15 285.76
Tax exempt income - (2,806.03)
Utilisation of brought forward tax losses / unabsorbed depreciation credit 17.84 (3.42)
Change in tax rate - 14.75
Write back of excess provision for income tax - (34.84)
Income tax expense 7,891.36 2,375.81

* With effect from FY 2021-22, the Company has opted for the new tax regime under Section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
which provides a domestic company with an option to pay tax at a rate of 22% (effective rate of 25.168%). The lower rate shall be
applicable subject to certain conditions, including that the total income should be computed without claiming specific deductions.

(c) Movement in Deferred Tax balances in Crores
31-Mar-2023
e Net balance | Recognised | Recognised | Net Deferred
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities ason in P%o fit in%CI Tax (Asset) /
01-Apr-2022 | and Loss Liability

(i)  Property, Plant and Equipment (0.31) (2.27) (2.58)
(ii)  Provision for Pensions and Compensated Absences (9.06) (0.16) (9.22)
(iii) Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (25.56) 25.56 -
(iv) FairValuation of Financial Assets (2.63) 7.04 4.41
(v)  FairValuation of Derivatives 128.27 198.54 326.81
(vi) Others 4.70 (4.25) 0.45
Total 95.41 25.92 198.54 319.87
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Zin Crores
31-Mar-2022
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities Net balance Rt?cognised Refognised Net Deferred
ason in Profit in OCI Tax (Asset) /
1-Apr-2021 and Loss Liability

(i)  Property, Plant and Equipment (7.95) 7.64 - (0.31)

(ii)  Provision for Pensions and Compensated Absences (13.70) 4.64 - (9.06)

(iii) Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (35.52) 9.96 - (25.56)

(iv)  Fair Valuation of Financial Assets 1.68 (4.31) - (2.63)

(v)  FairValuation of Derivatives (7.24) - 135.51 128.27

(vi) Others 2.77 1.93 - 4.70

Total (59.96) 19.86 135.51 95.41
Note:

Significant management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and
liabilities and recoverability of deferred tax assets. The recoverability of deferred tax assets is based on estimates of taxable
income and the period over which deferred tax assets will be recovered. Any changes in future taxable income would impact
the recoverability of deferred tax assets. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on the basis of prudence.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the company can use the benefits therefrom:

Particulars 31-Mar-2023 Expiry Date 31-Mar-2022 Expiry Date
Business and Capital Loss - 1,224.46 31-Mar-2023
Business and Capital Loss 6,638.10 31-Mar-2026 6,638.10 31-Mar-2026
Business Loss 1,934.77| 31-Mar-2027 1,934.77 31-Mar-2027
Business and Capital Loss 3,823.78| 31-Mar-2028 3,823.78 31-Mar-2028
Capital Loss 47,508.25| 31-Mar-2029 47,889.00 31-Mar-2029
Capital Loss 1,678.33| 31-Mar-2030 1,526.31 31-Mar-2030
Capital Loss 451.31| 31-Mar-2031 -

Deductible temporary differences * 1,791.53 N/A 1,791.53 N/A

*The deductible temporary differences expire in 8 years from the year the benefit / expense gets realised as per the current tax

legislation.
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Zin Crores
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description Asat| Additions | Deductions/ As at As at For | Deductions/ Upto As at
01-Apr-22 Adjustments | 31-Mar-23 | 01-Apr-22 the year | Adjustments | 31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-23
Land - Freehold 39.37 - - 39.37 = - - - 39.37
Buildings - Freehold 20.95 - - 20.95 1.20 0.24 - 1.44 19.51
Total 60.32 - - 60.32 1.20 0.24 - 1.44 58.88
Gross Block Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Description Asat| Additions | Deductions/ As at As at For | Deductions/ Upto As at
01-Apr-21 Adjustments | 31-Mar-22 | 01-Apr-21 the year | Adjustments | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-22
Land - Freehold 39.37 - - 39.37 - - - - 39.37
Buildings - Freehold 20.95 - - 20.95 0.96 0.24 - 1.20 19.75
Total 60.32 - - 60.32 0.96 0.24 - 1.20 59.12
Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
i Amounts recognised in Profit and Loss for Investment Properties
Rental Income 16.24 16.27
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income (12.97) (5.20)
Profit from Investment Properties before Depreciation 3.27 11.07
Depreciation (0.24) (0.24)
Profit from Investment Properties 3.03 10.83
Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
ii Fair Value
Land and Bulidings 444.38 441.46

Estimation of Fair Value

The Fair Value measurement for all the Investment properties has been categorised as a Level 2 Fair Value based on the ready reckoner
rates available for land and buliding used to determine the same.

Title deeds of all Immovable Properties are held in the name of the Company.
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Projects in process:
Less than 1 year
Total

Unsecured and Considered Good:

(@) Capital Advances

(b) Balances with Government Authorities
(c) Prepaid Expenses

(d)  GST Credit Entitlement

(e) Other Advances

(@) Land (Refer Note a)
(b) Investments (Refer Note b)
Total

Tin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
0.16 0.24
0.16 0.24
Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
58.53 58.53
8.81 156.07
146.83 143.02
45.24 128.70
8.10 21.78
267.50 508.10
TinCrores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
3.35 3.35
- 186.55
3.35 189.90

(@) The Company intends to sell the land and is holding the same for sale. No impairment loss was recognised on reclassification
of the assets as held for sale nor as at reporting date, as the management expects that the fair value (estimated based on the

surrender value) less cost to surrender is higher than the carrying amount.

(b) Asat31 March 2022, the Company had classified the investment in Hemisphere Properties India Limited (HPIL) as held for sale,

which was sold during the current year. (Refer Note 47)
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Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
(i)  Undisputed dues of Micro and Small enterprises [Refer Note below]
Outstanding for:
Less than 1 year 0.13 0.31
0.13 0.31
(ii)  Undisputed dues of creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises
Unbilled and not due 288.99 243.05
Outstanding for:
Less than 1 year 32.01 40.09
1-2 years 4.52 1.48
2-3 years 1.45 0.50
More than 3 years 0.97 047
327.94 285.59
Total 328.07 285.90

The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises based on the information / intimation received by the Company from suppliers

and to the extent such parties have been identified as Micro and Small enterprises, are as under:

As at

31-Mar-2023

(@)  Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the accounting year 0.13

(b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the accounting -
year

(¢)  The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the -

supplier beyond the appointed day

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year -

(e)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting -
year

(f)  The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until 0.05

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

TinCrores

As at
31-Mar-2022

0.31

0.05
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Zin Crores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
At AtFair Designated  Total At At Fair  Designated Total
Particulars Amortised Value atFairValue Amortised Value  at Fair Value
Cost through  through Cost through through
Profitor  Profitor Profit or Profit or
Loss Loss Loss Loss
Secured
(a) Non-Convertible 1,335.00 - - 1,335.00 1,335.00 - - 1,335.00
Debentures [secured by
equitable mortgage of
specified properties and
pledge of shares*]
Unsecured
(b) Non-Convertible 300.00 - - 300.00 1,955.40 - - 1,955.40
Debentures
Total (A) 1,635.00 - - 1,635.00 3,290.40 - - 3,290.40
Debt Securities in India 1,635.00 - - 1,635.00 3,290.40 = - 3,290.40
Debt Securities outside India - - - - - - - -
Total (B) 1,635.00 - - 1,635.00 3,290.40 - - 3,290.40
* carrying amount of shares pledged - ¥ 1,017.39 crores (31 March 2022 ¥ 1,095.43 crores)
Secured Non-Convertible Debentures include:
Zin Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022 | Maturity Date
9.40% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 70.00 70.00 | 27-Nov-2027
8.50% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 85.00 85.00 | 22-Jan-2025
9.30% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 390.00 390.00 | 19-Jun-2024
9.44% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 140.20 140.20 | 2-Jun-2024
9.90% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 240.00 240.00 | 20-Mar-2024
9.74% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 247.80 247.80 | 13-Jan-2024
9.71% Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 162.00 162.00 | 13-Dec-2023
Total 1,335.00 1,335.00
Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures include:
Zin Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022 | Maturity Date
8.04% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures 5.00 5.00 | 2-Sep-2026
8.08% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures 10.00 10.00 | 5-Aug-2026
8.32% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures 140.00 140.00 | 21-May-2023
8.85% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures 145.00 145.00 | 2-May-2023
9.67% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures - 153.40 | 13-Sep-2022
9.71% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures - 114.00 | 29-Aug-2022
7.40% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures - 500.00 | 16-Aug-2022
9.70% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures - 132.00 | 16-Aug-2022
9.70% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures - 271.00 | 25-Jul-2022
9.69% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures - 270.00 | 12-Jun-2022
9.54% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures - 215.00 | 25-Apr-2022
Total 300.00 1,955.40
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Particulars

Unsecured

(@) Loans from Banks [Refer
Note below]

(b) Loans from Others [Refer
Note below]

(c) Commercial Papers

[Maturity date is 12-Jun-
23 and 19-Jun-23]

(d) Inter Corporate Deposits

[Maturity date is 3 months
from date of issue]

(e) Others
Total (A)

Borrowings in India
Borrowings outside India
Total (B)

Zin Crores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
At At Fair Designated Total At At Fair  Designated Total
Amortised Value at Fair Amortised  Value  at FairValue
Cost through Value Cost through through
Profitor through Profit or Profit or Loss
Loss Profit or Loss
Loss

16,434.00 - - 16,434.00 15,158.50 - 15,158.50
2,550.00 - - 2,550.00 12,500.00 - 12,500.00
1,277.31 - - 1,277.31 = = =
12.05 - - 12.05 12.05 = 12.05
0.23 - - 0.23 0.23 - 0.23
20,273.59 - - 20,273.59 27,670.78 - 27,670.78
3,839.59 - - 3,839.59 12512.28 - 12,512.28
16,434.00 - - 16,434.00 15,158.50 - 15,158.50
20,273.59 - - 20,273.59 27,670.78 - 27,670.78

Unsecured Loans from Banks comprise External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) of:

(i)  USD 1.00 billion (31-Mar-2022: USD 1.50 billion) from a consortium of banks, with a weighted average maturity of 5 years and
repayable in 3 equal instalments on 26-Sep-22, 25-Sep-23 and 24-Sep-24.

(i) USD 500 million (31-Mar-2022: USD 500 million) from a consortium of banks, with a weighted average maturity of 5 years and
repayable in 3 equal instalments on 21-Jun-23, 21-Jun-24 and 21-Jun-25.

(iii)  USD 500 million (31-Mar-2022: Nil) from a consortium of banks, with a maturity of 3 years and repayable on 26-Sep-25.

Unsecured Loans from Others comprise Loans from Financials Institutions of:

(i) 1,500 crore repayable on 29-Mar-24. As at 31 March 2022, outstanding loan amounts of ¥ 10,000 crore, ¥ 1,000 crore and ¥ 1,500
crore were repayable on 23-Dec-22, 24-Feb-23 and 29-Mar-24 respectively.

(i) ¥1,050 crore (31-Mar-2022: Nil) repayable on 20-Jun-23.

Interest cost of above loans ranges from 5.50% pa to 9.25% pa.
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ZinCrores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
At AtFair  Designated  Total At At Fair Designated Total

. Amortised Value at Fair Value Amortised Value at Fair Value

Particulars
Cost through through Cost through through
Profit or Profit or Profitor  Profit or Loss
Loss Loss Loss

Unsecured
(@) 7.50% Cumulative 236.52 - - 236.52 239.52 - - 239.52

Redeemable

Preference Shares of

1000 each
(b) 7.25% Cumulative

Redeemable

Preference Shares of

1000 each 31.16 - - 31.16 31.16 - - 31.16
Total (A) 267.68 - - 267.68 270.68 - - 270.68
Subordinated Liabilities 267.68 - - 267.68 270.68 - - 270.68
in India
Subordinated Liabilities
outside India - - - - - - - -
Total (B) 267.68 - - 267.68 270.68 - - 270.68
Preference Shares

The Company has issued Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) having a par value of ¥ 1,000 each. The CRPS do not carry
any voting rights. The CRPS have been issued as per the terms mentioned below:

No of | Rate of Issue period Date of Redemption Date of Put/ Amount (X In crores)
CRPS | Dividend Call Option 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
(where applicable)

1,40,000| 7.50% |July, 2009 to March, 2010 31st March, 2025 + 31st May every year 14.00 14.00

1,60,000| 7.50% |May, 2010 to March, 2011 31st December, 2025 + | 30th September 2022 / 16.00 16.00
31st March 2024

6,86,800| 7.50% |June, 2011 to March, 2012 31st March, 2027 + 31st December, 2023 / 68.68 68.68
30th September, 2025

4,20,000{ 7.50% | April, 2012 to July, 2013 31st March, 2028 + 31st December, 2019/ 39.00 42.00
30th September, 2021
/ 31st March, 2023

2,10,000| 7.50% |July, 2013 to December, 2013 | 30th June, 2023 + 31st March, 2020/ 21.00 21.00
31st December, 2021

1,40,000| 7.50% |January, 2014 to May, 2014 31st December, 2024 + | 30th September,2021 / 14.00 14.00
30th June 2023

2,13,400| 7.50% |July, 2014 to September, 2014 | 30th September, 2024 + | 31st July, 2021 / 21.34 21.34
31st March, 2023

4,25,000 7.50% |August, 2015 1st August, 2025 + 1st August 2022 / 42.50 42.50
1st February 2024

3,11,600{ 7.25% |October, 2016 30th September, 2026 + | 30th June, 2023/ 31.16 31.16
31st March, 2025
Total 267.68 270.68

+ The CRPS may be redeemed at an earlier date in the event of a certain eventuality as may be decided by the Directors of the

Company.
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g in Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
(@) Interest Accrued but not due 159.60 385.43
(b) Liability corresponding to Land Obligation [Refer Note 47] 195.78 271.85
(c) Lease Liabilities [Refer Note 45] 107.26 16.56
(d) Liability on Purchase of Investments - 4.90
(e) Rental Deposits 8.66 8.88
Total 471.30 687.62
Tin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
(@)  Provision for Pension and Employee Benefits [Refer Note 41] 121.64 123.92
(b) Impairment Loss Allowance * 6.42 8.95
(c)  Provision for Other Taxes and Interest thereon (Net) ** 23.72 267.65
(d)  Provision for Liability/Provision of a Subsidiary Company [Refer Note 46] 20,878.07 19,638.07
Total 21,029.85 20,038.59
Notes:
* Impairment Loss Allowance includes:
Sub-standard/Doubtful Loans and Advances 1.07 1.06
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 5.35 7.89
6.42 8.95
**  The above provision includes:
(i)  Provision in respect of matters which were under litigation % Nil (31-Mar-2022 - ¥ 244.01 crores)
(i)  Wealth Tax (Net) ¥ 5.04 crores (31-Mar-2022 - X 5.04 crores)
Zin Crores
Provisions - movement during the year Opening Provision Closing balance
balance charged / 31st March 2023
1st April 2022 (written back)
during the year
Impairment Loss Allowance 8.95 (2.54) 6.41
15.91 (6.96) 8.95
Provision for Other Taxes and Interest thereon (Net) 267.65 (243.93) 23.72
249.05 18.60 267.65
Provision for Liability/Provision of a Subsidiary Company 19,638.07 1,240.00 20,878.07
18,489.97 1,148.10 19,638.07
Note: Previous year's figures are in italics
Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
(@) Statutory Dues Payable 41.72 26.03
(b) Others 3.13 3.38
Total 44.85 29.41
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Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Authorised Share Capital
30,00,000 (31-Mar-2022: 30,00,000) Ordinary Shares of ¥ 1000 each 300.00 300.00
550,00,000 (31-Mar-2022: 550,00,000) Cumulative Redeemable Preference 5,500.00 5,500.00
Shares of ¥ 1000 each
Total 5,800.00 5,800.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid Up Share Capital
4,04,146 (31-Mar-2022: 4,04,146) Ordinary Shares of ¥ 1000 each 40.41 40.41
Total 40.41 40.41
Refer Note 19 for Preference Shares
Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
ordi Share Capital As at 31-Mar-2023 As at 31-Mar-2022
rdinary Share Capita No. I Crores No. < Crores
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,04,146 40.41 4,04,146 40.41
Shares Issued and subscribed during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,04,146 40.41 4,04,146 40.41

Ordinary Shares

The Company has one class of ordinary shares having a par value of ¥ 1,000 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General

Meeting.

Dividends

The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company:

Zin Crores

Particulars Year ended 31-Mar-2023* Year ended 31-Mar-2022
Per share ) Amount Per share ) Amount
On Ordinary Shares 17,500.00 707.26 10,000.00 404.15

* The dividend has been considered and recommended by the Board, the same shall be accounted once approved at the ensuing

Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Details of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares is as follows:

No. of Ordinary Shares held

Name of the Shareholders

31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Sir Dorabji Tata Trust 1,13,067 1,13,067
Sir Ratan Tata Trust 95,211 95,211
Sterling Investment Corporation Private Limited 37,122 37,122
Cyrus Investments Private Limited 37,122 37,122
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Details of shares held by promoters:

Name of the Promoter No. of Ordinary Shares held
31-Mar-2022 Change during 31-Mar-2023 % of total
the year Shares
Sir Dorabji Tata Trust 1,13,067 - 1,13,067 27.98
Sir Ratan Tata Trust 95,211 - 95,211 23.56
Sarvajanik Seva Trust 396 - 396 0.10
RD Tata Trust 8,838 - 8,838 2.19
Tata Education Trust 15,075 - 15,075 3.73
Tata Social Welfare Trust 15,075 - 15,075 3.73
JRD Tata Trust 16,200 - 16,200 4.01
T in Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Summary
(@) Capital Redemption Reserve 4,607.36 4,607.36
(b)  Securities Premium 36.67 36.67
(c) Special Reserve u/s 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 14,673.50 10,247.00
(d) General Reserve 6,524.36 6,524.36
(e) Retained Earnings 65,056.82 47,765.97
(f)  Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) - 13.63
(g) Cash Flow Hedge Reserve (381.65) (395.29)
(h)  Cost of Hedging Reserve 94.00 62.00
Total 90,611.06 68,861.70
Movement
(a) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance and Closing Balance during the year 4,607.36 4,607.36
(b) Securities Premium
Opening Balance and Closing Balance during the year 36.67 36.67
(c) Special Reserve u/s 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Opening Balance 10,247.00 6,812.50
Add: Transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 4,426.50 3,434.50
Closing Balance 14,673.50 10,247.00
(d) General Reserve
Opening Balance and Closing Balance during the year 6,524.36 6,524.36
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(e) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Add: Transfer from OCl on disposal of Equity Instruments
Transferred to:
Special Reserve
Deductions:
Dividends - Ordinary
Closing Balance

(f) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
Opening Balance
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Transfer to Retained Earnings on disposal of Equity Instruments
Closing Balance

(g) Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
Opening Balance
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Closing Balance

(h) Cost of Hedging Reserve
Opening Balance
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Closing Balance
Total

Notes:

(a) Capital Redemption Reserve

TinCrores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
47,765.97 34,424.58
22,123.19 17,173.42
(1.69) 6.62
4,426.50 3,434.50
404.15 404.15
65,056.82 47,765.97
13.63 55.92
(15.32) (35.67)
1.69 (6.62)
- 13.63
(395.29) (685.23)
13.64 289.94
(381.65) (395.29)
62.00 3.49
32.00 58.51
94.00 62.00
90,611.06 68,861.70

The Company creates capital redemption reserve from its retained earnings upon issuance and subscription of Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) as applicable. This reserve Includes an amount of ¥ 4,325.36 crores (31-Mar-2022 -

% 4,322.36 crores) in respect of CRPS, which have been redeemed till date.

(b) Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of Ordinary shares issued and subscribed is recognised in Securities Premium.

(c) Special Reserve u/s 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The Company creates the Special Reserve as required by Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(d) General Reserve

General Reserve is a free reserve created by transfer from retained earnings to meet future obligations or for other purposes.
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(e)

(f)

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, capital
redemption reserve, special reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders and includes balance of remeasurement
of net defined benefit plans. Retained Earnings is a free reserve.

Equity Instruments through OCI

The Company has elected to Fair Value certain equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income and this balance
represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of such equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

(g) CashFlow Hedge Reserve
Effective portion of fair value gain/ (loss) on all financial instruments designated in a cash flow hedge relationship are accumulated
in Cash Flow Hedge Reserve.
(h) Cost of Hedging Reserve
Fair value gain / (loss) attributable to cost of hedge on all financial instruments designated in a cash flow hedge relationship are
accumulated in Cost of Hedging Reserve.
Tin Crores
Year ended 31-Mar-2023 Year ended 31-Mar-2022
On Financial On Financial Interest On Financial ~ On Financial Interest
Assets Assets Income on Assets Assets Income on
measured measured at Financial measured  measured at Financial
at Fair Value Amortised Assets at Fair Value Amortised Assets
through OCI Cost classified at through OCI Cost  classified at
Fair Value Fair Value
through through Profit
Profit or Loss or Loss
Interest on Loans - 84.22 - = 121.24 =
Interest on Bank Deposits, - 154.56 - - 105.65 -
Treasury Bills and Bonds [Refer
Note 34]
Other Interest Income - 0.09 - - - -
Total - 238.87 - - 226.89 -
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Dividends from:
(i) Subsidiary Companies
(i) Associate Companies
Total

Investment Property Rentals [Refer Note 12]
Other Rental Income
Total

Net Gain/ (Loss) on Financial Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
- Investments in Mutual Funds and Government Securities

Total

Fair Value Changes:

Realised

Unrealised

Total

Brand Subscription Income
Income from Other Services
Total

T in Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
30,491.15 9,942.92
2,760.50 1,556.06
33,251.65 11,498.98

T in Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
16.24 16.27
3.94 3.06
20.18 19.33

T in Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
360.76 1.80
360.76 1.80
343.22 12.21
17.54 (10.41)
360.76 1.80

T in Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
1,007.96 820.39
7.63 5.74
1,015.59 826.13

Note: The above disaggregated revenue comprises of Brand Subscription Income and Consultancy Services which is recognised over

a period of time at the value to which the Company has an enforceable right to payment.
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Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Net Gain / (Loss) on foreign currency transaction and translation (other than considered 14.31 1.49
as Finance Cost)
Interest on refunds of Income Tax (Net) 29.93 192.17
Profit on sale of Investments / buyback of Securities / premium on redemption of 29.92 11,357.32
debentures
Provisions no longer required written back 48.14 -
Miscellaneous Income 49.11 8.86
Total 171.42 11,559.84
Zin Crores
Year ended 31-Mar-2023 Year ended 31-Mar-2022
On Financial On Financial OnFinancial ~ On Financial
Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities
measured  measured at measured measured at
at FairValue = Amortised at Fair Value Amortised
through Cost through Profit Cost
Profit or Loss or Loss
Interest on Debt Securities - 197.57 = 376.82
Interest on Borrowings - 1,795.28 = 1,853.94
Interest on Subordinated Liabilities - 20.22 - 20.22
Interest on Lease Liabilities - 6.51 - 1.60
Reclassification of amount recognised in Cost of Hedging - 40.64 - 76.54
Reserve
Net (Gain) / Loss on ineffective portion of Hedges - 1.56 - (3.63)
Other Finance Costs - 54.32 - 21.18
Total - 2,116.10 - 2,346.67
Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Salaries, Bonus etc. 414.56 403.75
Company's Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 6.51 6.85
Staff Welfare Expenses 9.44 9.40
Total 430.51 420.00

Note: Salaries, Bonus etc includes amounts reimbursed to other companies aggregating ¥ 109.29 crores (2021-22:

% 91.72 crores)
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Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Rent 3.32 3.01
Rates and Taxes 32.24 10.40
Insurance 10.41 9.29
Payment to Auditors
Audit Fees 1.40 1.40
Tax Audit Fees 0.10 0.10
Fees for other services 0.05 0.01
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.04 0.01
1.59 1.52
Repairs and Maintenance:
Plant and Machinery 0.28 0.41
Buildings 7.60 3.29
Others 8.12 5.56
16.00 9.26
Impairment Loss Allowance (2.58) (8.68)
Loss on sale of Investments / buyback of Securities / premium on 269.88 -
redemption of debentures
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility 58.35 129.00
Expenditure on combatting Covid-19 (1.40) 155.07
Donations 239.90 5.45
Consultancy Fees 129.32 109.27
Loss/(Gain) on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) (0.29) (0.02)
Sponsorships 180.00 41.69
Other Expenses 262.15 207.53
Total 1,198.88 672.79
Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Interest on Debt Securities 197.57 376.82
Interest on Borrowings 1,795.28 1,853.94
Interest on Subordinated Liabilities 20.22 20.22
Interest on Lease Liabilities 6.51 1.60
Reclassification of amount recognised in Cost of Hedging Reserve 40.64 76.54
Net (Gain) / Loss on ineffective portion of Hedges 1.56 (3.63)
Other Borrowing Costs 54.32 21.18
2,116.10 2,346.67
Less: Earnings from Bank Deposits, Treasury Bills, Bonds, Mutual Funds etc. 515.32 107.45
Total 1,600.78 2,239.22
Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Net Profit attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 22,132.38 17,171.21
Number of Ordinary Shares 4,04,146 4,04,146
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Ordinary Share (in %) Face Value ¥ 1000 each 5,47,633 4,24,876
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Accounting Classification and Fair Values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair
value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable
or unobservable and consist of the following three levels:

Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part
using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions
in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Tin Crores
Carrying amount Fair value
As at 31-Mar-2023 Hedging FVTPL |FVTOCI | Amortised | Total Level 1 Level2 |Level3
Instruments- Cost
FVOCI
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - 15.36 15.36 - - -
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above - - - 435.65 435.65 - - -
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments
Principal only Swaps 26.11 - - - 26.11 - 26.11 -
Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps 1,191.33 - - -1 1,191.33 -1 1,191.33 -
Interest Rate Swaps 81.08 - - - 81.08 - 81.08 -
(d) Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables - - - 70.80 70.80 - - -
(i) Other Receivables - - - 1.85 1.85 - - -
(e) Loansand Advances - - - 39.08 39.08 - - -
(f) Investments in Equity Instruments - - 0.09 - 0.09 0.09 - -
(Excl. Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures) *
(g) Investment in Mutual Funds -1 1,082.79 - -| 1,082.79 | 1,082.79 -
(h) Investment in Government Securities - - - - - - - -
(i) Preference Shares -| 6,700.00 - -| 6,700.00 -| 6,700.00 -
(j) Optionally Convertible Debentures - - - - - - - -
(k) Other Financial Assets - 195.78 - 2,376.38| 2,572.16 195.78 - -
1,298.52 | 7,978.57 0.09| 2,939.12|12,216.30| 1,278.66 | 7,998.52 -
Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments
Principal only Swaps - - - - - - - -
Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - - - - - - - -
Interest Rate Swaps - - - - - - - -
(b) Trade Payables - - - 328.07 328.07 - - -
(c) Debt Securities - - -| 1,635.00| 1,635.00 -| 1,635.00 -
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt - - -| 20,273.59| 20,273.59 -1 20,273.59 -
Securities)
(e) Subordinated Liabilities - - - 267.68 267.68 - 267.68 -
(f) Other Financial Liabilities - 195.78 - 275.52 471.30 195.78 - -
- 195.78 -| 22,779.86 | 22,975.64 195.78 | 22,176.27 -




W

TATA
A. Accounting Classification and Fair Values (Contd.)
Zin Crores
Carrying amount Fair value
As at 31-Mar-2022 Hedging FVTPL |FVTOCI |Amortised | Total Level1 | Level2 |Level3
Instruments- Cost
FVOCI

Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - 16.45 16.45 - - -
(b) Bank Balances other than (a) above - - - 435,59 435,59 - - -
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments - - - - - - - -

Principal only Swaps 79.30 - - - 79.30 - 79.30 -

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps 494.49 - - - 494.49 - 494.49 -
(d) Receivables -

(i) Trade Receivables - - - 2.20 2.20 - - -

(i) Other Receivables - - - 0.18 0.18 - - -
(e) Loansand Advances - - - 1,911.60 1,911.60 - - -
(f) Investments in Equity Instruments - - 0.09 - 0.09 0.09 - -

(Excl. Subsidiaries, Associates and

Joint Ventures) *
(g9) Investment in Mutual Funds - 860.42 - - 860.42 860.42 - -
(h) Investment in Government Securities -1 2,403.03 - -|  2403.03| 2,403.03 - -
(i) Preference Shares - 3,721.00 - 3,721.00 3,721.00
(j) Optionally Convertible Debentures -l 1,362.60 - - 1,362.60 - 1,362.60 -
(k) Other Financial Assets 271.85 - 860.22 1,132.07 271.85 -

573.79| 8,618.90 0.09 3,226.24| 12,419.02| 3,53539| 5,657.39 -

Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments
Forward Contracts - - - - - - - -

Foreign Currency Options - - - - - - - B
Principal only Swaps - - - - - - - R
Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - -
Interest Rate Swaps 64.14 - - - 64.14

64.14 -

(b) Trade Payables - - - 285.90 285.90 - - -

(c) Debt Securities - - - 3,290.40 3,290.40 - 3,290.40 -

(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt - - -| 27,670.78| 27,670.78 -| 27,670.78 -
Securities)

(e) Subordinated Liabilities - - - 270.68 270.68 - 270.68 -

(f) Other Financial Liabilities - 271.85 - 415.77 687.62 271.85 - -

64.14 271.85 -1 31,933.53| 32,269.52 271.85( 31,296.00 -

* Investment in equity share includes investment of ¥ 0.09 crore in Tata Services Limited, fair value of which is not substantially different
from carrying value.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial
liabilities as on 31-Mar-2023 and 31-Mar-2022 approximated their fair value.
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B. Measurement of Fair Values

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 fair values, for financial instruments measured at
fair value in the statement of financial position, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

Type Valuation Technique

Derivative Instruments The fair value of derivative financial instruments is based on observable market
inputs including currency spot, forward rate, yield curves currency volatility, credit
quality of counterparties, interest rate and forward rate curves of the underlying
instruments etc. and use of appropriate valuation models.

Optionally convertible debentures The fair value of investment in OCD is based on the valuation report by an
independent valuer using 'sum of the parts (SOTP)' approach i.e. techniques such
as market price, recent transaction, comparable companies methods are used for
different business segment of the entity under consideration.

Investment in Mutual Funds The Fair values of investments in Mutual Fund Units is based on the Net Asset
Value [NAV] as stated by the issuer of these Mutual Fund Units in the published
statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer
will issue further units of Mutual Funds and the price at which issuers will redeem
such units from the investors.

Financial assets and financial liabilities Fair value is determined using the discounted cash flow method which considers
measured at FVTPL the present value of expected receipt/payment discounted using appropriate
discounting rates.

Financial assets and financial liabilities Discounted cash flow method: The valuation model considers the present value of
measured at amortised cost expected receipt/payment discounted using appropriate discounting rates.

Fair value of borrowings which have a quoted market price in an active market is
based on its market price.

C. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
. Credit risk;
. Liquidity risk; and
. Market risk
i Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company’s risk
management framework.

The company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly.

The terms of reference of the audit committee of the Company includes evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems. The audit committee is assisted by internal audit conducted by the Internal auditor appointed by
the Board. Internal audit findings are presented to the audit committee.
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Financial risk management (Contd.)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivables from customers; loans and investments in
debt securities.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Trade rceivables
Trade receivables comprises of brand subscription income, consultancy fees and reimbursement of expenses.
The Company's exposure is largely limited to receivables from group companies.

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Opening Loss Allowance 3.63 5.36
Add: Changes in Loss Allowance (0.04) (1.73)
Closing Loss Allowance 3.59 3.63

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Bank Balances

The company holds cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances aggregating ¥ 451.90 crores (31-Mar-2022:
% 452.04 crores). The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an
ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Investments

The company had limited its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid debt securities (Mutual Funds and
Government Securities) that have an investment grade credit rating. The company monitors changes in credit risk by
tracking published external credit ratings.

Loans

Other loans and advances comprises of Security Deposits, Loan to Subsidiaries and other recoverables.

Credit risk from other loans and advances has not increased significantly since initial recognition, accordingly the
expected probability of default is low. The loss allowance on substandard/doubtful and standard assets is provided
for as below:

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Opening Loss Allowance 8.95 15.91
Add: Changes in Loss Allowance (2.54) (6.95)
Closing Loss Allowance 6.42 8.95
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C. Financial risk management (Contd.)

[18

L.

Credit risk (Contd.)
(e) Other financial assets
Recoverable under Contractual Obligation [Refer Note 48]

The loss allowance on the same is provided for as below:

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Opening Loss Allowance 699.43 699.43
Add: Changes in Loss Allowance - -
Closing Loss Allowance 699.43 699.43

(f) Derivative Financial Instruments
The derivative contracts are entered into with banks, which have good credit ratings.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities thatare settled by delivering cash oranotherfinancial asset. Prudent liquidity risk managementimplies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity analysis based on their contractual
maturities for all derivative and non derivative financial liabilities.

Zin Crores
As at 31-Mar-2023 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total 1yearor | 1-2years | 2-5years |More than
less 5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 328.07 328.07 328.07 - - -
Debt securities
Non-Convertible Debentures
Non-Convertible Debentures-Principal 1,635.00 1,635.00 934.80 615.20 85.00 -
Non-Convertible Debentures-Interest 49.00 239.31 152.63 64.52 22.16 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities):
Term loans from banks

External Commercial Borrowing-Principal 16,434.00 | 16,434.00 | 5,477.86| 5,477.86| 5,478.28 -

External Commercial Borrowing-Interest 58.03 1,249.58 799.10 363.91 86.57 -
Term Loan from Others

Principal 2,550.00| 2,550.00| 2,550.00 - - -

Interest 32.22 172.03 172.03 - - -
Intercorporate deposits 12.05 12.05 12.05 - - -
Commercial papers 1,277.31 1,300.00 | 1,300.00 - - -
Others 0.23 0.23 0.23 - - -
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C. Financial risk management (Contd.)
iii. Liquidity Risk (Contd.)

Zin Crores
Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at 31-Mar-2023 amount Total 1yearor | 1-2years | 2-5years |More than
less 5 years
Subordinated liabilities
7.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
7.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 236.52 236.52 21.00 49.34 166.18 -
Shares-Principal
7.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 17.96 70.68 17.96 16.56 33.23 293
Shares-Interest
7.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
7.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 31.16 31.16 - - 31.16 -
Shares-Principal
7.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 2.26 10.17 2.26 2.26 5.65 -
Shares-Interest
Other financial liabilities
Interest Accrued but not due 0.13 0.13 0.13 - - -
Liability corresponding to Land Obligation 195.78 195.78 195.78 - - -
Lease Liabilities 107.26 121.42 26.58 26.14 68.70 -
Rental Deposits 8.66 8.66 5.99 0.57 2.10 -
Total 22,915.64 | 24,594.79 |11,996.47 | 6,616.36 | 5,979.03 293
Derivative financial liabilities
Principal only swaps
- Outflow - - - - - -
- Inflow - - - - - -
Cross currency interest rate swap
- Outflow - - - - - -
- Inflow - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -

Addtionally the table below analyses the Company’s derivative financial assets into maturity analysis based on their
contractual maturities for all derivative financial assets. The amounts disclosed in the below table are gross and
undiscounted.

Zin Crores

As at 31-Mar-2023 Carrying Contractual cash flows

amount Total 1yearor |1-2years | 2-5years |More than

less 5 years

Derivative financial assets
Principal only swaps 26.11
- Outflow 2,963.53| 1,772.54| 1,190.99 - -
- Inflow (2,930.73)|(1,739.26)|(1,191.47) - -
Interest rate swaps 81.08
- Outflow 140.82 101.72 39.10 - -
- Inflow (222.44)| (167.22) (55.22) - -
Cross currency interest rate swap 1,191.33
- Outflow 13,137.58| 4,841.24| 3,719.78| 4,576.56 -
- Inflow (13,956.29)| (5,309.97)| (4,040.22)| (4,606.10) -
Total 1,298.52 (900.33)| (534.23)| (336.56) (29.54) -
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C. Financial risk management (Contd.)

iii. Liquidity Risk (Contd.)

Zin Crores
As at 31-Mar-2022 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amount Total 1yearor | 1-2years | 2-5years |More than
less 5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 285.90 285.90 285.90 - - -
Debt securities
Non-Convertible Debentures
Non-Convertible Debentures-Principal 3,290.40 3,290.40 | 1,655.40 934.80 630.20 70.00
Non-Convertible Debentures-Interest 152.86 513.39 301.29 160.92 44.60 6.58
Borrowings (other than debt securities):
Term loans from banks
External Commercial Borrowing-Principal 15,158.50 15,158.50| 3,789.63| 5,052.71 6,316.16 -
External Commercial Borrowing-Interest 17.01 445.48 173.06 182.65 89.77 -
Term Loan from Others
Principal 12,500.00 | 12,500.00| 11,000.00| 1,500.00 - -
Interest 195.21 888.38 790.51 97.87 - -
Intercorporate deposits 12.05 12.05 12.05 - - -
Others 0.23 0.23 0.23 - - -
Subordinated liabilities
7.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
7.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 239.52 239.52 42.00 21.00 176.52 -
Shares-Principal
7.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 17.96 74.00 17.96 17.96 32.92 5.15
Shares-Interest
7.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
7.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 31.16 31.16 - - 31.16 -
Shares-Principal
7.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 2.26 12.43 2.26 2.26 6.78 1.13
Shares-Interest
Other financial liabilities
Interest accrued but not due 0.13 0.13 0.13 - - -
Liability corresponding to Land Obligation 271.85 271.85 271.85 - - -
Lease Liabilities 16.56 18.84 8.32 5.68 484 -
Liability on Purchase of Investments 4.90 4.90 4.90 - - -
Rental Deposits 8.88 8.88 4.82 3.40 0.66 -
Total 32,205.38 | 33,756.04 |18,360.31| 7,979.25| 7,333.61 82.86
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swap 64.14
- Outflow 305.49 163.97 102.42 39.10 -
- Inflow (232.29) (90.35) (102.82) (39.12) -
Total 64.14 73.20 73.62 (0.40) (0.02) -
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Financial risk management (Contd.)

Liquidity Risk (Contd.)

Addtionally the table below analyses the Company’s derivative financial assets into maturity analysis based on their
contractual maturities for all derivative financial assets. The amounts disclosed in the below table are gross and
undiscounted.

Zin Crores
Carrying Contractual cash flows
As at 31-Mar-2022 amount Total 1yearor| 1-2years | 2-5 years | More than
less 5 years
Derivative financial assets
Principal only swaps 79.30
- Outflow 4,805.84| 4,805.84 - - -
- Inflow (4,812.82)| (4,812.82) - - -
Cross currency interest rate swap 494.49
- Outflow 10,825.42| 3,461.78| 3,591.41| 3,772.23 -
- Inflow (10,864.22)| (3,278.32)| (3,671.73)| (3,914.17) =
Total 573.79 (45.78)] 176.48 (80.32)] (141.94) -
iv. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Company is exposed to market risk
primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management is to avoid
excessive exposure in foreign currency revenues and costs.

a) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has foreign currency borrowings, trade payables and receivables
and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Exposure to Currency Risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31-Mar-2023 and 31-Mar-2022 are as below:

% in Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-2023
usb GBP EUR| Others
Amount receivable on income from services 122.96 108.71 40.27| 106.74
Amount payable on account of expenditure (16.38) (6.99) (0.71) (0.54)
External commercial borrowing [ECB] (16,434.00) - - -
Interest accrued but not due on ECB (58.03) - - -
Exposure (16,385.45) 101.72 39.56 106.20
Effect of forwards, principal only swaps and cross currency interest
rate swaps, coupon only swaps and options 16,492.03 - - -
Net exposure 106.58 101.72 39.56| 106.20
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C. Financial risk management (Contd.)
iv. Market Risk (Contd.)
a)  Currency Risk (Contd.)

Exposure to Currency Risk Zin Crores
) 31-Mar-2022

Particulars

usb GBP EUR Others
Amount receivable on income from services 42.74 107.02 37.89 62.54
Amount payable on account of expenditure (7.08) (2.91) (0.68) (0.46)
External commercial borrowing [ECB] (15,158.50) - - -
Interest accrued but not due on ECB (17.01) - - -
Exposure (15,139.85) 104.11 37.21 62.08
Effect of forwards, principal only swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps, coupon only swaps and options 15,175.51 - - -
Net exposure 35.66 104.11 37.21 62.08

Sensitivity Analysis

A 1% strengthening / weakening of the respective foreign currencies with respect to the functional currency of the
Company would result in increase or decrease in profit and loss and equity as shown in table below.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of
forecast sales and purchases. The following analysis has been worked out based on the exposures as of the date of
statements of financial position.

Zin Crores
Particulars Profit / (Loss) Gross of Tax Equity Gross of Tax
As at 31-Mar-2023 Strengthening | Weakening |Strengthening | Weakening
usbD (1.07) 1.07 - -
GBP (1.02) 1.02 - -
EUR (0.40) 0.40 - -
Others (1.06) 1.06 - -
Effect of forward, principal only swap and
cross currency interest rate swaps and
options (USD Sensitivity) - - 222.57 (222.57)
As at 31-Mar-2022
usD (0.36) 0.36 - -
GBP (1.04) 1.04 - -
EUR (0.37) 0.37 - -
Others (0.62) 0.62 - -
Effect of forward, principal only swap and
cross currency interest rate swaps and
options (USD Sensitivity) - - 148.19 (151.07)

The company has entered into derivative contracts to hedge foreign currency exposure and the amount shown in
equity represents effective portion of these hedges.

As the ineffective portion is not significant, the same has not been disclosed separately.
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iv. Market Risk (Contd.)
b) Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to Interest risk if the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of interest
bearing instruments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of floating interest bearing instruments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk

Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Fixed-rate Instruments

Financial Liabilities 3,842.27 3,573.36
Effect of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps 16,434.00 15,158.50
20,276.27 18,731.86

Variable-rate Instruments
Financial Liabilities 18,334.00 27,658.50
Effect of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps (16,434.00) (15,158.50)
1,900.00 12,500.00

Interest Rate Sensitivity - Fixed Rate Instruments

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company has fixed rate interest bearing liabilities where no interest rate risk
is perceived. For the floating rate interest bearing liabilities which have been hedged and converted into fixed rate
interest bearing liabilities, the hedge is expected to be fully effective and hence there is no interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Sensitivity - Floating Rate Instruments

The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or
loss for a year, based on the floating rate financial liabilities held as at each reporting date, after considering the effect
of hedging instruments.

The following table demonstrates sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates (all other variables
being constant) of the Company's statement of profit and loss.

Profit / (Loss) Gross of Tax
1% increase 1% decrease
As at 31-Mar-2023 (19.00) 19.00

As at 31-Mar-2022 (125.00) 125.00
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Market Risk (Contd.)

)

Hedge Accounting

As part of its risk management strategy, the Company makes use of financial derivative instruments, including
principal only swaps, coupon only swaps, cross currency interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts,
for hedging the risk embedded in some of its financial liabilities recognized on the balance sheet. The objective of
hedge accounting is to represent, in the Company’s financial statements, the effect of the Company’s use of financial
instruments to manage exposures arising from particular risks that could affect profit or loss.

For derivative contracts designated as hedge, the Company documents, at inception, the economic relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, the hedge ratio, the risk management objective for
undertaking the hedge and the methods used to assess the hedge effectiveness. The tenor of hedging instrument
may be less than or equal to the tenor of underlying hedged liability.

Financial contracts designated as hedges are accounted for in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109
depending upon the type of hedge. The Company applies cash flow hedge accounting to hedge the variability in the
future cash flows attributable to interest rate risk on floating rate liabilities and liabilities subject to foreign exchange
risk.

The Company has a Board approved policy on assessment, measurement and monitoring of hedge effectiveness
which provides a guideline for the evaluation of hedge effectiveness, treatment and monitoring of the hedge
effective position from an accounting and risk monitoring perspective. Hedge effectiveness is ascertained at the time
of inception of the hedge and periodically thereafter. The Company assesses hedge effectiveness both on prospective
and retrospective basis. The prospective hedge effectiveness test is a forward looking evaluation of whether or not
the changes in the cash flows of the hedging position are expected to be highly effective on offsetting the changes
in the cash flows of the hedged position over the term of the relationship. On the other hand, the retrospective
hedge effectiveness test is a backward-looking evaluation of whether the changes in the cash flows of the hedging
position have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged position since the date of
designation of the hedge.

Hedge effectiveness is assessed through the application of critical terms match method. Any ineffectiveness in a
hedging relationship is accounted for in the statement of profit and loss. The Company determines the existence of
an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item based on the currency, amount and
timing of their respective cash flows. The Company assesses whether the derivative designated in each hedging
relationship is expected to be and has been effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item using the
hypothetical derivative method.
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iv.
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)

Hedge Accounting (Contd.)

The company has adopted cash flow accounting model as per Ind AS 109 for the instruments discussed below:

Sr | Type of Hedged Description of Hedging Hedging Description of Hedging Type of
No Risk/ Item Strategy Instrument Instrument Hedging
Hedge Relationship
position
1 |Interest Floating rate | Floating rate financial Interest rate | Interest rate swap is a Cash flow
rate hedge | financial liability is converted into a | swap derivative instrument hedge
liability fixed rate financial liability whereby the Company
using a floating to fixed receives at a floating rate in
interest rate swap. This return for a fixed rate asset
is usually denominated or liability.
in the currency of the
underlying (which in most
cases is the functional
currency). if not, it may be
combined currency swap.
2 | Currency Foreign FCY denominated Principal A derivative contract to Cash flow
risk hedge | currency financial liability is only swap convert fixed amount hedge
(FCY) converted into functional denominated in FCY to
denominated | currency using a principal functional currency at the
financial only swap which consists time of initial recognition
liability of a near leg and far leg. and to convert it back
The near leg swaps the into FCY at the time of
cashflow at the inception settlement.
into functional currency
and far leg swaps the
financial liability into
the FCY for purpose of
settlement.
3 | Currency Foreign FCY denominated Fx forward | Forward contracts are Cash flow
risk hedge | currency financial liability is contracts contractual agreementsto | hedge
(FCY) converted into functional buy a specified financial
denominated | currency using a plain instrument at a specific price
financial vanilla foreign currency and date in the future. These
liability forward contract. are customized contracts
transacted in the over-the-
counter market.
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Hedge Accounting (Contd.)

denominated in one
currency into another
currency at a pre-agreed
exchange rate on a specified
date.

Sr | Typeof Hedged Description of Hedging Hedging Description of Hedging Type of
No Risk/ Item Strategy Instrument Instrument Hedging
Hedge Relationship
position
4 | Interest Foreign Floating rate FCY Cross In a cross currency swap, the | - Cash flow
rate and currency denominated financial Currency Company pays a specified hedge for
currency (FCY) liability is converted into | Interest Rate | amount in one currency and | interest rate
risk Hedge | denominated | fixed rate liability in the Swaps receives a specified amount | risk
floating rate | functional currency in another currency.
financial - Cash flow
liability Cross currency interest rate | hedge for
swaps are Cross currency currency
swaps that involve the risk on the
exchange of interest interest
payments on one specified
currency for interest - Cashflow
payments in another hedge for
specified currency for a currency risk
specified period. on principal
5 | Currency Foreign FCY denominated Fx A currency option is Cash flow
risk hedge | currency financial liability is purchased | a derivative financial hedge
(FCY) converted into functional | option instrument that gives the
denominated | currency using a forward right to the Company
financial option but not the obligation
liability to exchange money

The Company, inter alia, takes into account the following criteria for constructing a hedge structure as part of its

hedging strategy:

(@) The hedge is undertaken to reduce the variability in the profit & loss i.e. the profit or loss arising from the hedge
structure should be lesser than the profit & loss on the standalone underlying exposure. In case of cash flow
hedge for covering interest rate risk the hedge shall be only undertaken to convert floating cash flows to fixed
cash flows i.e. the underlying has to be a floating rate liability.

(b) At any point in time the outstanding notional value of the derivative deal(s) undertaken for the purpose of
hedging shall not exceed the underlying portfolio notional. The hedge ratio therefore does not exceed 100% at
the time of establishing the hedging relationship.

(c) Atany point in time the maturity of each underlying forming a part of the cluster/portfolio hedged shall be
higher than the maturity of the derivative hedging instrument.
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Market Risk (Contd.)
c) Hedge Accounting (Contd.)

The following table provides a reconciliation by risk category of components of equity and analysis of OCl items,
net of tax, resulting from cash flow hedge accounting:

Particulars

Opening Balance

Cash Flow Hedges

Changes in fair value:

Foreign Currency risk

Forward Contracts

Foreign Currency Options

Principal only Swaps

Interest Rate risk

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps
Interest Rate Swaps

Amount reclassified to Profit or Loss:

Foreign Currency risk

Forward Contracts

Foreign Currency Options

Principal only Swaps

Interest Rate risk

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps
Interest Rate Swaps

Deferred Tax

Closing Balance

Equity head 'Effective portion
of cash flow hedges'

Zin Crores

Equity head
'Cost of hedging'

As at As at As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022  31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
(395.29) (685.23) 62.00 3.49
(69.74) (146.15) 16.55 (10.47)
647.92 426.37 47.35 31.14
145.22 233.10 - -
138.92 158.33 (19.59) 13.29
(608.36) (244.84) (12.31) 24.54
(41.78) (1.36) - -
(198.54) (135.51) - -
(381.65) (395.29) 94.00 62.00
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The objective of capital management policy is to support the operations of the Company and maximise shareholder value while
complying with relevant capital requirements and maintaining strong credit ratings, healthy capital ratios.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However,

they are under constant review by the Board.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio amongst others of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity' For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances in deposit accounts and investment in Mutual Funds. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity other than

amounts accumulated in the effective portion of cash flow hedges and cost of hedging.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows:

Total Liabilities

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Less: Other Bank Balances in Deposit Accounts
Less: Mutual Funds and Government Securities
Adjusted Net Debt

Total Equity

Less: effective portion of cash flow hedges
Less: cost of hedging

Adjusted Equity

Adjusted Net Debt to Adjusted Equity Ratio

Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
45,024.86 53,116.24
15.36 16.45
435.10 435.10
1,082.79 3,263.45
43,491.61 49,401.24
90,651.47 68,902.11
(381.65) (395.29)
94.00 62.00
90,939.12 69,235.40
0.48 0.71
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(m

(2)

(3)

(m

(2)

ASSETS
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

b) Bank Balances other than (a) above

(
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments
(d) Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Other Receivables
(e) Loans and Advances
(f) Investments
(g) Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net)
b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
) Investment Property
) Property, Plant and Equipment
) Capital Work-in-Progress

[N

oD an

(
(
(
(
(
(g) Other Intangible Assets

(h) Other Non-Financial Assets
Total Non Financial Assets
Assets Held for Sale

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative Financial Instruments
(b) Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises
c) Debt Securities

e) Subordinated Liabilities

f) Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities
Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) CurrentTax Liabilities (Net)

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Provisions

(d) Other-Non Financial Liabilities
Total Non Financial Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Intangible Assets under Development

(

(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
(e)

(

Tin Crores

31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total

months months months months

15.36 - 15.36 16.45 - 16.45
435.65 - 435.65 435.59 - 435,59
534.23 764.30 1,298.53 (176.47) 750.26 573.79
70.80 - 70.80 2.20 - 2.20
1.85 - 1.85 0.18 = 0.18
11.02 28.06 39.08 1,882.12 29.48 1,911.60
1,082.79 1,29,203.56 1,30,286.35 3,26345 1,13,340.56 1,16,604.01
2,572.16 - 2,572.16 1,132.07 - 1,132.07
4,723.86 1,29,995.92 1,34,719.78 6,555.59 1,14,120.30  1,20,675.89
- 440.74 440.74 - 473.17 473.17
- 58.88 58.88 = 59.12 59.12
- 182.77 182.77 - 102.90 102.90
- 0.16 0.16 - 0.24 0.24
- 3.15 3.15 - 9.04 9.04
198.71 68.79 267.50 289.52 218.57 508.09
198.71 754.49 953.20 289.52 863.04 1,152.56
3.35 - 3.35 189.90 - 189.90
4,92592 1,30,750.41 1,35,676.33 7,035.01 1,14,983.34 1,22,018.35
- - - 73.62 (9.48) 64.14
0.13 - 0.13 0.31 - 0.31
327.94 - 327.94 285.59 - 285.59
934.80 700.20 1,635.00 1,655.40 1,635.00 3,290.40
9,317.45 10,956.14 20,273.59 14,801.91 12,868.87 27,670.78
21.00 246.68 267.68 42.00 228.68 270.68
373.79 97.51 471.30 673.04 14.58 687.62
10,975.11 12,000.53 22,975.64 17,531.87 14,737.65 32,269.52
654.65 - 654.65 683.31 - 683.31
- 319.87 319.87 - 95.41 95.41
55.64 20,974.21 21,029.85 300.63 19,737.96 20,038.59
44.85 - 44.85 2941 - 29.41
755.14 21,294.08 22,049.22 1,013.35 19,833.37 20,846.72
11,730.25 33,294.61 45,024.86 18,545.22 34,571.02 53,116.24
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Information reported to the Chief Operating Decisions Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focus on business segment which comprises of Investment holdings and Others. ‘Others’ includes brand
promotion and brand protection activities, and quality management activities.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which are not directly
identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on the basis of associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts.
All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other
assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable.

Zin Crores
Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Segment Revenue and Results Investments  Others Total Investments Others Total
Segment Revenue 33,949.75 1,078.79 35,028.54 23,110.15 830.65  23,940.80
Inter Segment Revenue - - - - - -
Total Revenue 33,949.75 1,078.79 35,028.54 23,110.15 830.65  23,940.80
Segment Results
Profit before Tax and Unallocable corporate costs 31,003.08 232,59 31,235.67 20,241.20 22535  20,466.55
Unallocable corporate Costs (1.83) (7.42)
Interest on Income tax (net) 29.93 192.17
Profit before Taxes 31,263.77 20,651.30
Less: Exceptional items (1,240.03) - (1,240.03) (1,104.28) - (1,104.28)
Less: Taxes (7,891.36) (2,375.81)
Profit after Taxes 22,132.38 17,171.21
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Segment Assets and Liabilities Investments  Others Total Investments Others Total
Segment Assets 1,33,889.16 1,331.07 1,35,220.23  120,398.63 1,130.09 121,528.72
Unallocable Assets 456.10 489.63
Total Assets 1,35,676.33 122,018.35
Segment Liabilities 43,517.30 473.76 43,991.06 51,829.81 440.29 52,270.10
Unallocable Liabilities 1,033.80 846.14
Total Liabilities 45,024.86 53,116.24
Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Investments  Others Total Investments Others Total
Capital Expenditure 8.02 5.67 13.69 4.03 2.84 6.87
Segment Depreciation 14.76 11.46 26.22 12.90 14.08 26.99
Non-cash Expenses other than depreciation:
Segment 1,232.53 - 1,232.53 1,139.46 - 1,139.46
Unallocable - - - - - -
Total Non-cash Expenses other than depreciation 1,232.53 - 1,232.53 1,139.46 - 1,139.46
Reconciliation of Segment Revenue 31-Mar-23  31-Mar-22
Total Revenue as per Statement of Profit and Loss 35,058.47 24,132.97
Less: Interest income on income tax excluded in Investment Segment Revenue (29.93) (192.17)
Total Revenue as per Segment 35,028.54  23,940.80

Geographical information

The Company operates only in one geographical location and consequently has no separate reportable geographical segments.

Information about major Customers

Revenue from operations majorly comprises of dividend income which is mainly attributable to the investment made in its major

listed subsidiary.
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14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26
27
28
29
30
31

32
33

34
35

Relationships of related Parties

Subsidiary Companies

Ewart Investments Limited

Tata Limited

Indian Rotorcraft Limited

Panatone Finvest Limited

Akashastha Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f. 02.06.2021)
Tejas Networks Limited (w.e.f. 28.10.2021)

Tejas Communication Pte Limited (w.e.f. 28.10.2021)

Tejas Communications (Nigeria) Limited (w.e.f. 28.10.2021)
Saankhya Labs Private Limited (w.e.f. 01.07.2022)
Saankhya Labs Inc (w.e.f. 01.07.2022)

Saankhya Strategic Electronics Private Limited (w.e.f.
08.07.2022)

Tata Communications Limited

Tata Communications Transformation Services Limited
Tata Communications Collaboration Services Private Limited
Tata Communications Payment Solutions Limited

Tata Communications Lanka Limited

Tata Communications Services (International) Pte. Limited
Tata Communications (Bermuda) Limited

Tata Communications (Netherlands) B.V.

Tata Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

ITXCIP Holdings S.A.R.L.

Tata Communications (America) Inc.

Tata Communications (International) Pte Limited

Tata Communications (Canada) Limited

Tata Communications (Belgium) SRL (formerly Tata
Communications (Belgium) S.PR.L.)

Tata Communications (Italy) SRL
Tata Communications (Portugal) Unipessoal LDA
Tata Communications (France) SAS

(

(
Tata Communications (Nordic) AS
Tata Communications (Guam) L.L.C.
(

Tata Communications (Portugal) Instalacao E Manutencao De
Redes LDA

Tata Communications (Australia) Pty Limited

Tata Communications SVCS Pte Ltd (formerly Tata
Communications Services (Bermuda) Limited

Tata Communications (Poland) SP.Z.O.0.

Tata Communications (Japan) KK.

36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48

49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57

58
59
60
61
62

63

64
65
66
67
68
69
70

Tata Communications (UK) Limited

Tata Communications Deutschland GMBH
Tata Communications (Middle East) FZ-LLC
Tata Communications (Hungary) KFT

Tata Communications (Ireland) DAC

Tata Communications (Russia) LLC

Tata Communications (Switzerland) GmbH
Tata Communications (Sweden) AB
TCPOP Communication GmbH

Tata Communications (Taiwan) Limited
Tata Communications (Thailand) Limited
Tata Communications (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Tata Communications Transformation Services South Africa
(Pty) Ltd

Tata Communications (Spain) S.L.

Tata Communications (Beijing) Technology Limited

VSNL SNOSPV Pte. Limited

Tata Communications (South Korea) Limited

Tata Communications Transformation Services (Hungary) Kft.
Tata Communications Transformation Services Pte Limited
Tata Communications (Brazil) Participacoes Limitada

Tata Communications Transformation Services (US) Inc

Tata Communications Comunicacoes E Multimidia (Brazil)
Limitada

Nexus Connexion (SA) Pty Limited

SEPCO Communications (Pty) Limited

Tata Communications (New Zealand) Limited

Tata Communications MOVE B.V.(formerly Teleena Holding B.V.)

Tata Communications MOVE Nederland B.V. (formerly Teleena
Nederland B.V.)

Tata Communications MOVE UK Limited (formerly Teleena UK
Limited) (ceased w.e.f. 01.03.2022)

MuCoso B.V. (formerly Tata Communications MuCoso B.V.)
NetFoundry Inc.

TC IOT Managed Solutions Limited (ceased w.e.f. 13.01.2022)
TCTS Senegal Limited

OASIS Smart SIM Europe SAS

Oasis Smart E-Sim Pte Ltd

TS Investments Limited
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Relationships of related Parties (Contd.)
Subsidiary Companies (Contd.)
Tata SIA Airlines Limited

Infiniti Retail Limited (ceased w.e.f. 12.11.2021 and
became subsidiary of Tata Digital Private Limited)

Tata Incorporated
Tata Investment Corporation Limited

Simto Investment Company Limited

Tata Asset Management Private Limited (formerly Tata

Asset Management Limited)

Tata Asset Management (Mauritius) Private Limited
Tata Pension Management Limited

Tata Consulting Engineers Limited
Ecofirst Services Limited

TCE QSTP-LLC (liquidated on 05.09.2022)
Tata Engineering Consultants Saudi Arabia Company
Tata International AG, Zug

TRIF Investment Management Limited

Tata Advanced Systems Limited

Aurora Integrated Systems Private Limited
Nova Integrated Systems Limited

TASL Aerostructures Private Limited

Tata Capital Limited

Tata Capital Advisors Pte. Limited

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited

Tata Capital General Partners LLP

Tata Capital Growth Fund |

Tata Capital Healthcare General Partners LLP
Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited

Tata Capital Plc

Tata Capital Pte. Limited

Tata Cleantech Capital Limited

Tata Opportunities General Partners LLP

100 Tata Securities Limited

101 Tata Capital Special Situation Fund
102 Tata Capital Healthcare Fund |

103 Tata Capital Innovations Fund

104 Tata Capital Growth Fund Il

105 TCL Employee Welfare Trust

106 Tata Capital Growth Il General Partners LLP

107 Tata Capital Healthcare Fund Il

108 Tata Capital Healthcare Il General Partners LLP
109 Tata Housing Development Company Limited
110 Apex Realty Private Limited

111 Concept Developers & Leasing Limited (formerly Concept
Marketing and Advertising Limited)

112 HLT Residency Private Limited

113 Kriday Realty Private Limited

114 North Bombay Real Estate Private Limited
115 One-Colombo Project (Private) Limited
116 Promont Hillside Private Limited

117 Smart Value Homes (Boisar) Private Limited (formerly Niyati
Sales Private Limited)

118 Tata Value Homes Limited (formerly Smart Value Homes
Limited)

119 THDC Management Services Limited (formerly THDC Facility
Management Limited)

120 World-One (Sri Lanka) Projects Pte. Limited
121 World-One Development Company Pte. Limited

122 Synergizers Sustainable Foundation (incorporated under
Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956)

123 Technopolis Knowledge Park Limited
124 Princeton Infrastructure Private Limited

125 Promont Hilltop Private Limited (Ceased to be Joint Venture
and became a subsidiary w.e.f. 10.06.2021)

126 Smart Value Homes (Peenya Project) Private Limited (formerly
Smart Value Homes (Boisar Project) Private Limited) (Ceased to
be Joint Venture and became a subsidiary w.e.f. 21.05.2021)

127 Ardent Properties Private Limited (w.e.f. 17.06.2022)

128 Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP (w.e.d. 15.09.2021)
129 HL Promoters Private Limited (w.e.f. 18.10.2022)

130 SAS Realtech LLP (w.e.f. 18.10.2022)

131 Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

132 Acme Living Solutions Private Limited

133 Arrow Infraestate Private Limited (ceased w.e.f. 19.05.2022)

134 Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited (ceased w.e.f.
19.05.2022)

135 Gurgaon Realtech Limited (ceased w.e.f. 19.05.2022)
136 HV Farms Private Limited
137 TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
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A. Relationships of related Parties (Contd.)
Subsidiary Companies (Contd.)
138 TRIL Constructions Limited (ceased w.e.f. 17.11.2021)

139 Wellkept Facility Mangement Services Private Limited
(formerly TRIL Hospitality Private Limited)

140 TRIL Roads Private Limited

141 TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited

142 TRIL Infopark Limited (ceased w.e.f. 08.07.2022)
143 Hampi Expressways Private Limited

144 Dharamshala Ropeway Limited

145 International Infrabuild Private Limited

146 Uchit Expressways Private Limited

147 Durg Shivnath Expressways Private Limited (formerly SMS
Shivnath Infrastructure Private Limited

148 Matheran Rope-Way Private Limited
149 MIA Infrastructure Private Limited
150 TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate One Private Limited

151 TRIL Bengaluru Consultants Private Limited (formerly TRIL
Bengaluru Real Estate Two Private Limited)

152 TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Three Private Limited

153 TRIL IT4 Private Limited (formerly Albrecht Builder Private
Limited) (Ceased to be Joint Venture and became a subsidiary
w.e.f. 29.07.2021)

154 Infopark Properties Limited (w.e.f. 03.12.2021) (ceased w.e.f.
08.07.2022)

155 Tata Consultancy Services Limited

156 Tata Consultancy Services France (formerly Tata Consultancy
Services France SA) (formerly Alti S.A.)

157 APTOnline Limited (formerly APOnline Limited)
158 C-Edge Technologies Limited

159 Diligenta Limited

160 MahaOnline Limited

161 MGDCS.C.

162 MP Online Limited

163 PT Tata Consultancy Services Indonesia

164 Tata America International Corporation

165 Tata Consultancy Services (Africa) (PTY) Ltd.
166 Tata Consultancy Services (China) Co., Ltd.

(

(
167 Tata Consultancy Services (Philippines) Inc.
168 Tata Consultancy Services (South Africa) (PTY) Ltd.
(

169 Tata Consultancy Services (Thailand) Limited

170 Tata Consultancy Services Argentina S.A.
171 Tata Consultancy Services Asia Pacific Pte Ltd.

172 Tata Consultancy Services Belgium (formerly Tata Consultancy
Services Belgium S.A.)

173 Tata Consultancy Services Canada Inc.

174 Tata Consultancy Services Chile S.A.

175 Tata Consultancy Services Denmark ApS

176 Tata Consultancy Services De Espana S.A.

177 Tata Consultancy Services De Mexico S.A..De C.V.
178 Tata Consultancy Services Deutschland GmbH
179 Tata Consultancy Services Do Brasil Ltda

180 Tata Consultancy Services Luxembourg S.A.

181 Tata Consultancy Services Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

182 Tata Consultancy Services Netherlands BV

183 Tata Consultancy Services Osterreich GmbH

184 Tata Consultancy Services (Portugal) Unipessoal Limitada
185 Tata Consultancy Services Qatar S.S.C

186 Tata Consultancy Services Sverige AB

187 Tata Consultancy Services Switzerland Ltd.

188 TATASOLUTION CENTER S.A.

189 TCS e-Serve America, Inc. (Dissolved w.e.f. 29.12.2021)
190 TCS Financial Solutions (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

191 TCS Financial Solutions Australia Pty Limited

192 TCS FNS Pty Limited

193 TCS Iberoamerica SA

194 TCS Inversiones Chile Limitada

195 Tata Consultancy Services Italia s.r.l.

196 TCS Solution Center S.A.

197 TCS Uruguay S. A.

198 TCS e-Serve International Limited

199 Tata Consultancy Services Japan, Ltd.

200 TCS Foundation

201 Tata Consultancy Services Saudi Arabia

202 Tata Consultancy Services UK limited (formerly W12 Studios
Limited)
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A. Relationships of related Parties (Contd.)
Subsidiary Companies (Contd.)
203 TCS Business Services GmbH
204 Tata Consultancy Services Ireland Limited
205 TCS Technology Solutions AG (formerly Postbank Systems AG)
206 Saudi Desert Rose Holding B.V. (w.e.f. 26.05.2021)
207 Tata Consultancy Services Bulgaria EOOD (w.e.f. 31.08.2021)
208 Tata Consultancy Services Guatemala S.A (w.e.f. 01.09.2021)

209 Tata Trustee Company Private Limited (formerly Tata
Trustee Company Limited)

210 Niskalp Infrastructure Services Limited (formerly Niskalp
Energy Limited)

211 India Emerging Companies Investment Limited
212 Inshaallah Investments Limited

213 Tata Autocomp Systems Limited

214 Automotive Stampings and Assemblies Limited
215 Nanjing Tata Autocomp Systems Limited

216 TACO Engineering Services GmbH

217 Ryhpez Holding (Sweden) AB

218 TitanX Holding AB

219 TitanX Engine Cooling Inc.

220 TitanX Engine Cooling Kunshan Co. Ltd.

221 TitanX Engine Cooling AB

222 TitanX Refrigeracao de Motores LTDA

223 TitanX Engine Cooling, Poland

224 TitanX Engine Cooling SRL

225 Changshu Tata AutoComp Systems Limited
226 Tata Toyo Radiator Limited

227 Tata Autocomp Hendrickson Suspensions Private Limited
(formerly Taco Hendrickson Suspensions Private Limited)

228 TACO EV Component Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f.
20.12.2022)

229 TACO Punch Powertrain Private Limited (w.e.f. 24.12.2022)
230 Tata International Limited

231 Blackwood Hodge Zimbabwe (Private) Limited

232 Calsea Footwear Private Limited

233 Monroa Portugal, Comércio E Servicos, Unipessoal LDA
(ceased w.ef. 27.06.2022)

234 Move On Componentes E Calcado, S.A. (ceased w.e.f.
31.08.2021)

235 Move On Retail Spain, S.L. (ceased w.e.f. 13.05.2022)
236 Pamodzi Hotels Plc

237 Tata Africa (Cote D’Ivoire) SARL

238 Tata Africa Holdings (Ghana) Limited

239 TATA Africa Holdings (Kenya) Limited

240 Tata Africa Holdings (SA) (Proprietary) Limited
241 Tata Africa Holdings (Tanzania) Limited

242 Tata Africa Services (Nigeria) Limited

243 Tata Automobile Corporation (SA) (Proprietary) Limited
(Merged with Tata Africa Holdings (SA) (Proprietary) Limited
wef 01.04.2021)

244 Tata De Mocambique, Limitada
245 Tata Holdings Mocambique Limitada

246 Tata International Metals (Americas) Limited (formerly Tata
Steel International (North America) Limited)

247 Tata International Metals (Asia) Limited (formerly Tata Steel
International (Hongkong) Limited

248 Tata International Metals (Guangzhou) Limited

249 Tata International Metals (UK) Limited (formerly Tata Steel
International (UK) Limited) (ceased w.e.f. 27.06.2022)

250 Tata International Singapore Pte Limited

251 Tata South East Asia (Cambodia) Limited
252 Tata Uganda Limited

253 Tata West Asia FZE

254 Tata Zambia Limited

255 Tata Zimbabwe (Private) Limited (dormant)
256 TIL Leather Mauritius Limited

257 Tata International West Asia DMCC

258 Motor-Hub East Africa Limited

259 Tata International Vietnam Company Limited

260 Tata International Unitech (Senegal) SARL (formerly Tata Africa
(Senegal) S.AR.L)

261 Tata International Canada Limited
262 Newshelf 1369 Pty Ltd.

263 Alliance Finance Corporation Limited
264 AFCL Ghana Limited

265 AFCL Premium Services Ltd.

266 AFCL Zambia Limited

267 Alliance Leasing Limited

268 Stryder Cycle Private Limited

269 AFCL RSA (Pty) Limited
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A. Relationships of related Parties (Contd.)
Subsidiary Companies (Contd.)

270 TISPL Trading Company Limited (formerly Tata International
Myanmar Limited)

271 Société Financiere Décentralisé Alliance Finance Corporation
Senegal

272 Tata International Vehicle Applications Private Limited
(formerly Tata International DLT Private Limited)

273 Taj Air Limited
274 Impetis Biosciences Limited
275 Tata Teleservices Limited

276 TataTele NXTGEN Solutions Limited (formerly MMP Mobi
Wallet Payment Systems Limited)

277 NVSTechnologies Limited

278 TTL Mobile Private Limited (formerly Virgin Mobile (India)
Private Limited

279 TataTeleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
280 Tata Digital Private Limited (formerly Tata Digital Limited)
281 Tata Payments Limited

282 Supermarket Grocery Supplies Private Limited (w.e.f.
27.05.2021)

283 Innovative Retail Concepts Private Limited (w.e.f. 28.05.2021)
284 Savis Retail Private Limited (w.e.f. 27.05.2021)

285 Delyver Retail Network Private Limited (w.e.f. 27.05.2021)

286 Dailyninja Delivery Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 27.05.2021)
287 Tata 1mg Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f. 09.06.2021)

288 Tata 1mg Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f.
09.06.2021)

289 LFS Healthcare Private Limited (w.e.f. 09.06.2021)

290 Infiniti Retail Limited (w.e.f. 12.11.2021)

291 Tata Fintech Private Limited (w.e.f.01.11.2021)

292 Protraviny Private Limited (w.e.f. 04.03.2022)

293 Tata Neu Private Limited (w.e.f. 08.04.2022)

294 Tata Unistore Limited (w.e.f. 09.12.2022)

295 Ranata Hospitality Private Limited (w.e.f. 16.11.2022)

296 Agratas Energy Storage Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f.
10.03.2023)

297 AIX Connect Private Limited (formerly AirAsia (India) Private
Limited) (w.e.f. 03.11.2022)

298 Tata Medical and Diagnostics Limited
299 Talace Private Limited
300 AirIndia Limited (w.e.f. 27.01.2022)

301 Air India Express Limited (w.e.f. 27.01.2022)

302 Tata Electronics Private Limited (formerly TRIL Bengaluru
Real Estate Four Private Limited)

303 Vidiyal Residency Private Limited (w.e.f. 24.11.2021)
304 Tata Business Hub Limited

305 Tata Elxsi Limited

306 Tata AlG General Insurance Company Limited

307 AirAsia (India) Private Limited (formerly AirAsia (India) Limited)
(Ceased to be direct subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited
w.e.f. 03.11.2022 and became subsidiary of Air India Limited)

308 Tata Agro Industrial Limitada (w.e.f. 01.04.2022)

Associates*

Tata Chemicals Limited

Rallis India Limited

Tata Chemicals North America Inc.

Tata Chemicals Magadi Limited

Tata Chemicals (Soda Ash) Partners

Tata Chemicals (South Africa) Proprietary Limited

N Ot W=

Tata Consumer Products Limited (formerly Tata Global
Beverages Limited)

8  Tata Consumer Products UK Group Ltd. (formerly Tata Global
Beverages Group Ltd.)

9 Tata Coffee Ltd.

10 Eight O’Clock Coffee Company.

11 Tata Motors Limited

12 Jaguar Land Rover Deutschland GmbH

13 Jaguar Land Rover Limited

14 Tata Daewoo Commercial Vehicle Company Limited

15 Tata Daewoo Commercial Vehicle Sales and Distribution
Company Limited

16 Tata Motors European Technical Centre PLC

17 Tata Motors Finance Limited (formerly Sheba Properties
Limited)

18 Tata Technologies Inc.

19 Tata Technologies Europe Limited

20 TataTechnologies Pte. Limited

21 TMF Holdings Limited (formerly Tata Motors Finance Limited)
22 TML Holdings Pte. Limited

23 Tata Motors (Thailand) Limited

24 Tata Motors Insurance Broking and Advisory Services Limited
25 TataTechnologies SRL Romania

26 Tata Motors Finance Solutions Limited

27 TataTechnologies Limited

28 Tata Motors (SA) (Proprietary) Limited
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30
31

32
33

34
35
36

37
38
39
40

41
42
43
a4
45
46

47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59

60
61
62
63
64
65

Relationships of related Parties (Contd.)

Associates* (Contd.)

Jaguar Land Rover Technology and Business Services India
Private Limited (formerly JT Special Vehicles Pvt. Limited)
(w.ef. 12.04.2022)

Tata Steel Limited

Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited
(formerly Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited)
Tata Metaliks Ltd.

Tata Steel Long Products Limited (formerly Tata Sponge Iron
Limited)

NatSteel Recycling Pte Ltd. (ceased w.e.f. 30.09.2021)

The Siam Industrial Wire Company Ltd.

Tata Steel Mining Limited (formerly known as T S Alloys
Limited)

Tata Steel Foundation

Tata Steel (KZN) (Pty) Ltd. (under liquidation)

Tata Steel (Thailand) Public Company Ltd.

Tata Steel BSL Limited (formerly Bhushan Steel Limited)
(amalgamated with Tata Steel Limited w.e.f. 29.10.2021)
Tata Steel Europe Limited

Tata Steel IJmuiden BV

Indian Steel & Wire Products Ltd.

Jamshedpur Football and Sporting Private Limited

Tata Steel Netherlands Holdings B.V.

Tata Steel Downstream Products Limited (formerly Tata Steel
Processing and Distribution Limited)

Tata Steel UK Limited

Tayo Rolls Limited

Tata Pigments Limited

The Tinplate Company of India Limited

The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Piem Hotels Limited

United Hotels Limited

Roots Corporation Limited

Taj Trade & Transport Company Limited

St. James Court Hotel Limited

Inditravel Limited (formerly Taj Services Limited)

The Tata Power Company Limited

Coastal Gujarat Power Limited (Merged with The Tata Power
Company limited w.e.f. 01.04.2020 vide certified copy received
dated 05.04.2022 and the scheme has been approved as on
31.03.2022)

Nelco Limited

Tata Power Delhi Distribution Limited
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited

Tata Power Trading Company Limited
Trust Energy Resources Pte. Limited

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74

75
76
77
78
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TP Central Odisha Distribution Limited

TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited

TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited

Trent Limited

Fiora Hypermarket Limited

Voltas Limited

Universal MEP Projects & Engineering Services Limited
Titan Company Limited

Conneqt Business Solutions Limited (formerly Tata Business
Support Services Limited) (ceased w.e.f. 16.04.2021)

Tata Projects Limited

The Associated Building Company Limited
Tata Enterprises (Overseas) AG

Ferbine Private Limited

Joint Ventures*

Strategic Energy Technology Systems Private Limited
Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited

Tata Play Limited (formerly Tata Sky Limited)

Tata Ficosa Automotive Systems Private Limited

Tata Precision Industries (India) Limited

Tata Industries Limited

Tata AutoComp GY Batteries Private Limited

Tata Boeing Aerospace Limited

Tata Sikorsky Aerospace Limited

Tata Autocomp Katcon Exhaust Systems Private Limited

Post Employment benefit plans*

Tata Sons Consolidated Provident Fund

Tata Sons Consolidated Superannuation Fund
Tata Sons Limited H.O. Employees' Gratuity Fund

Key Management Personnel

Mr. N. Chandrasekaran - Executive Chairman

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal - Executive Director

Dr. Ralf Speth - Non Executive Director

Mr. Venu Srinivasan — Non Executive Director

Mr. Vijay Singh - Non Executive Director (w.e.f.11.02.2022)
Mr. Bhaskar Bhat — Non Executive Director

Mr. Suprakash Mukhopadhyay — Company Secretary

Mr. Eruch N. Kapadia - Chief Financial Officer

Investing Parties
Sir Dorabji Tata Trust
Sir Ratan Tata Trust

* Associates, Joint ventures and Post Employment benefit plans disclosed above are those with whom the company has undertaken transactions
during the current and previous financial year.
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Zin Crores
Transactions with related parties have been set out below
2022-23 2021-22
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries| Associates Joint Total| Subsidiaries| Associates Joint Total
Ventures Ventures
Purchase of Property, Plant and 9.16 - - 9.16 0.32 245 - 2.77
Equipment
Rendering of Services (including rental 366.02 668.11 1.15 1,035.28 329.57 515.63 0.33 845.53
income)
Receiving of Services 152.36 28.79 23.45 204.60 198.34 74.24 18.96 291.54
Purchase / subscription of Investments 19,505.84| 1,500.00 -| 21,005.84| 19,553.33| 1,225.15 -| 20,778.48
Sale / Buyback / Redemption of 3,174.15 - - 3,174.15| 12,457.79 - -| 12,457.79
investments #
Dividend Income 30,491.15| 2,760.50 -| 33,251.65 9,942.92| 1,556.06 -| 11,498.98
Equity Dividend Paid to Shareholders 1.80 47.92 2.30 52.02 1.80 47.92 2.30 52.02
Preference Dividend Paid to - 1.05 - 1.05 - 1.05 - 1.05
Shareholders
Interest Income 76.68 7.54 - 84.22 121.24 - - 121.24
Other Income 29.92 - - 29.92 48.00 - - 48.00
Expenses Reimbursed To 12.33 0.73 - 13.06 16.32 - - 16.32
Expenses Reimbursed From 60.44 2.01 - 62.45 10.99 3.88 - 14.87
Renuniciation premium paid - - - - 0.75 - - 0.75
Provision for Sub-standard / Doubtful (7.82) (0.06) - (7.88) (1.48) (0.31) 0.13 (1.66)
Debts (Net)
Provision against Standard Assets (Net) 0.08 - (0.01) 0.07 (7.01) - - (7.01)
Deposits received 0.03 - - 0.03 - - - -
Deposits repaid 0.03 - - 0.03 - - - -
Loan given 750.00 500.00 1,250.00 3,617.00 - -l 3,617.00
Loan given refunded 2,602.00 500.00 3,102.00 5,425.00 - - 5,425.00
Guarantees repaid 385.87 - - 385.87 - - - -
As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022

Outstanding Balances
Investments
- Outstanding at the end of the year 65,716.15| 61,133.29| 3,854.03(1,30,703.47| 49,853.16| 59,819.84| 3,854.03(1,13,527.03
- Maximum amount outstanding 65,716.15| 61,133.29| 3,854.03|1,30,703.47| 49,853.16( 59,819.84| 3,854.03|1,13,527.03
during the year
Debit balance outstanding
Outstanding Receivables 23.82 67.83 0.56 92.21 164.62 3.28 0.06 167.96
Brand Subscription Income Accrued 328.64 540.20 0.14 868.98 281.22 44537 - 726.59
Loan given:
- Outstanding at the end of the year - - - - 1,852.00 - -l 1,852.00
- Maximum amount outstanding 2,602.00 - - 2,602.00 3,660.00 - -l 3,660.00
during the year
Credit balance outstanding
Outstanding Payables 70.08 13.45 (0.01) 83.52 59.82 14.33 1.91 76.06
Subordinated Liabilities:
- Outstanding at the end of the year - 14.02 - 14.02 - 14.02 - 14.02
- Maximum amount outstanding - 14.02 - 14.02 - 14.02 - 14.02
during the year
Outsanding Guarantees - - - - 385.87 - - 385.87

# Through intermediaries



W

TATA

Transactions with related parties have been set out below (Contd.)

Details of material related party transactions included above Z In Crores
Nature of Transactions 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Buyback of Equity Shares
Tata Consultancy Services Limited - 11,163.92
Dividend Income
Tata Consultancy Services Limited 29,880.78 9,608.85
Loan given
Panatone Finvest Limited - 325.00
Tata Digital Private Limited 750.00 3,252.00
Tata Projects Limited 500.00 -
Loan given refunded
Panatone Finvest Limited - 3,725.00
Tata Digital Private Limited 2,302.00 1,700.00
Tata Projects Limited 500.00 -
Transactions with Investing Parties < In Crores
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Dividend Paid to Shareholders 208.28 208.28
Interest Expense 0.02 0.02
Balances - Investing Parties T In Crores
Nature of Transactions 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Debit balance outstanding
Outstanding Receivables - 0.01
Credit balance outstanding
Outstanding Payables 0.02 0.02
Fixed Deposit from a Shareholder:
- Outstanding at the end of the year 0.23 0.23
- Maximum amount outstanding during the year 0.23 0.23
Transactions with Post Employment benefit plans ZIn Crores
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contribution to Post Employment benefit plans 9.64 10.05
Expenses Reimbursed To 1.95 0.57
Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company T In Crores
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Short term employee benefits 161.92 151.70
Post-employment benefits # 0.99 0.93

Total

#The above figures do not include provision for gratuity, compensated absences, post-retirement medical benefits and long service

award as separate figures are not available for Key Managerial Personnel.

Balances - Key Management Personnel ZIn Crores
Nature of Transactions 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Credit balance outstanding

Outstanding Payables 130.40 119.64

1M
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a)

b)

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to
fund the benefits. The contributions as specified under law are paid to the provident fund and superannuation fund each set up
as a trust by the Company. The Company is liable for annual contributions and contributions towards any shortfall in the fund
assets based on the government specified minimum rate of return. The Company recognizes such contributions and shortfall, if
any, as an expense in the year it is incurred.

In accordance with an actuarial valuation of provident fund liabilities on the basis of guidance issued by the Actuarial Society of
India and based on the assumptions as mentioned below, there is no deficiency in the interest cost as the present value of the
expected future earnings of the fund is greater than the expected amount to be credited to the individual members based on
the expected guaranteed rate of interest as notified by the Government.

The details of fund and plan assets are given below:

Tin Crores
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Present Value of Funded Obligations 321.58 292.84
Fair Value of Plan Assets (312.98) (292.97)
Net Liability / (Asset) 8.60 (0.13)
The plan assets have been primarily invested in Government Securities and Corporate Bonds.
The financial assumptions used in determining the above valuation are as follows:
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Discount Rate 7.55% 6.60%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets 9.29% 9.43%
Discount Rate for the remaining Term to Maturity of the Investment 7.60% 6.65%
Average Historic Yield on the Investment 9.34% 9.48%
Guaranteed Rate of Return 8.15% 8.10%

The contributions are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The amount of  3.39 crores (March
2022 % 3.49 crores) towards provident fund contributions and ¥ 1.09 crores (March 2022 % 1.27 crores) towards superannuation
fund contributions recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are
at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Defined benefit plan

a.  The Company makes annual contributions to the Gratuity Fund, a funded defined benefit plan for the qualifying employees.
The plan provides for payment of lump sum amount determined under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1962 or under the
Company Scheme whichever is higher. The Company’s Scheme provides payment of an amount equivalent to fifteen days
basic salary for each year of completed service for the period of ten years and more upto fifteen years, three-fourth month’s
basic salary for service period of more than fifteen years but less than twenty years and twenty months plus half month’s
basic salary for the service period of twenty years or more subject to maximum of thirty months basic salary.

b.  Theemployees of the Company are eligible for an award upon superannuation. The said award is payable upon completion
of service period of ten years and above and the maximum amount payable is equivalent to four times the monthly gross
salary at the time of superannuation. The scheme is a non-contributory defined benefit obligation.

¢.  The employees of the Company are eligible for post retirement medical benefits under the group medical insurance policy
taken by the Company. The scheme is a non-contributory defined benefit obligation.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were measured using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the balance sheet date.
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Defined benefit plan (Contd.)

The following table summarizes the position of obligation relating to schemes / plans:

0]

(ii)

(i)

Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Zin Crores
Particul 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
articulars Funded | Non Funded Funded | Non Funded
Present value of defined benefit obligation 35.51 16.38 39.91 6.34
Fair value of plan assets 36.20 - 37.96 -
Unrecognised Past Service Cost - - - -
Funded status (surplus/(deficit)) - - - -
Net Liability/ (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet (0.69) 16.38 1.95 6.34
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations - - - -
Amount not recognised due to asset limit - - - -
Net Liability/ (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet (0.69) 16.38 1.95 6.34
Current - 0.65 - 0.34
Non-current (0.69) 15.73 1.95 6.00
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Zin Crores
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Funded | Non Funded Funded | Non Funded
Current service cost 1.55 0.53 1.68 0.73
Net Interest cost (0.04) 0.41 (0.17) 0.42
Past Service Cost - - - 0.51
Expenses Recognized 1.51 0.94 1.51 1.66
Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
Zin Crores
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Funded | Non Funded Funded | Non Funded
Opening amount recognised in OCl outside profit and loss 6.24 (0.24) 5.64 1.60
account
Remeasurements during the period due to
Changes in financial assumptions (1.35) 8.19 (0.32) (0.13)
Changes in demographic assumptions (0.30) (0.72) (0.53) (0.86)
Experience adjustments (1.40) 2.08 1.42 (0.85)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.85 - 0.03 -
Adjustment to recognise effect of asset ceiling - - - -
Net (Income)/Expense for the period recognized in OCI (2.20) 9.55 0.60 (1.84)
Closing amount recognised in OCl outside profit and loss 4.04 9.31 6.24 (0.24)
account
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Defined benefit plan (Contd.)
(iv) Balance sheet reconciliation

T in Crores

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Funded | Non Funded Funded | Non Funded
Net Liability (asset) as at the beginning of the year 1.95 6.34 (0.16) 6.83
Expenses Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss 1.51 0.94 1.51 1.66
Expenses Recognised in OCI (2.20) 9.55 0.60 (1.84)
Contribution from the employer (1.95) (0.45) - (0.31)
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in Balance Sheet (0.69) 16.38 1.95 6.34

(v) Movement in benefit obligations

Zin Crores

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Funded | Non Funded Funded | Non Funded
Obligation as at beginning of the year 39.91 6.34 38.31 6.83
Interest cost 2.32 0.41 2.28 0.42
Current service cost 1.55 0.53 1.68 0.73
Past Service Cost - - - 0.51
Benefits paid (4.51) (0.45) (2.61) (0.31)
Remeasurements during the period due to
Changes in financial assumptions (1.35) 8.19 (0.32) (0.13)
Changes in demographic assumptions (0.30) (0.72) (0.53) (0.86)
Experience adjustments (1.40) 2.08 1.42 (0.85)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets
Liabilities assumed/ settled* (0.71) - (0.32) -
Obligation as at the end of the year 35.51 16.38 39.91 6.34
* on account of inter group transfer or retirement

(vi) Movementin plan asset
Zin Crores
. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars Funded | Non Funded Funded | Non Funded
Opening fair value of plan assets 37.96 - 38.47 -
Interest on plan assets 2.36 - 245 -
Remeasurements due to:
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.85) - (0.03) -
Assets acquired/ (settled)* (0.71) - (0.32) -
Benefits paid (4.51) (0.45) (2.61) (0.31)
Employer contribution 1.95 0.45 - 0.31
Fair value at the end of the year 36.20 - 37.96 -

* on account of inter group transfer or retirement

(vii) Major Categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Funded | Non Funded

Funded | Non Funded

Government of India Securities
Corporate Bonds

Equity instruments

Others

39.97% -
55.39% -
1.38% -
3.26% -

33.03% -
58.01% -

8.96% -
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b) Defined benefit plan (Contd.)
(viii) Actuarial Assumptions
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Funded | Non Funded Funded | Non Funded
Discount Rate 7.55% 7.55% 6.60% 6.60%
Salary Escalation Rate 8% for the first 8 years 8% for the first 8 years
and 5.50% thereafter and 5.50% thereafter

Mortality Table

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

(ix)

Projected plan cash flow

Zin Crores

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded
Projected benefits payable in future years from the
date of reporting
Expected benefits for year 1 7.70 0.65 9.46 0.34
Expected benefits for year 2 4.55 0.52 2.60 0.49
Expected benefits for year 3 3.15 0.77 3.82 0.33
Expected benefits for year 4 4.61 0.80 2.48 0.54
Expected benefits for year 5 12.17 0.77 4.10 0.51
Expected benefits for year 6 3.15 1.68 12.80 0.42
Expected benefits for year 7 2.10 1.23 4.50 1.40
Expected benefits for year 8 2.15 1.51 2.08 0.82
Expected benefits for year 9 0.83 1.02 2.57 1.26
Expected benefits for year 10 and above 11.32 58.13 13.69 14.23

The Weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation is:

Funded 4.37 years (31 March 2022 : 5.11 years)
Unfunded 9.42 years and 14.48 years (31 March 2022 :9.62 years and
11.09 years)
(x) Sensitivity Analysis Zin Crores
31 March 2023
Discount Salary Discount Salary Life
Particulars rate escalation rate escalation |Expectancy
rate rate
Funded Unfunded
Defined benefit obligation on increase in 50 bps 34.85 36.30 15.34 1.62 15.34
Impact on increase in 50bps on DBO -1.86% 2.22% -5.07% 3.67% 3.54%
Defined benefit obligation on decrease in 50 bps 36.31 34.75 17.53 1.51 14.27
Impact on decrease in 50bps on DBO 2.26% -2.15% 5.53% -3.51% -3.69%
Particulars 31 March 2022
Discount Salary Discount Salary Life
rate escalation rate escalation |expectancy
rate rate
Funded Unfunded

Defined benefit obligation on increase in 50 bps 38.90 40.95 6.07 1.94 459
Impact on increase in 50bps on DBO -2.53% 2.60% -4.32% 4.37% 2.27%
Defined benefit obligation on decrease in 50 bps 40.97 38.91 6.65 1.78 438
Impact on decrease in 50bps on DBO 2.65% -2.50% 4.65% -4.15% -2.48%
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The Company had issued a corporate guarantee for 115% of a facility granted to a subsidiary. During the current year, the facility
has been fully repaid and consequently the Company has been discharged of all obligations under the guarantee. Amount of
facility outstanding ¥ Nil (31 March 2022 - % 385.87 crores).

Further, the Company has provided security for issuance of bank guarantees amounting to ¥ 0.55 crores (31 March 2022 - ¥ 0.49
crores).

(b) Tax Matters:

i With respect to Sales Tax matters (Lease Tax / VAT demands) of ¥ 116.41 crores as at 31 March, 2022, the Company opted
for Maharashtra Settlement of Arrears of Tax, Interest, Penalty or Late Fee Act, 2022 (‘Amnesty Scheme 2022’) during the
current year and duly deposited the requisite payments. Upon receipt of the settlement orders, this contingent liability no
longer exists as at 31 March 2023.

ii.  Service Tax matters pending before Appellate authorities in respect of which the Company is in appeal T 287.99 crores (31
March 2022 - ¥ 348.07 crores).

iii.  Income Tax matters decided in the Company’s favour by Appellate authorities and for which the Department is in further
appeal ¥ 167.34 crores (31 March 2022 - ¥ 167.34 crores).

iv.  Other claims not acknowledged as debt % Nil (31 March 2022 - ¥ 0.36 crores)

(c) The Company has given undertakings not to sell or encumber in any way its investments in a joint venture company which has
been written-down to T Nil (31 March 2022 - ¥ Nil).

(d) The Company has undertaken that it will work with certain subsidiaries to organize for any shortfall in liquidity that may be
required for repayment of their debt. The external debt of these subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 was % 11,051.62 crores (31 March
2022 -%10,886.01 crores).

(e) During the previous year, a subsidiary of the Company had entered into Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) for an acquisition.
In terms of the SPA, the Company had issued a guarantee that the subsidiary shall at all times perform and discharge all its
obligations under the SPA, provided that the aggregate monetary obligation of the Company, shall not exceed ¥ 3,500 crores
(31st March, 2022 - % 3,500 crores). The guarantee shall remain valid until the earlier of: (a) all the obligations having been
performed or satisfied under the SPA or (b) period of 5 years from the Closing Date i.e. upto 26 January 2027.

(f)  The Company had entered into Title Sponsorship Agreements. In terms of these Agreements, bank guarantees have been issued
for securing the Company’s obligation to make certain payments as well as performance of other obligations. The Company’s
obligation under the bank guarantees is ¥ 146 crores (31 March 2022 - % 135 crores), net of amount payable by the nominees of
the Company.

< Crores

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(@) amount required to be spent by the company during the year 83.44 75.98

(b) amount of expenditure incurred 83.44* 129.00

(c) shortfall at the end of the year - -

(d) total of previous years shortfall - -

(e) reason for shortfall NA NA

() details of related party transactions NA NA
(f)  nature of CSR activities In line with Schedule VII

*includes ¥ 25.09 crores which has been set off from the excess amount spent on CSR activities in the previous years, pursuant to Section
135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7(3) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Amendment Rules, 2021
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(@)  The borrowings from banks and financial institutions have been used for the purposes for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.
(b) During the financial year, there are no transactions with companies struck off.
(c) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(d) Ratios:
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Capital Adequacy Ratio (Adjusted Net worth as a % of Risk Weighted Assets) 432.15% 501.87%
Leverage Ratio (Outside liabilities / Adjusted Net worth) 0.10 0.10
(e)  Other than as disclosed below, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”)
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or
on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with
the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(i) Investments made by Tata Sons Private Limited in securities, loans to subsidiaries during the year:
T Crores
Investee Company Relationship with | Nature of investment/loan Date Amount
Tata Sons Private | placed
Limited
1 Talace Private Limited Subsidiary Investment in equity shares | 06-Feb-23 2,683.00
2 Panatone Finvest Limited Subsidiary Investment in equity shares | 30-Mar-22 712.50
Investment in equity shares | 03-Feb-23 299.98
Total 3,695.48
(i) Investments made by Investee Companies listed above in securities, loans to others during the year:
% Crores
Investee Company Ultimate Beneficiary Relationship Nature of investment / loan Date Amount
of Ultimate placed
Beneficiary with
Investee Company
1 Talace Private Limited Air India Limited Subsidiary Investment in equity shares | 06-Feb-23 2,683.00
2 Panatone Finvest Limited | Tejas Networks Subsidiary Investment in equity shares 07-Apr-22 712.50
Limited
Investment in equity shares | 03-Feb-23 299.98
Total 3,695.48
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A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right -of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company does
not have any asset under finance lease.

Right-of-use assets Zin Crores
Land and Other Total
Buildings equipments

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 13.60 - 13.60

Additions during the year - 112.86 112.86

Deletions during the year (3.47) - (3.47)

Amortisation expenses (4.18) (18.81) (22.99)

Balance at 31st March, 2023 5.95 94.05 100.00

Carrying amounts

As at 1st April, 2022 13.60 - 13.60

Balance at 31st March, 2023 5.95 94.05 100.00

Zin Crores

Land and Other Total
Buildings equipments
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 17.97 8.22 26.19
Additions during the year 3.24 - 3.24
Deletions during the year (0.67) - (0.67)
Amortisation expenses (6.94) (8.22) (15.16)
Balance at 31st March, 2022 13.60 - 13.60
Carrying amounts
As at 1st April, 2021 17.97 8.22 26.19
Balance at 31st March, 2022 13.60 - 13.60
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Amounts recognised in profit or loss Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
31t March, 2023 | 31t March, 2022
Short-term lease expense 5.44 6.01
Low value lease expense * *
Interest on lease liabilities 6.51 1.60
Total lease expense 11.95 7.61
Cash outflow on leases Zin Crores
Year ended Year ended
315 March, 2023 | 31% March, 2022
Repayment of lease liabilities 25.03 17.80
(including interest)

Short-term lease expense 5.44 6.01
Low value lease expense * *
Total cash outflow on leases 30.47 23.81
Maturity analysis - undiscounted Zin Crores
Less than | Between 1 and 2 2 and 5 years Over 5 years Weighted
1year years average effective
interest rate %/
Discount rate

31 March 2023
Lease liabilities 26.58 26.14 68.70 - 5.50%

26.58 26.14 68.70 -

31 March 2022

Lease liabilities 8.32 5.68 4.84 - 6.50%
8.32 5.68 4.84 -

A. Impairment of equity investments in subsidiaries

During the current year, the Company has provided for an impairment of ¥ 0.03 crores (previous year: % 0.05 crores) on its equity
investment in subsidiaries. Further, during the previous year, the Company had reversed the provision for diminution made in
the earlier years of ¥ 43.87 crores on its equity investment in subsidiaries.

The above have been disclosed under exceptional items since the amount is not expected to occur frequently.
B. Liability / Provision of a Subsidiary Company

As part of the agreements for demerger of the Consumer Mobile Businesses (CMB) undertakings of Tata Teleservices Limited
[TTSL] and Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited [TTML] to Bharti Airtel Limited and Bharti Hexacom Limited (Rajasthan circle
only), Tata Sons had agreed that if and to the extent TTSL or TTML fail to discharge any of their payment obligations to Bharti
Airtel within the specified timeframe, the Company will discharge these obligations. It had also been agreed under the demerger
documents that TTSL and TTML will discharge specified payment obligations relating to the CMB undertakings upto an agreed
date.

TTSL and TTML together with other telecom operators have been in litigation with the Department of Telecom [DoT] on the
definition of Gross Revenue and Adjusted Gross Revenue.

TTSL, TTML have made payment of ¥ 4,197.37 crores during FY20.

During the current year, TTSL/TTML continued to recognise interest on AGR obligations.
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Accordingly, the gross liabilities of TTSL/TTML pertaining to AGR matter as on March 31, 2023 stood at ¥ 20,878 crores (March 31, 2022:
¥ 19,638 crores). The Company has therefore recognized a provision for ¥ 1,240 crores during the year ended March 31, 2023 (year
ended March 31, 2022: % 1,148 crores), taking the total provision to ¥ 20,878 crores (March 31, 2022: % 19,638 crores). The amount has
been recorded in compliance with the accounting standards, strictly without prejudice to TTSL, TTML and the Company’s legal rights,
claims, remedies and contentions available under law.

In terms of the Share Purchase Agreement, and the Shareholder’s Agreement entered into by Panatone Finvest Ltd. (Panatone), a
subsidiary of the Company, with the Government of India and Letter of Offer dated 27 April 2002, Tata Sons Private Limited and Panatone
had contractually undertaken a Surplus Land obligation including agreeing to transfer 45% of the share capital of the Resulting
Company, to the Government of India and other selling shareholders upon demerger of the Surplus Land by Tata Communications
Limited (TCL).

A Scheme of Arrangement and Reconstruction amongst Tata Communications Limited and Hemisphere Properties India Limited
(HPIL) and their respective shareholders and creditors [Scheme] was approved by National Company Law Tribunal in July 2018 and by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs during FY20. The Scheme provided for demerger by way of reconstruction,splitting up of TCL by way
of transfer of the Surplus Land to HPIL and the consequent issue of equity shares by HPIL to the shareholders of TCL, including Tata
Sons Private Limited, followed by a transfer of equity shares of HPIL allotted inter-alia to Tata Sons Private Limited to the other selling
shareholders of TCL who had tendered shares in the open offer and to the Government of India.

Pursuant to approval of the Scheme during the previous year, HPIL approved the allotment and issuance of one equity share of HPIL
for every one equity share of TCL to the shareholders of TCL.

The Company held 16,313,839 [5.72%] TCL shares as of the record date. The Company had been allotted 16,313,839 [5.72%)] HPIL
shares.

Upon allotment of shares by Hemisphere and upon Hemisphere being listed on the recognised stock exchanges, the Company was
required to transfer shares of Hemisphere without consideration to the Government of India and other selling shareholders.

HPIL shares were listed on 22 October 2020. Upon listing, HPIL ceased to be an associate of the Company and the investment in HPIL
was reclassified as investment at fair value through OCI. As on 31 March 2022, the Company had reclassified the investment in HPIL as
held for sale. During the current year, the Company has sold the equity shares of HPIL.

The Company was party to the Shareholders Agreement [SHA] with NTT Docomo Inc. [Docomo] of Japan. In terms of the SHA, on
7th July 2014, Docomo called upon the Company to acquire its entire shareholding in Tata Teleservices Limited [TTSL] at the pre-
determined price.

As the Company could neither find a buyer at the predetermined price nor was it permitted by the Regulator in February 2015 to
acquire the shares at the price higher than the Fair Market value [FMV], Docomo initiated Arbitration.

The Arbitration Award [Award] dated 22nd June, 2016 issued by the London Court of International Arbitration [LCIA] required Tata
Sons to pay to Docomo damages for breach of contract to find a buyer plus interest and costs. The Award ordered Docomo to tender
its shareholding in TTSL to Tata Sons and its designees so that it did not receive a windfall benefit.

Later, on 28th April 2017, the Delhi High Court declared the Award enforceable in India.

The Company made payment equivalent to ¥ 8,468.62 crores to Docomo on 30th October 2017 and 7th November 2017 towards
the entire amount payable under the Award. The SHA has since been terminated.

In terms of the contractual agreements, the Company has been reimbursed ¥ 3,255.05 crores from other shareholders of TTSL towards
their pro-rata share and in the same proportion they have correspondingly received shares of TTSL from Docomo. The Company carries
a provision of ¥ 699.43 crores [Refer Note 10] towards recoverable from one shareholder of TTSL in respect of which the Company is
pursuing legal recourse.
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Litigations against the Company are as under:

Representative suit titled Mr. Pramod Premchand Shah & Others versus Mr. Ratan N. Tata & Others filed by a small group of shareholders
in the Bombay High Court against the Company, its directors, and certain listed Tata companies in which the Company has investments.
This suit claims, inter alia, damages in the sum of INR 41,832 crore for alleged loss caused to all the non-promoter shareholders of those
listed Tata companies owing to a fall in the share price of those companies allegedly due to the removal of Mr Cyrus P. Mistry as the
executive Chairman of the Company. The Company had sought revocation of the leave granted by the Court permitting the Plaintiffs
to institute the suit as a representative suit. By an order dated 10 July, 2017 the Court revoked the earlier leave granted to the Plaintiffs,
as a result the suit is no longer a representative suit. The Plaintiffs sought a stay of the order, which request was denied by the Court by
its order dated 11 July, 2017. The Plaintiffs have preferred an appeal from the aforesaid orders. The hearing of the appeal is awaited.

The Company believes this case is frivolous and without merit. The Company is defending itself appropriately in accordance with the
law. Based on legal advice, no financial liability for the Company is foreseen at this stage. Any future liability in the case would depend
on the final adjudication of the case which is uncertain and in any event, is unlikely to crystallise in a near-term.

Disclosure on Provisions required under IRACP and Impairment allowances made under Ind AS

Asset Classification
as per RBI Norms

(1)

Performing Assets

Standard

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard

Doubtful:

1to 3 years

More than 3 years

Subtotal for doubtful

Subtotal for NPA

Total

Total

Asset Classification
as per RBI Norms

(1)

Performing Assets

Standard

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard

Doubtful:

1 to 3 years

More than 3 years

Subtotal for doubtful

Subtotal for NPA

Total

Total

As at 31 March 2023

Asset classification
as per Ind AS

(2)
Considered good

Significant increase in credit risk

Considered doubtful
Considered doubtful

Considered good
Significant increase in credit risk
Considered doubtful

As at 31 March 2022

Asset classification
as per Ind AS

(2)
Considered good

Significant increase in credit risk

Considered doubtful
Considered doubtful

Considered good
Significant increase in credit risk
Considered doubtful

Tin Crores

Gross Loss Net Provisions Difference

Carrying  Allowances Carrying required between
Amountas (Provisions) Amount as per Ind AS 109
perind AS asrequired IRACP provisions
under Ind norms and IRACP
AS 109 norms

(3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)
1,336.55 5.35 1,331.20 5.35 -
0.07 0.01 0.06 0.01 -
1.13 1.13 - 1.13 -
702,95 702,95 - 702,95 -
704.08 704.08 - 704.08 -
704.15 704.09 0.06 704.09 -
1,336.55 535 1,331.20 5.35 -
0.07 0.01 0.06 0.01 -
704.08 704.08 - 704.08 -
2,040.70 709.44 1,331.26 709.44 -
Tin Crores

Gross Loss Net Provisions Difference

Carrying Allowances Carrying required between
Amountas (Provisions) Amount as per Ind AS 109
perInd AS asrequired IRACP provisions
under Ind norms and IRACP
AS 109 norms

(3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)
1,970.28 7.88 1,962.39 7.88 -
0.19 0.02 0.17 0.02 -
2.20 2.20 - 2.20 -
701.92 701.92 - 701.92 -
704.12 704.12 - 704.12 -
704.30 704.14 0.17 704.14 -
1,970.28 7.88 1,962.39 7.88 -
0.19 0.02 0.17 0.02 -
704.12 704.12 - 704.12 -
2,674.59 712.02 1,962.56 712.02 -
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Asterisks (*) denote amounts less than ¥ 50,000.

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year classification /

disclosure.
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Disclosures as required in terms of paragraph 21 of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016:

Particulars

Liabilities Side:

(1)  Loansand Advances availed by the Non-Banking Financial Company

inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid [Refer Note 2]

(a) Debentures (Other than those falling within the meaning of
Public Deposits)

(i) Secured

(ii) Unsecured

Deferred Credits

c) Term Loans

Inter-corporate Loans and Borrowings

Commercial Paper

(f) Other Loans:
(i) Loans repayable on demand from banks
(i) Others

(g9) Subordinated Liabilities

Total

—_ o~~~ =
O

Particulars

Assets Side:

(2)  Break-up of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables (other
than those included in (4) below)

(@) Secured
(b) Unsecured

(3)  Break-up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities

[Refer Note 3]

(4)  Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments:
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
ii) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of Mutual Funds
iv) Government Securities
v) Others

(
(
(
(

Outstanding

252.54

T in Crores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue Outstanding Overdue
1,335.00 - 1,335.00 -
300.00 - 1,955.40 -
18,984.00 - 27,658.50 -
12.05 - 12.05 -
1,277.31 - - -
0.23 - 0.23 -
267.68 - 270.68 -
22,176.27 - 31,231.86 -
Tin Crores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Amount Amount

Outstanding

2,134.92

--- Not Applicable ---

1,082.79 860.42
- 2,403.03
1,082.79 3,263.45
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Disclosures as required in terms of paragraph 21 of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (Contd.):

Particulars

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
ii) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of Mutual Funds
iv) Government Securities

(
(
(
(v) Others

Current Investments - Total

Long term Investments:

1.

Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iif) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

(@) Warrants

(b) Application Money pending allotment

Long term Investments - Total

Total Investments

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above

Category

1.

2.

Related Parties [Refer Note 4]
(@) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other Related Parties

Other than Related Parties

Total

Zin Crores

31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Outstanding

1,082.79 3,263.45
61,543.04 61,543.04
61,543.04 61,543.04
60,910.52 46,663.92
6,750.00 3,771.00
- 1,362.60
1,500.00 -
69,160.52 51,797.52
1,30,703.56 1,13,340.55
1,31,786.35 1,16,604.00
Tin Crores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Amount net of provision Amount net of provision
Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
84.99 84.99 - 1,938.71 1,938.71
26.90 26.90 - 26.90 26.90
0.05 0.05 - 0.05 0.05
140.02 140.02 - 160.43 160.43
251.96 251.96 - 2,126.09 2,126.09
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Disclosures as required in terms of paragraph 21 of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (Contd.):

(6)

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

Zin Crores
Category 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
MarketValue  BookValue Market Value Book Value
/ Break up or (Netof /Breakupor (Net of
fair valueor  Provisions/ fair value or Provisions/
NAV Write-off) NAV Write-off)
[Refer Note5] [Refer Note 5]
1. Related Parties [Refer Note 4]
(@) Subsidiaries 9,39,907.02 65,716.15 10,75,394.91 49,853.15
(b) Companies in the same group 2,50,881.53 66,070.20 2,68,920.72 64,347.83
(c) Other Related Parties - - - -
2. Other than Related Parties - - 2,403.03 2,403.03
Total 11,90,788.55 1,31,786.35 13,46,718.66 1,16,604.01
Note: Includes Application Money pending allotment.
(7)  Other Information Tin Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-2023  31-Mar-2022
(i)  Gross Non-Performing Assets
(@) Related Parties [Refer Note 4] 2.92 3.83
(b) Other than Related Parties 701.24 700.45
(i)  Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties [Refer Note 4] 0.01 0.15
(b) Other than Related Parties 0.05 0.01
(iii)  Assets acquired in satisfaction of Debt - -
Notes:
1. The Company is registered as a Core Investment Company (CIC) with the Reserve Bank of India and classified as a Systemically
Important Non-Deposit Taking Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI).
2. Excludes interest accrued but not due amounting to ¥ 159.60 crores (31st March, 2022 - ¥ 385.43 crores).
3. The Company is registered as a CIC-ND-Sl and is not in the business of asset financing.
4.  Includes Companies as defined in Para 3 (v) of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.
5. Incase of unquoted investments, the Market Value/Break up Value or Fair Value or NAV is stated at cost except where there is

diminution in value other than temporary, for which provision/write-off is made.
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Disclosures as required in terms of paragraph 19 of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016:

Zin Crores
As at As at
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector:
Immovable Properties directly owned by the Company and carried under Investments in 58.88 59.12
Immovable Properties
b) Asset Liability Management:-
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:
Zin Crores
Particulars As at 31-Mar-2023 As at 31-Mar-2022
Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets
Borrowings Market| Advances| Investments| Borrowings Market| Advances| Investments
from Banks| Borrowings from Banks| Borrowings
1 day to 1 month - 12.05 - - - 227.05 100.00 -
Over 1 month to 2 months - 285.00 - - - - 160.00 -
Over 2 months to 3 months 1,369.36 2,327.31 - - - 270.00 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 4,108.50 - - -l 3,789.63| 1,170.40 40.00 -
Over 6 months to 1 year - 2,149.80 - - -| 11,000.00 1,552.00 -
Over 1 year to 3 years 10,956.14 615.20 - -| 10,105.43| 3,050.00 - -
Over 3 years to 5 years - 85.00 - -l 1,263.44 15.00 - -
Over 5 years - - - - - 70.00 - -
Total 16,434.00 5,474.36 - -| 15,158.50| 15,802.45| 1,852.00 -
Note:

1. Quoted and Unquoted Equity Shares, Non Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares, Optionally Convertible Non
Cumulative Preference Shares, Cumulative Convertible Debentures, Optionally Convertible Debentures, Convertible Warrants,
Units of Liquid Schemes of Mutual Funds and Government Securities aggregating ¥ 1,30,286.35 crores (31st March, 2022 -
% 1,16,790.61 crores) and investment in immovable properties aggregating ¥ 58.88 crores (31st March, 2022 -3 59.12 crores) are
not included above, since there is no set maturity pattern for the same.
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Public disclosure on liquidity risk as required in terms of Appendix I to Liquidity Risk Management Framework
for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies:

(@

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

As at 31-Mar-2023 As at 31-Mar-2022
Number of Amount % of Total Number of Amount % of Total
Significant RinCrores) Liabilities Significant R in Crores) Liabilities
Counterparties Counterparties
17 17,005.16 38% 14 26,239.21 49%
Note: The Company is a Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important Core Investment Company.
Top 20 large deposits (amount in T crores and % of total deposits)
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
3 crores % to total 3 crores % to total
Top 20 large deposits 12.28 100% 12.28 100%
Top 10 borrowings (amount in < crores and % of total borrowings)
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
3 crores % to total % crores % to total
Top 10 borrowings 13,379.66 60% 23,732.27 76%
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Sr  Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
No. ( in Crores) Liabilities (% in Crores) Liabilities
1 Loans from Banks, Financial Institutions 18,984.00 42% 27,958.50 52%
2 Non-Convertible Debentures 1,635.00 4% 3,290.40 6%
3 Commercial Papers 1,277.31 3% = 0%
Stock Ratios
(a) Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
I Crores
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Commercial Papers 1,277.31 -
Total Public Funds 22,176.27 31,231.86
% 6% -
Commercial Papers 1,277.31 -
Total Liabilities 45,024.86 53,116.24
% 3% =
Commercial Papers 1,277.31 -
Total Assets 1,35,676.33 1,22,018.35
% 1% =

(b) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and

total assets

The Company has not issued any Non-convertible debentures of original maturity of less than one year.
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Public disclosure on liquidity risk as required in terms of Appendix I to Liquidity Risk Management Framework
for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies (Contd.):

(v)

(vi)

Stock Ratios (Contd.)

(c) Othershort-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets

Other short term liabilities
Total Public Funds
%

Other short term liabilities
Total Liabilities
%

Other short term liabilities
Total Assets
%

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
A liquidity risk management framework is in place to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.

31-Mar-23
11,730.25

22,176.27

53%

11,730.25
45,024.86
26%

11,730.25
1,35,676.33
9%

« Risk Management Committee (RMC) reports to the Board and evaluates overall risks including liquidity risk.

+ Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) implements the liquidity risk management strategy.

I Crores
31-Mar-22
18,545.22
31,231.86
59%

18,545.22
53,116.24
35%

18,545.22
1,22,018.35
15%
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Disclosures as required in terms of paragraph 30 of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank)

1

Components of ANW and other related information

Tin Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
i ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Assets 432.15% 501.87%
ii unrealized appreciation in the book value of quoted investments 10,93,622.12 11,95,598.89
i~ diminution in the aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
iv  Leverage Ratio 0.10 0.10
Investment in Other CICs Zin Crores
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
a Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by one CIC
in another CIC (including name of CICs)
1. Panatone Finvest Limited 5,576.22 5,276.01
2.  Tata Capital Limited 7,497.26 6,901.47
3. Tatalndustries Limited 1,598.52 1,598.52
14,672.00 13,776.00
b Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution - 1 CIC viz. Tata
exceeds 10% of Owned Funds Capital Limited
C Number of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribution is 3 CICs viz. (i) 2 CICs viz. (i)
less than 10% of Owned Funds Tata Capital Panatone Finvest
Limited (ii) Limited (i) Tata
Panatone Finvest Industries Limited
Limited (iii)
Tata Industries
Limited
Off Balance Sheet Exposure
Zin Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
i Off balance sheet exposure 15,153.50 15,539.56
ii Financial Guarantee as a % of total off-balance sheet exposure 24% 26%
iii Non-Financial Guarantee as a% of total off-balance sheet exposure - -
iv Off balance sheet exposure to overseas subsidiaries - 385.87
v Letter of Comfort/Awareness issued to lenders on behalf of the subsidiaries 11,421.62 11,505.00
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Disclosures as required in terms of paragraph 30 of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve

Bank) (Contd.):
4 Investments
Zin Crores
Particulars 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
1 Value of Investments
i Gross Value of Investments
a In India 1,32,949.89 1,17,767.52
b Outside India 947.66 947.66
ii Provisions for Depreciation
a In India 1,844.66 1,844.63
b Outside India 266.54 266.54
i NetValue of Investments
a In India 1,31,105.23 1,15,922.89
b Outside India 681.12 681.12
2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments.
i Opening Balance 2,111.17 8,461.48
ii Add : Provisions made during the year 0.03 0.08
i Less:Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - (6,000.44)
iv  Less: Loss recognised on sale of investment - -
v Closing balance 2,111.20 2,111.17
5  ALM - Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities
Zin Crores
Advances Investments Borrowings Foreign | Foreign Currency
Currency Assets Liabilities
1to 7 days - - 12.05 - -
9 to 14 days - - - - -
15 days to 30/31days - - - - -
Over 1 month up to 2 months - - 285.00 - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months - - 3,696.67 - 24.62
Over 3 months & up to 6 months - - 4,108.50 - -
Over 6 months & up to 1 year - - 2,149.80 378.68 -
Over 1 year & up to 3 years - - 11,571.34 - -
Over 3 years & up to 5 years - - 85.00 - -
Over 5 years - - - - -
Total - - 21,908.36 - -

Quoted and Unquoted Equity Shares, Non Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares, Optionally Convertible Non
Cumulative Preference Shares, Cumulative Convertible Debentures, Optionally Convertible Debentures, Convertible Warrants, Units
of Liquid Schemes of Mutual Funds and Government Securities aggregating ¥ 1,30,286.35 crores (31st March, 2022 - 1,16,790.61
crores) and investment in immovable properties aggregating ¥ 58.88 crores (31st March, 2022 -3 59.12 crores) are not included above,
since there is no set maturity pattern for the same.

External Commercial Borrowings of ¥ 16,434.00 has been shown under borrowings.
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Disclosures as required in terms of paragraph 30 of the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) (Contd.):

6

Business Ratios

Particulars 31-Mar-2023
Return on Equity (RoE) 27.74%
Return on Assets (RoA) 17.18%
Net profit per employee 243.21
RoE = Profit After Tax / Average Equity during the year
RoA = Profit After Tax / Average Assets during the year
Provisions and Contingencies
Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the Profit 31-Mar-2023
and Loss Account
Provisions for depreciation on Investment 0.03
Provision towards NPA (0.04)
Provision made towards Income tax 7,891.36
Liability/Provision of a Subsidiary Company 1,240.00
Provision for Standard Assets (2.54)
Concentration of NPAs (net) as at 31st March 2023
Zin Crores
Amount | Exposure as a %
of total assets
Total Exposure to top five NPA (net) accounts 0.06 0.00%
Overseas Assets as at 31st March 2023
Zin Crores
Name of the Subsidiary Country Total Assets
Tata Incorporated USA 0.25
Tata International AG, Zug. Switzerland 239.24
Tata Limited, London UK 1,080.30

Zin Crores
31-Mar-2022
28.45%
15.26%
180.75

Tin Crores
31-Mar-2022

(43.82)
(1.73)
2,375.81
1,148.10
(6.95)
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Disclosure of details as required by RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 - Disclosures in
Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022

A) Exposure

(i) Exposure to real estate sector

Tin Crores

Category 2022-23 2021-22

i) Direct Exposure - -

a) Residential Mortgages - - -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that - -
is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure
would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.

b) Commercial Real Estate - - -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office - -
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises,
multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits.

c¢) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other - =
securitized exposures -

i Residential - =
ii. ~ Commercial Real Estate - -

ii) Indirect Exposure - -
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing - -
Bank and Housing Finance Companies.

iii) Immovable Properties directly owned by the Company and 58.88 59.12
carried under Investments in Immovable Properties

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 58.88 59.12

(ii) Exposure to capital market
Tin Crores

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 61,543 61,543
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus
of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt*

Total exposure to capital market 61,543 61,543

*The exposure disclosed is the investment in quoted equity shares
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Disclosure of details as required by RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 - Disclosures in
Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022 (Contd.):

(iii) Sectoral exposure*

Zin Crores
Sectors 2022-23 2021-22
Particulars Total Exposure | Gross | Percentage Total Gross | Percentage
(includes NPAs | of Gross Exposure NPAs of Gross
on balance NPAs (includes NPAs
sheet and off- to total on balance to total
balance sheet exposure in | sheet and off- exposure in
exposure) that sector | balance sheet that sector
exposure)
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
2, Industry
2.1.  Micro and Small - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
22.  Medium - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
23. Large - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Total of Industry (2) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3. Services
3.1.  Transport Operators - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.2.  Computer Software - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.3.  Tourism, Hotels and Restaurants - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.4. Shipping - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.5.  Aviation - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.6.  Professional Services - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.7. Trade - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.7.1. Wholesale Trade (other than food procurement) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.7.2. Retail Trade - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.8. Commercial Real Estate - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.9. Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) of - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
which,
3.9.1. Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.9.2. Public Financial Institutions (PFls) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
3.10. Other Services - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Total of Services (3) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4. Personal Loans
4.1.  Consumer Durables - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.2.  Housing (Including Priority Sector Housing) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.3.  Advances against Fixed Deposits (Including - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
FCNR (B), NRNR Deposits etc.)
44. Advances to Individuals against share, bonds, etc. - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.5.  Credit Card Outstanding - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.6.  Education - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.7.  Vehicle Loans - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.8. Loans against gold jewellery - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.9.  Other Personal Loans - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
4.10. Others - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
Total of Personal Loans (4) - - 0.00% - - 0.00%
5. Others, if any (please specify) - - - - - -

*This disclosure is not applicable as Tata Sons Private Limited is a Core Investment Company registered with RBI.
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Disclosure of details as required by RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 - Disclosures in
Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022 (Contd.):

(iv) Intra-group exposures

Tin Crores
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
i) Total amount of intra-group exposures 1,31,898.29 1,16,166.63
ii)  Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 1,18,943.69 1,05,977.36
iii)  Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the 99.89% 97.83%
NBFC on borrowers/customers
(v) Refer Note No. 36 C (iv) for the unhedged foreign currency disclosure and policies to manage currency induced risk.
C) Disclosure of complaints
1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman
Sr. |Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
No
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year - -
Number of complaints received during the year - -
Number of complaints disposed during the year - -
3.1 | Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
Number of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman - -
5.1 | Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman - -
5.2 | Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by - -
Office of Ombudsman
5.3 | Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman - -
against the NBFC
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) - -
*Tata Sons Private Limited is a Core Investment Company and does not have a customer interface
2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers
Grounds of complaints, Number of Number of | % increase/ decrease| Numberof | Of 5, number
(i.e. complaints relating to) complaints complaints in the number of complaints | of complaints
pending at the received complaints received | pending at pending
beginning of during the over the previous the end of beyond 30
the year year year the year days
1 2 3 4 5 6

2022-23

Collections related
Application Status related
Communication to Third Party
Foreclosure Letter Delay
Others

Total - - - - -

*Tata Sons Private Limited is a Core Investment Company and does not have a customer interface
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Disclosure of details as required by RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23 - Disclosures in

Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs dated April 19, 2022 (Contd.):
D) Thereis no breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued.

E) Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

Zin Crores
Sr. | Particulars Amount
1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC 704.28
2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by the Reserve Bank of India -
3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) (704.28)
4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC 0.16
5 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by Reserve Bank of India -
6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) (0.16)
7 Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC -
8 | Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by Reserve Bank of India -
9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) -
10 | Reported Profit before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the year ended 19,547
March 31,2022
11 | Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2022 17,171
12 | Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2022 after considering the 17,171
divergence in provisioning
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